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BOARD'S REPORT 

Dear Members, 

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the Seventh Annual Report on the business and financial operations 

of your Company together with the audited financial statements for the financial year ended March 3 I, 2025. 

1. Financial Results 

A summary of the financial performance of the Company, both on a consolidated and standalone basis in 

comparison to the previous FY is given below: 

₹ in Lakhs 

Particulars 

Consolidated Standalone 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 
2025 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 
2024 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 
2025 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 
2024 

Revenue from Operations 104,701.13 72,762.57 99,049.15 69,233.93 
Other Income 2,859.79 2,988.97 4,264.60 3,661.83 
Total Income 107,560.92 75,751.54 103,313.75 72,895.76 

Less: Total expenses 84,966.30 59,900.93 80,765.09 57,1 99.15 

Profit before Tax 22,594.62 15,850.61 22,548.66 15,696.61 

Less: Tax Expenses 5,470.74 4,175.48 5,448.00 4,169.48 

Profit after Tax 17,123.88 11,675.13 17,100.66 11,527.13 

Add: Other Comprehensive Income (930.89) (53.29) (953.09) (62.50) 

Total Comprehensive Income 16,192.99 11,621.84 16,147.57 11,464.63 
Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

Basic 11.78 10.66 11.77 1O.52 

Diluted 11.74 10.66 11.73 1O.52 

Less: Transfer to Reserves as per 
Section 45-IC of the RBI Acts 

3,420.13 
2,305.43 

3,420.13 
2,3O5.43 

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 12,772.85 9,316.41 12,727.43 9,159.21 

The above figures are extracted from the financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards ("Ind AS") as notified under Sections 129 and 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other relevant provisions of the Act. The detailed Financial 
Statements as stated above are available on the Company's website https://protium.co.in/.

Financial Performance 

Consolidated 
Your Company posted total income and net profit of INR 107,560.92 lakhs and INR 17,123.88 lakhs, 
respectively for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, as against INR 75,751 .54 lakhs and 1NR 1 1,675. 13 
lakhs respectively, in the previous financial year. 
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Standalone 

YOur Company posted total income and net profit of INR 103,313.75 lakhs and 1NR 17,100..66 lakhs, 
respectively for. the financial year ended March 31, 2025, as against INR 72,895.76 lakhs and INR 11,527.13 
lakhs respectively, in the previous financial year. 

2. Dividend 

Considering the capital-intensive nature of the business, the business plan of the Company and with a view to 
plough back the profits, the Board of Directors have not recommended any dividend for the financial year to 
build a strong base for its long-term growth. 

3. Transfer to Reserves 

Your Company has transferred INR 3,420.13 lakhs to the Statutory Reserve as required under Section 45-IC of 
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (previous year INR 2,305.43 lakhs). 

4. State of Company's Affairs 

The information on the affairs of the Company has been given as part of the Management Discussion and 
Analysis section of the Report. 

Your Company is Non-Banking Financial Company without accepting or holding public deposits, as defined 
under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as applicable and is categorized as middle layer 
(NBFC-ML). 

The portfolio of the total loan outstanding of your Company stood at INR 380,187.57 lakhs as on March 31, 
2025. Your Company continued to focus on its existing products by deepening and expanding its distribution 
while augmenting its infrastructure and offerings to effectively deliver credit solutions to its market. Your 
Company proposes to continue the same in FY2026. 

Your Company offers a comprehensive bouquet of products and services to the underserved, which is tailor-
made to suit the customers' requirements. Your Company is engaged in providing lending to the business of 
Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises (MSME) and offers both secured and unsecured loans. 

5. Change in nature of business, if any 

Your Company carried out the business as mentioned in the Memorandum of Association of the Company 
during the year under review and there was no change in the nature of business of the Company. 

6. Human Resources 

Your Company firmly believes that people are its greatest asset which embodies a dynamic blend of youthful 
energy and seasoned experience, driving the organization forward with capability, passion, and integrity. As of 
March 31, 2025, it employed 2,039 individuals, with women representing 11% of our team. The average age of 
employees stands at 33 years, reflecting a vibrant and agile workforce committed to excellence. 
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7. Details of Subsidiary, Joint Ventures, Associate Companies 

During the year under review, your Company has no associate companies within the meaning of Section 2(6) 

of the Act and has not entered into any joint venture. However, your Company has following two Whol ly Owned 

Subsidiaries ("WOS"): 

Name of the WOS CIN 

Protium Business Services Private Limited U72900MH2021PTC356128 

Shibui Technologies Private Limited U62099KA2023PTC171573 

There has been no material change in business of subsidiary companies during the financial year 2024-25. 

Further, pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, 

the statement containing the salient features of the financial statements of your Company's Subsidiaries in Form 
AOC — 1 is annexed as Annexure I. 

Highlights of performance of Subsidiary Corn pany(ies) 

The total revenue from the operation of Protium Business Services Private Limited during the year under 
review is INR 5,556.58 lakhs (previous year INR 4,720.28 lakhs) and the Net profit is Rs. INR 31.54 lakhs 
(previous year INR 6.86 lakhs). 

Further, the total revenue from the operation of Shibui Technologies Private Limited during the year under 
review is INR 155.94 lakhs (previous year INR 33.70 lakhs) and the Net profit is INR 35.89 lakhs (previous 
year Rs. 4.37 lakhs). 

The audited financial statements, including the consolidated financial statements of your Company are available 
on the website. The Annual Report and audited financial statements of each of its subsidiaries are also available 
on the website of the Company at https://protium.co.in/regulatory-disclosure/. 

8. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which have 
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate 

and the date of the report 

The details of changes in the Board of Directors from the end of the financial year up to the date of this report 
have been duly included herein. Apart from these changes, there have been no material developments or 
commitments that have significantly impacted the financial position of the Company during this period. 

9. Borrowings 

During the year under review, your Company met its funding requirements through a diversified mix of 
borrowings, including Commercial Papers, External Commercial Borrowings (ECBs), securitisation 
transactions, and borrowings from banks and financial institutions. As of March 31, 2025, the total outstanding 
borrowings stood at ₹380,187.57 lakhs. 
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Your Company's overall borrowings remain well within the regulatory ceiling and the aggregate borrowing 

limits as approved by the Board of Directors and Members from time to lime. In view of the Company's future 

business plans, growth potential, and the anticipated expansion of its loan portfolio, and to meet the requirement 

of additional funds for the coming years, your Company would continue with the existing borrowing limit to ₹ 

8000 crore. Accordingly, necessary resolutions seeking approval of Members to continue the existing borrowing 
limit forms part of the notice convening the 7111 Annual General Meeting ("AGM"). 

10. Credit Rating 

During the year under review, there has been no change to the credit ratings assigned in FY24 which was again 
reviewed and reaffirmed by the Acuite Ratings & Research Limited as stated below: 

Instruments 
Nature of 
Term 

Rating granted 

Bank Loan Ratings Long term ACUITE AA-/ Stable 

Non — Convertible Debentures Long Term ACUITE AA-/ Stable 

Non — Convertible Debentures 
(MLD) 

Long Term ACUITE PP-MLD AA-/ Stable withdrawn on March 
10, 2025 

Commercial Paper Short Term ACUITE Al+ withdrawn on March 10, 2025 

11. Capital Adequacy 

The Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of your Company as on March 31, 2025, was 45.68%, which is well above 
the minimum required to be maintained under RBI SBR Directions 2023. 

12. Public Deposits 

Your Company is a Non-Deposit taking NBFC and has not accepted any public deposits during the year under 
review. 

13. Capital Structure 

a. Authorized Share Capital 

As on March 31, 2025, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 1,56,00,93,000/- divided into 
15,60,09,300 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. 

b. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital 

As on March 31, 2025, the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of your Company stands at 1NR 
145,69,21,410 comprising of 14,56,92,141 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each. The said equity shares of the 
Company are held in dematerialized mode. 

During the year under review, your Company has issued Equity Shares as per details given below: 
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No. of fully Paid-up 

Equity Shares issued 

and subscribed 

Date of allotment Nature of Issue 

5,49,81 I 11.12.2024 Employee Stock Options 

c. Protium Finance Employee Stock Option Plan I 

In order to develop and implement a long - term incentive program to effectively attract, motivate and retain the 
best talent from the industry in a competitive environment, your Company has implemented the Protium Finance 
Employee Stock Option Plan I Scheme. A statement providing the information as required under Rule 12 of the 

Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, is furnished in Annexure II. 

14. Non-Convertible Debentures 

The Market Linked Debentures (ISIN INE0O3507016) were fully redeemed during the year and have been 
delisted from the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE Limited). Further Non-Convertible Debentures with ISIN 

INE003507024 were partially redeemed on April 25, 2024, and were fully redeemed on April 25, 2025. 

As on date of report, there are no outstanding NCDs of the Company . 

15. Debenture Trustees 

The details of the debenture trustees for the debenture holders of the Company are provided hereunder: 

Axis Trustee Services Limited 

Address: Axis House, Bombay Dyeing Mills Compound, 

Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai — 400 025 ,Tel: +91 22 6226 0054, 

Email: debenturetrustee@axistrustee.in , Website: www.axistrustee.in 

16. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 

The details of registrar and share transfer agent of the Company are provided hereunder: 
MUFG Intime India Private Limited (formerly known as Link Intime India Private Limited) 

C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai — 400083 

Tel :022 49186000, Email: bonds.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in 

Website: https: https://in.mpms.mufg.com/ 

17. Board and Committee Composition 

a. Board Composition 

The Company has a professional Board with Executive & Non-Executive Independent Directors who bring the 
right mix of knowledge, skills, and expertise and help the Company in implementing the best Corporate 
Governance practices. As on March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises of following 
Di rectors: 
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Sr. No. Name of Director Capacity (i.e. Executive/ Non- 

Executive/ Chairman/ Promoter 

nominee/ Independent) 

DIN 

1 Mr. Peeyush Misra Managing Director & CEO 
(Executive Director) 

08422699 

2 Ms. Anuradha Rao Independent Director . 07597195 

3 Ms. Dakshita Das Independent Director 07662681 

4 Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta Independent Director 02895343 

5 Mr. Sitaram Kunte Independent Director 02670899 

b. Key Managerial Personnel 

As on March 31, 2025, pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key 
Managerial Personnel (KMP) of your Company comprises of the following: 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of KMP Designation 

1 Mr. Peeyush Misra Managing Director & CEO 
2 Mr. Amit Kumar Gupta Chief Financial Officer 
3 Mrs. Anshu Mohta Company Secretary 

c, Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

During the period under review, there were no changes in the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company. 

However, on June 26, 2025, Mr. Pravin Raghavendra was appointed as an Additional Director in the category 
of Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation. His appointment is for a term of five (5) consecutive 
years commencing from June 26, 2025, subject to the approval of the Members at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting ("AGM"). 

Further, Ms. Anuradha Rao resigned from her position as Independent Director with effect from July 8, 2025. 
The Board places on record its sincere appreciation for the valuable contributions made by her during her tenure 
with the Company. 

As on the date of this report, the composition of Board of the Company comprises of following Directors: 

Sr. No. Name of Director Capacity (i.e. Executive/ Non- 

Executive/ Chairman/ Promoter 

nominee/ Independent) 

DIN 

1 Mr. Peeyush Misra Managing Director & CEO 
(Executive Director) 

08422699 

2 Ms. Dakshita Das Independent Director 07662681 

3 Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta Independent Director 02895343 

4 Mr. Sitaram Kunte Independent Director 02670899 

5 Mr. Pravin Raghavendra Independent Director 09686944* 

* Appointed with effect from June 26, 2025 
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d. Board Committees 

Your Board has constituted following committees which supports the Board in fulfilling its • fiduciary 

responsibilities and ensures that the Company adheres to regulatory standards while pursuing sustainable 
growth: 

1. Audit Committee 

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

3. Risk Management Committee 

4. IT Strategy Committee 

5. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

6. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

7. Asset & Liability Committee 

8. Customer Service Committee 

9. Share Allotment Committee 

10. Review Committee of Wilful Defaulters 

11. Information Security Committee 

12. IT Steering Committee 

13. Identification Committee for Wilful Defaulter 

14. Fraud Risk Management Committee 

The details of the Committee composition along with the details of the Meetings held during the Financial Year 

2024-25 are disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this report as Annexure 

e. Director liable to retire by rotation 

In terms of Section 152 of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Peeyush Misra, retires 
by rotation at the ensuing AGM and being eligible offers himself for reappointment. Your Directors' and the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee have evaluated the eligibility criteria under RBI guidelines and the 

Act and have recommended his reappointment in the ensuing AGM. 

f. Declaration by Directors 

Based on the declarations and confirmations received in terms of the Act, circular(s)/ notification(s)/direction(s) 
issued by RBI/SEBI and such other applicable laws, none of the Directors of the Board of your Company are 

disqualified from being appointed as Directors. 

All the Directors of the Company have confirmed that they satisfy the `Fit and Proper' Criteria as prescribed 

under Chapter XI of Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company —Scale Based 
Regulation) Directions, 2023, as amended, and that they are not disqualified from being appointed/continuing 
as Directors in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

Pursuant to Section 149(7) of the Act, your Company has received declarations • from all the Independent 
Directors of the Company affirming compliance with criteria of independence as specified under Section 149(6) 

. of the Act. The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the Company's Code 

of Conduct. 
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The Independent Directors have also confirmed compliance with rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, relating to inclusion of their names in the databank of 
independent directors and compliance of the online proficiency self- assessment test (unless exempted ) with the 
Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. 

The Board is of opinion and confirm, in terms of Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 that the 
Independent Directors are persons of high repute, integrity and possess the relevant expertise and experience in 
their respective fields. 

g. Meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company 

Five (5) Board Meetings were held during the Financial Year 2024-25. The details of the number of meetings 
of the Board of Directors of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report which is forming 
part of this report as Annexure HI. The intervening gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed 
under the Act. 

h. Performance Evaluation 

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, your Board undertook a comprehensive annual 
evaluation of its own performance, as well as that of its Committees, individual Directors, and the Chairman of 
the Company. A structured questionnaire was developed, focusing on key aspects such as Board composition, 
effectiveness, governance practices, and strategic oversight. This questionnaire was circulated among all Board 
members to gather feedback on the functioning and performance of the Board, its Committees, individual 
Directors, and the Chairman. The responses were compiled and presented to the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and subsequently to the Board for review and discussion. 

The Board is pleased to report its satisfaction with the evaluation process. The contributions of individual 
Directors were duly acknowledged and appreciated. The overall assessment reflected positively on the Board's 
performance, reaffirming its commitment to strong governance, transparency, accountability, and continuous 
improvement.

i. Independent Directors Meeting 

During the year, a meeting of Independent Directors was held as required under the Act and in compliance with 
the requirements under Schedule IV of the Act. 

All the Independent Directors were present at the meeting held on January 10, 2025. In the meeting, the 
Independent Directors reviewed performance of the Board as a whole and the Non-Independent 
Director/Chairman of the Board. They assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information 
between the Company Management and the Board. 

The Independent Directors expressed satisfaction over the performance and effectiveness of the Board and the 
Chairman. They also expressed satisfaction regarding the flow of information between the Management of the 
Company and the Board. 
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18. Policy on Appointment and Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(3) of the Act and Master Direction on RBI Scale Based Regulation, 
your Company has formulated Compensation Policy which inter alia includes criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors, identification of persons who are qualified to 
become Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management. The Compensation Policy is available 
on the website of the Company at https://protium.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/17.-Compensation-
Policy.pdf. 

19. Corporate Governance 

Your Company is committed to maintaining the highest standards of Corporate Governance and adheres to the 
Corporate Governance requirements. The report on Corporate Governance of the Company forms part of the 
Annual Report and is annexed as Annexure III. 

20. RBI Guidelines 

Your Company has complied with all the applicable regulations prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India from 
time to time. The disclosures required under RBI Guidelines applicable to the Company are stated in the Notes 
forming part of Financial Statements. 

21. Secretarial Standards 

Your Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards, relating to Meeting of the Board of 
Directors (SS-1) and General Meeting (SS-2), issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

22. Compliance 

The Company has implemented a comprehensive and robust legal compliance management system designed to 
ensure adherence to all applicable laws relevant to its business operations. This system includes automated alerts 
to designated compliance owners, helping them meet regulatory deadlines and avoid potential penalties or legal 
risks arising from non-compliance. A consolidated compliance dashboard is presented to the respective 
functional heads and the Compliance Officer for oversight. Additionally, a quarterly certificate confirming 
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations along with details of any corrective or preventive actions 
taken is circulated to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors for their review. 

23. Auditors and Auditors Report 

a. Auditors Report 

M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICA' FRN: 01049W/E300004) has issued an 
Audit Report dated May 12, 2025, forming part of the Annual Report There are no qualifications, reservation, 
adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Statutory Auditor in their Report for the year under review. 

No frauds in terms of the provisions of section 143( l 2) of the Act have been reported by the Statutory Auditors 
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b. Statutory Auditors 

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139 and 142 of the Act and Rules made thereunder and in line with 
guidelines issued by the RBI on appointment of statutory Auditors of NFCs, the Members appointed M/s. S.R. 
Batliboi & Associates LLP, as the statutory auditors of the Company from 6th AGM held on August 31, 2024 
to the 9th AGM, to be held in the year 2027. 

M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP have given confirmation to the effect that they are eligible and have not 
been disqualified in any manner from continuing their appointment as Statutory Auditors of the Company. 

c. Cost records and Auditors 

Under the provision of Section 148 of the Act, your Company is not required to maintain the Cost records for 
the services rendered. Hence, the disclosure required under Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is 
not applicable. 

d. Secretarial Audit 

Under the provision of Section 204 of the Act read with Rule 9 of Companies (Appointment and. Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s. MAKS & CO, Company Secretaries (Registration Number No: 
P2018UP067700) were appointed as Secretarial Auditors for the Financial Year 2024-25. The Secretarial Audit 
Report issued by the Secretarial Auditor in Form MR-3 is annexed as Annexure IV. 

There are no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Secretarial Auditor in their 
Report for the year under review. 

e. Internal Control Systems and their adequacy 

The Company has an internal control system, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its 
operations. Testing of such systems forms a part of review by the Internal Audit ("IA") function. The scope and 
authority of the IA function is defined in the IA Charter in line with the Board approved Risk Based Internal 
Audit Policy. 

The IA function of the Company monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of the internal control system 

in the Company to ensure that financial reports are reliable, operations are effective and efficient and activities 

comply with applicable laws and regulations. Based on the report of the IA function, process owners undertake 
corrective action, if any, in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit 
observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Company from time to 
time. 

f. Internal Financial Control 

Your Company has a sufficiently staffed finance team working under robust processes, independent internal 
audit team and quarterly statutory audits. Hence, the Board believes that the Company has established sound 

1FC commensurate with the nature and size of its business 
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24. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties 

Your Company has a Board approved policy for Related Party Transactions (RPTs) which is available on the 
website of the Company at https://protium.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/5.-Related-Party-Transaction-
Policy.pdf. 

During the year under review, there were no materially significant related party transactions made by the 
Company which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Omnibus approval was 
obtained for related party transactions which are of repetitive nature and entered in the ordinary course of 
business and at arm's length. All related party transactions were placed before the Audit Committee for review 
and approval on a quarterly basis. 

The disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 134(3) (h) of the Act in Form AOC 2 is 
attached to this report as Annexure V. 

The details of related party transactions with the related parties entered into during the financial year are 
disclosed in Note No. 46 and Note No 50(d) of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the 
year ended March 31, 2025. 

25. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

In accordance with the requirements of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act, the Company has constituted 
a Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR") Committee. The composition and terms of reference of the CSR 
Committee is disclosed in the report on Corporate Governance of the Company forms part of the Annual Report 
and is annexed as Annexure 

The Company has also formulated a CSR policy ("CSR Policy") in accordance with the requirements of the Act 
containing details specified therein. The CSR Policy along with details of the projects approved by the Board 
are available on the website of the Company at https://protium.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Corporate-
Social-Responsibility-Policy.pdf. 

The Company has a strong commitment towards promoting social transformation through education and health 
care. During the year, the overall CSR spend was INR 183.54 lakhs. The Company has spent INR 8.92 lakhs in 
excess of its CSR obligations and the excess amount will be set off against the required 2% CSR budget over 
the next immediate succeeding financial years. 

The Company's CSR efforts are well-aligned with its business objectives, regulatory requirements, and social 
responsibility principles. 

The Annual report on activities as required under Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 
2014 is enclosed as Annexure VI and forms part of this report. 

26. Particulars of Loans, Guarantee, Security or Investments 

In terms of section 186( I I ) of the Act read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, 
as amended, the Company being an NBFC registered with RBI and whose main objects as per its Memorandum 
of Association is to carry on business of financing industrial enterprises, the Company is exempt from 
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complying with provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of loans made, guarantees given, securities 
provided, or investments made by the Company. 

The details of the Investments made by the Company are furnished under Note No 9 of Notes form i rig part of 
the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025. 

27. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting 
the going concern status and company's operations in future 

During the period under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts 
or tribunals that would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

28. Annual Return 

The Annual Return of the Company as on March 3 I, 2025 in Form MGT-7 as required under Section 92(3) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with Section 134(3) of the Act, shall be hosted on the website of the 
Corn pany thttps://protium.co.in/regulatory-disclosure/. 

29. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Out-Goings 

The provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Act, the rules made there under relating to conservation of energy 
and technology absorption do not apply to your Company as the Company is engaged in providing financial 
services. Your Company is taking every necessary step to reduce its consumption of energy, Further, your 
Company has been increasingly using information technology in its operations and promotes conservation of 
energy and resources. The details of foreign exchange earnings and foreign exchange expenditures are as below: 

₹ in Lakhs 
Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 
Foreign exchange earnings 
Foreign exchange expenditures 195.15 16.53 

30. Risk Management 

Your Company follows various strategies in its operational function for mitigating various risks. It 
acknowledges and identifies that it is prone to certain inherent risks while operating as NBFC-ML. The Risk 
Management Committee (RMC) of the Board has approved a policy which clearly lays down the process of risk 
management in the Company, with a view to create an enterprise-wide risk framework. In addition, the policies 
are periodically reviewed by the Board members. 

The established framework is designed to achieve the following objectives across key risk categories: 

1 Effective risk identification, measurement, monitoring, reporting and control. 

2. A well constituted organizational structure clearly defines roles and responsibilities of individuals 
involved in risk-taking as well as managing it. 
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3. Effective management information system that ensures flow of information from operational level to 
top management and a system to address any exceptions observed. 

4. The framework to ensure ongoing training of risk professional and overall PFL employees, review of 
systems, policies and procedures for risk management and procedure to adopt changes. 

Your Company is exposed to the following types of major risks categories: 

• Credit Risk 
• Liquidity Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Market Risk 
• Operational Risk 
• IT Security Risk 

In addition to the Risk Management Committee, Asset Liability Committee, IT Strategy Committee and Audit 
Committee are sub-committees constituted by the Board to oversee and control risk related to Liquidity and IT 
security. We have policies in place to address these risks, which are reviewed annually by senior management 
and approved by the Board of Directors. 

Credit Risk 
Credit risk arises from the potential that an obligor is either unwilling to perform on an obligation or its ability 
to perform such obligation is impaired resulting in economic loss to the organization. The objective of credit 
risk management is to ensure credit quality of portfolio through an evaluation of the credit process, 
creditworthiness of customers, new or existing, assessment of the risks involved and ensuring a measured 
approach to address the risks. Credit risk management includes identification, measuring and monitoring of 
credit quality of portfolio periodically and taking appropriate action to mitigate excessive buildup of risk. 

Operational Risk 
Operational risk arises due to the failure of controls or a combined failure of people, systems, and processes. 
Operational risk incidents can also be triggered due to external events. The activities which the Company 
undertakes exposes it to various types of operational risks. Your Company has established a robust framework 
to identify key sources of operational risk, eliminate risk using a combination of robust process design and use 
of technology, establish control frameworks to ensure adherence to processes and monitor deviations via system 
checks and exceptions. 

Your Company has set up Fraud risk management framework as part of broader operational risk ►management 
framework based on recent guidance from regulators 

Liquidity Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Market Risk 
In order to ensure a sound and robust liquidity risk management system, the Board has framed a liquidity risk 
management structure / framework which ensures that it ►maintains sufficient liquidity, including a cushion of 
unencumbered, high quality liquid assets to withstand a range of stress events, including those involving the 
loss or impai►ment of funding sources. Your Company has set up a comprehensive as well as dynamic 
framework for measuring, monitoring and managing liquidity and interest rate risks of major operators in the 
financial system, that need to be closely integrated with the Company's business strategy. 

A structured Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process ("ICAAP") is in place to enhance Board and Senior 
Management's ability to understand the existence of capital flexibility in line with the defined risk appetite. The 
ICAAP evaluates capital requirements under different stress scenarios. 
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IT Risk 
The IT Strategy Committee of the Board has framed a framework for managing risk associated with Information 
Technology, Cyber threats, and Business Continuity. Your Company has a dedicated technology team to build 
the core system used for origination, underwriting and loan servicing. The technology platform is periodically 
tested by both internal and external security experts to identify security vulnerabilities and evolving security 
threats. 

31. Business Continuity 

Your Company has further strengthened business resilience by enhancing Business Continuity Program and 
optimizing Disaster Recovery framework to ensure seamless operations. The strategic focus on cybersecurity 
remained unwavering, Cyber Defense capabilities were advanced to protect digital assets and customer interests. 

32. Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy 

In compliance with the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings 
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, your Company has formulated an effective Vigil Mechanism and Whistle 
Blower Policy for Directors and employees to report their genuine concerns. The Vigil Mechanism and Whistle 
Blower Policy' is available on the website of the Company at https://protium.co.in/wp-
content/uploads/2025/02/7.-W hi stl e-Bl ower-Pol icy. pdf. 

The vigil mechanism of the Company is overseen by the Audit Committee and provides adequate safeguard 
against victimization of employees. During the year under review, two cases under vigil mechanism were 
reported to the Company and were disposed of with the timeline. 

33. Particulars of Employees and Related Information 

As per the Companies (Specification of Definitions details) Rules, 2014, as amended, the Company doesn't fall 
under the category of listed company. Hence, provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act and Rule 5(1) & 5(2) of 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are not applicable to 

the Company. 

34. Director's Responsibility Statement 

Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of their 
knowledge and ability, confirm that: 

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, the applicable 
accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures. 

b. the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the Company as at March 31, 2025, and of the profit of the Company for the financial year ended on 
that date. 
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c. the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities. 

d. the Directors had prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended on March 31, 2O25, on a 
`going concern' basis. 

e. the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

35. Code for Prohibition of Insider Trading 

Pursuant to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation 2015, as amended, your Company has a Board 
approved Insider Trading Code i.e. Code of Internal Procedures and conduct for prevention of insider trading 
for its listed Non-Convertible Debentures of the Company. The said code is available on the website of the 
Company at https://protium.co. in/wp-content/uploads/2025/05/Insider-Trading-Code-l.pdf. 

36. Management Discussion and Analysis 

The report on Management Discussion and Analysis of the Company as per Master Direction on RBI Scale 
Based Regulation forms part of the Board Report and is annexed as Annexure VII. 

37. Fraud 

The Company confirms its adherence to the RBI regulations regarding fraud. For the financial year 2024-25, 
the Company reports that there were no instances of fraud detected or reported. 

38. Disclosure under the Sexual harassment of women at workplace (prevention, prohibition and 
redressal) Act, 2013 

Your Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a policy on Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at workplace as per the requirement of the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 (`POSH Act') and Rules made 
thereunder. 

With the objective of providing a safe environment, your Company has constituted Internal Committee under 
POSH Act to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees — permanent, contractual, 
temporary and trainees are covered under this policy. The policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at 
Workplace is uploaded on the website of the Company which can be accessed at https://protium.co.in/wp-
content/uploads/2023/12/POSH-Policy Final Dec23 V1.4.pdf. 

The summary of complaints received and disposed off during year under review: 

Sr. No. Particulars No. of cases 
1 Number of complaints of sexual harassment received in 

the year 
0 
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2 Number of complaints disposed off during the year 0 
3 Number of cases pending for more than ninety days 0 

39. Statement with respect to the compliance of the provisions relating to the Maternity Benefit Act 1961 

The Company is in compliance with the provisions relating to the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 including all 
applicable amendments and rules framed thereunder 

40. Confirmation under Foreign Exchange Management (Non-Debt Instruments) Rules, 2O19 on 
Downstream Investment 

Your Company has raised foreign investments and it is owned and controlled by persons resident outside India 
("FOCC") as defined under the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, Rules and Regulations issued 
thereunder including under Foreign Exchange Management (Non-Debt Instruments) Rules, 2019 ("NDI Rules"). 

During the financial year FY2024-25, your Company didn't make any downstream investment. 

41. Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend and Unclaimed Securities 

During FY 2024-25, no amount was required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. 
Further, pursuant to the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and 
Refund) Rules, 2016 ("Rules") and Regulation 61A of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Mr. Amit Kumar Gupta is the Nodal Officer of the Company, for the purpose 
of verification of claims and co-ordination with the IEPF Authority. The contact details of Persons handling 
Investor Grievance are available on the website of the Company at https://protium.co.in/regulatory-disclosure/. 

42. General 

Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no 
transactions on these items during the year under review: 

a. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise 
b. Issue of bonus shares or preferential issue of shares or rights issue etc. 
c. transfer of unpaid or unclaimed amount to Investor Education and Protection Fund. 
d. Scheme for provision of money for the purchase of its own share by employees or by trustees for the 

benefit of employees. 
e. The Managing Director of the Company doesn't receive any remuneration or commission from its 

subsidiary. 
f. Details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one time settlement and the 

valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions. 
g. no proceeding for Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process initiated Under the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
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On behalf of the Board of Directors 
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1 • 
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Date: August 14, 2025 
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18 



ANNEXURE - I TO BOARD'S REPORT 

FORM- AOC-1 

(Pursuant to fi rst proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

1. Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate 

companies or joint ventures 

Part A: Subsidiaries 

₹ in Lakhs 
Block - 1 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Subsidiary 1 Subsidiary 2 

1. CIN/ any other registration number 
of 
subsidiary company 

U72900MH2021PTC356128 U62099KA2023PTC171573 

2. Name of the subsidiaries Protium Business Services 
Private Limited 

Shibui Technologies Private 
Limited 

Date since when subsidiary was 
acquired 

March 2, 2021 March 24, 2023 

3. Provisions pursuant to which the 
company has become a subsidiary 
(Section 2(87)(i)/Section 2(87)(ii)) 

Section 2(87)(ii) Section 2(87)(ii) 

4. 
Reporting period for the subsidiary 
concerned, if different from the 
holding company's reporting period. 

From April 1, 2024 From April 1, 2024 

To March 31, 2025 To March 31, 2025 

5. Reporting currency and Exchange 
rate as on the last date of the relevant 
financial year in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries. 

NA NA 

6. Share Capital 760.00 1.00 

7. Reserves and Surplus 84.81 39.95 

8. Total Assets 1,428.38 59.21 

9. Total Liabilities 583.57 18.26 

10. Investments 0.00 0.00 

11. Turnover 5,556.58 155.94 

12. Profit before Taxation 42.18 47.99 

13. Provision for Taxation 10.63 12.10 

14. Profit after Taxation 31 .54 35.89 

15. Proposed Dividend - -
16. Extent of shareholding (in 

percentage) 
100% 100% 
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Number of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - None 
Number of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or or have ceased to be a subsidiary during the 
year: Not applicable. 

Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures 

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and 
Joint Ventures- Not Applicable 

1. Number of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations — None 
2. Number of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or have ceased to be associate or 

joint venture during the year: Not applicable. 

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement as on March 31, 2025: 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Protium Finance Limited 

Peeyush Misra 
Managing Director & CEO 
DIN: 08422699 

Amit Ku r Gupta 
Chief Financial Officer 

Date: August 14, 2025 
Place: Lonavala 

Parveen nar Gupta 
Indeue dent Director 
DIN: 02895343 

5 

Anshu Mohta 
Company Secretary 

Membership No.: A18287 
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ANNEXURE -II TO BOARD'S REPORT 

DETAILS OF EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS 

As per Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 following are the particulars 
of ESOP required to the following information isbe disclosed for the financial year 2024-25 in respect of Protium 
Finance Employee Stock Option Plan I. 

Sr. 

No 

Particulars Grant 2023 Grant 2025 

1. Options granted 3,033,718 9,97,623 

2. Options vested 1,071,765 0 
3. Options exercised 549,811 0 

4. . Total no. of shares arising as a result of exercise 
of options 

549,811 0 

5. Options lapsed 386,252 0 

6. Exercise price INR 166 per option INR 480 per option and 
INR 166 per option 

7. Variation of terms of options 

_ 

During the year under 
review, no variation 
in the terms of options 
was made. 

During the year under 
review, no variation in 
the terms of options was 
made. 

8. Money realized by exercise of options 9,12,68,626 0 
9. Total no. of options in force Total no. of options in 

force as on March 31, 
2025, are 20,97,655 

Total no. of options in 
force as on March 31, 
2025, are 9,97,623 

10. Employee wise details of options granted to: 

(i) Key managerial personnel During the year under 
review, options 
granted 

Ms. Anshu Mohta 
(CS) - 15,060 

Mr. Amit Kumar 
Gupta (CFO) — 
2,10,843 

During the year under 
review, options granted 

Ms. Anshu Mohta (CS) -
5,208 

Mr. Amit Kumar Gupta 
(CFO) - 31,250 

(ii) Any other employee who receives a grant of 
options in any one year of options amounting to 5% 
or more of options granted during that year. 

Nil Nil 
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Identified employees who were granted Option, 

during any one year, equal to or exceeding 1% of 

the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants 
and conversions) of the Company at the time of 
grant. 

Nil Nil 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Protium Fb...."Fe Limited 

Peeyush Misra 

Chairperson of Board 

DIN: 08422699 

Date: August 14, 2025 
Place: Lonavala 
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ANNEXURE III- TO BOARD'S REPORT 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

1. Board of Directors 

The Board of the Company is an apex body, which oversees overall functioning, provides strategic direction, 

guidance, leadership and owns the fiduciary responsibility to ensure that your Company's actions and objectives 

are aligned in creating long term value for its stakeholders. The Board helps the Company in adhering to high 

Corporate Governance practices. 

The Board of Directors has a mix of Executive and Non-Executive Independent Directors. As on March 31, 

2025, the Board comprised of five (5) members including one (1) Managing Director & CEO and four (4) 

Independent Directors. The Independent Directors include two women directors. 

1.1 Composition of the Board 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of 

Director 

Director 

since 

Capacity (i.e. 

Executive/ 

Non- 

Executive/ 

Chairman/ 

Promoter 

nominee/ 

Independent) 

DIN No. of 

other 

Director 

ships 

Remuneration (in Rs.) No. of 

shares 

held in 
and 

convertible 

instruments 

held in 
the NBFC 

Salary 

and other 

compensa 

tion 

Sitting 

Fee 

(In Rs.) Commissio 

n 

I Mr. 
Peeyush 
Misra 

15.04.2019 Managing 
Director & 
CEO 
(Executive 
Director) 

08422699 Nil Nil Nil Nil 

2 Mr. 
Parveen 
Kumar 
Gupta 

23.12.2021 Independent 
Director 

02895343 7 Nil 24,00,000 18,00,000 18,564 

3 Ms. 
Anuradha 

Rao # 

29.08.2023 Independent 

Director 

07597195 2 Nil 16,00,000 18,00,000 

4 Ms. 

Dalcshita 

Das 

16.02.2024 Independent 

Director 

07662681 3 Nil 16,00,000 I8,00,000 0 

5 Mr. 

Sitaram 

Kunte 

16.02.2024 Independent 
Director 

02670899 3 N I 21,00,000 18,00,000 
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# Ms. Anuradha Rao resigned as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from July 8, 2025, due 

to personal reason — family commitment. 

1.2 Details of change in the composition of your Board of Directors during the current and previous 

financial year 

Current Financial Year- (2024-25) 
There is no change in the composition of the Board during the financial  ended March 31, 2025. 

Previous Financial Year (2023-24) 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of Director/401P Capacity 

(i.e., Executive/ Non 

Executive/ 

Chairman/ 
Promoter nominee/ 

Independent) 

Nature of change 

(resignation, 

appointment) 

Effective date 

1 Mr. Peeyush Misra Managing Director 

& CEO (Executive) 

Redesignated as 

Managing Director & 

CEO 

May 9, 2023 

2 Ms. Anuradha Rao Independent 

Director 

Appointment August 29, 2023 

3 Mr. Peruvemba 

Ramachandran Seshadri 

Independent 

Director 

Resignation * September 13, 2023 

4 Ms. Dakshita Das" Independent 
Director 

Appointment February 16, 2024 

5 Mr. Sitaram Kunte^ Independent 

Director 

Appointment February 16, 2024 

* Resigned due to appointment as a Managing Director and CEO in a Bank 

A Ms. Dakshita Das and Mr. Sitaram Kunte were appointed as independent director's for the first term of five 
years w.e.f. February 16, 2024, by the Board of Directors and the Shareholders of the Company approved their 
appointments on the Board at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on August 31, 2024. 

The Board of Directors of the Company met five times during the year. The Board Meetings were held on April 
30, 2024, July 31, 2024, October 18, 2024, December 31, 2024, and January 25, 2025. The intervening gap 
between the two consecutive Board Meetings was within the prescribed period of 120 days as specified under 
the provisions of Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Non-executive Independent directors receive remuneration by way of sitting fees of Rs. 1,00,000/- (One 
Lakh) for attending each meeting of the Board and/or Committees thereof and commission as decided by the 

Board from time to time subject to the limits specified under the Act. 

During the financial year under review, there were no pecuniary relationship/transactions of any of the Non-

Executive Directors with the Company apart from sitting fees for attending various Board/Committee Meetings 

and commission paid to Independent Directors. 
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The details of attendance of the Directors in the Board Meetings for the year ended March 31, 2025, are as 
follows: 

Sr. 

No 

Name of the Director No. of meetings 

eligible to attend 

Meetings attended 

1 Mr. Peeyush Misra 5 5 

2 Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta 5 5 

3 Ms. Anuradha Rao 5 4 

4 Ms. Dakshita Das 5 5 

5 Mr. Sitaram Kunte 5 5 

Sr. No. Date of meeting Total Number of 

directors as on 

the date of 
meeting 

Attendance 

Number of 
directors attended 

% of 

attendance 

1 30.04.2024 5 5 100 

2 31 .07.2024 5 5 100 

3 18.10.2024 5 4 80 

4 31.12.2024 5 5 100 

5 25.01.2025 5 5 100 

1.3 Inter-se Relationship amongst Directors 

None of the Director is related to any other Director on the Board of the Company in terms of the provisions of 

the Act and the Rules framed thereunder. 

2. Committees of the Board and their composition 

In accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act and the circular(s), notification(s) and directions issued 
by the Reserve Bank of India and the Company's internal corporate governance requirements, the Board has 

constituted following Committees to focus on specific terms of reference and ensure expedient resolution on 
diverse matters. All the recommendations of the committees were accepted by the Board. 

The Board has currently constituted the following Committees pursuant to the provisions of the Act and RBI 

regulations. 

Sr. 

No. 

Nature of the Committee Summarized Terms of Reference 

1. Audit Committee The Committee is constituted as required under Section 177 of the Act 

and Paragraph 94.1 of Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-
Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 
2023 as amended and undertakes all matters prescribed for its working 
therein. 
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-

The major terms of reference of Audit Committee include oversight of 
the Company's financial reporting process and disclosure of its 
financial information, review of financial statements, recommendation 
for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors, 
review of compliances, systems and controls and approval or any 
subsequent modification of transactions with related parties. 

2. Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee 

The Committee is constituted as required under Section 178 of the Act, 
and Paragraph 94.2 of Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-
Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 
2023 as amended and undertakes all matters prescribed for its working 
therein. 

The major terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee inter alia, includes formulation of criteria for deterinining 
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director, 
recommendation of person's to be appointed to-the Bdard and Senior 
Management and specifying the manner for effective evaluation of- 
performance of Board, its Committees, Chairperson -and individual 
directors, recommendation of remuneration policy for directors, key 
managerial personnel and other employees: 

3. Risk Management 
Committee 

The Committee is constituted as required under Paragraph 39 of Master 
Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-B.anking Financial Company 
— Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 as amended and undertakes 
all matters prescribed for its working therein. - - . 

The major terms- of reference of the COmmittee, inter alia, include, 
design and implement the risk management and internal control 
systems in conjunction with existing business processes and systems, 
to manage the Company's material business risk; establishing policies
for the monitoring and evaluation of risk management systems to assess 
the effectiveness of those systems in minimizing risks that may impact 
adversely on the business objectives of the Company, monitor. the loan 
portfolio along with risks associated 'with .it and 'reviewing .the 
appointment, removal and terms of 'remuneration of the Chief Risk 
Officer.

4. IT Strategy Committee The Committee is constituted as required; under Paragraph 6 of Master 
Direction on Information Technology Governance, Risk, Controls and 
Assurance Practices dated November 7, 2023, as amended and 
undertakes all matters prescribed for its working therein. 

The major terms of reference of IT Strategy Committee, inter alia, 
includes approving IT strategy and policy documents, to ensure that 
management has an effective strategic planning process, to ensure that 
IT strategy is aligned with business strategy, oversight of Information 
Security Committee and IT Steering Committee, assessing and 
managing IT and cybersecurity risks and review adequacy and 
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effectiveness of the Business Continuity Planning and Disaster 
Recovery Management etc. 

5. Asset Liability Committee The Committee is constituted as required under Annex VI of Master 
Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company 
— Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 as amended and undertakes 
all matters prescribed for its working therein. 

The major terms of reference of Asset Liability Committee, inter alia, 
includes responsible for ensuring adherence to the limits set by Board 
as well as for deciding the Business strategy of the Company, on the 
assets and liabilities side, in line with the Company's budget and 
decided risk management objectives. Monitoring of rolling forecasts of 
the Company liquidity position, maturities of the financial assets and 
cash / cash equivalents, managing market risks, funding and capital 
planning, profit planning and growth projection forecasting and to 
analyse 'What if scenario' and preparation of contingency plans, 
behavioural analysis of the pre-payments of loan assets, formulating 
Interest rate policy and its framework and maintaining liquidity 
management. 

6. Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee 

The Committee is constituted as required under Section 135 of the Act 
and undertakes all matters prescribed for its working therein. 

The major terms of reference of Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee includes reviewing the CSR Policy and associated 
frameworks and make appropriate recommendations to the Board, 
identification of the areas of CSR activities and recommend the amount 
of expenditure to be incurred, monitoring and ensuring implementation 
of the projects / programs / activities proposed to be undertaken by the 
Company, collaborate with such other agency for implementing 
programs and executing initiatives as per CSR Policy and shall review 
the performance of such other agency periodically. 

7. Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee 

The Committee is constituted as required under Section 178 of the Act 
and undertakes all matters prescribed for its working therein. 

The major terms of reference of Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
includes resolving the grievances of the security holders, review of 
adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect 
of various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer 
Agent, review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the 
Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends, timely 
payment of dividend/ annual reports/statutory notices to the 
shareholders, ensuring timely payment of interest /annual 
reports/statutory notices to the debenture holder and to ensure timely 
redemption of Bonds/debentures of the Company. 

8. Customer Service 
Committee 

The Committee is constituted as required under Master Direction —
Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale 
Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 read with Master Direction - 
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Reserve Bank of India (Internal Ombudsman for Regulated Entities) 
Directions, 2023 as amended and undertakes all matters prescribed for 
its working therein. 
The major terms of reference include functioning of the C ustomer 
Grievances redressal mechanism under the Fair Practice Code, review 
of the customer service policies, procedures and standards, grievance 
redressal including customer complaints and the nature of their 
resolution, review of awards under Ombudsman scheme and 
implementation of internal ombudsman policy. 

9. Share Allotment 
Committee 

The Committee is constituted with the purpose to allot shares offered 
by the Company including allocation of shares under the Employee 
Stock Option Plan of the Company. 

The major terms of reference of Share Allotment Committee includes 
approving allotment of shares offered by the Company including 
allocation of shares under Protium Finance Employee Stock Option 
Plans (ESOP) of the Company, authorizing individuals to take 
necessary steps for allotment of shares including allotment on exercise 
of ESOPs and other allied activities, and to take on record the valuation 
reports issued for the allotment. 

10. Review Committee of 
Wilful Defaulters 

The Committee is constituted as required under RBI Master Direction 
on Treatment of Willful Defaulters and Large Defaulters, dated July 
30, 2024, and undertakes all matters prescribed for its working therein. 

The major terms of reference include reviewing the order passed by 
Identification Committee after considering written representation, if 
any forwarded by non-cooperative borrower(s) (Wilful Defaulters) and 
pass necessary orders upholding/rejecting the order passed by ERG 
Committee and to carry out such other duties or functions as may be 
delegated by the Board from time to time or required by the authority. 

11. Information Security 
Committee 

The Committee is constituted as required under Paragraph 24(b) of RBI 
Master Direction on Information Technology Governance, Risk, 
Controls and Assurance Practices dated November 7, 2023, as 
amended and undertakes all matters prescribed for its working therein. 

The major terms of reference of Information Security Committee 
include developing information/ cyber security policies, 
implementation of policies, standards and procedures to ensure that all 
identified risks are managed within the Company's risk appetite, 
approving and monitoring information security projects and security 
awareness initiatives and reviewing cyber incidents, information 
systems audit observations, monitoring, and mitigation activities. 

12. IT Steering Committee The Committee is constituted as required under Paragraph 7 of Master 
Direction on Information Technology Governance, Risk, Controls and 
Assurance Practices dated November 7, 2023, for the NBFC Sector and 
undertakes all matters prescribed for its working therein. 
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The major teens of reference of IT Steering Committee include 
assisting the ITSC in strategic IT planning, oversight of IT 
performance, and aligning IT activities with business needs, overseeing 
the processes put in place for business continuity and disaster recovery 
and ensuring implementation of a robust IT architecture meeting 
statutory and regulatory compliance. 

13. Identification Committee 
for Wilful Defaulter 

The Committee is constituted as required under as per RBI Master 
Direction on Treatment of Willful Defaulters and Large Defaulters, 
dated July 30, 2024, and undertakes all matters prescribed for its 
working therein. 

The major terms of reference of Identification Committee for Wilful 
Defaulter include examining the evidence of willful default and to 
make a proposal to the Review Committee for classification as a wilful 
defaulter. 

14. Fraud Risk Management 
Committee 

The Committee is constituted as required under RBI Master Directions 
on Fraud Risk Management in Non-Banking Financial Companies 
(NBFCs) (including Housing Finance Companies), dated July 15, 2024 
and undertakes all matters prescribed for its working therein. 

The major terms of reference of Fraud Risk Management Committee 
include overseeing the effectiveness of fraud risk management, 
reviewing and monitor cases of frauds, root cause analysis of the fraud 
and suggesting mitigating measures for strengthening the internal 
controls and risk management framework to minimize the incidence of 
frauds. 

2.1 Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee met Four (4) times during the Financial Year under review on April 30, 2024, July 31, 
2024, October 18, 2024, and January 25, 2025. 

Sr. Name of Member of Capacity Number of Meetings of No. of 
No. DirectorAlemher Committee (i.e., Executive/ Committee shares held 

since Non- Held Attended in the 
Executive/ NBFC 
Chairman/ 
Promoter 
nominee/ 
Independent) 

1 Mr. Parveen Kumar 23.12.2021 Independent 4 4 18,564 
Gupta* Director & 

Chairperson of 
Committee 

2 Mr. Peeyush Misra 23.12.2021 Managing 4 4 0 
Director & CEO 
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3 Ms. Anuradha Rao 22.09.2023 Independent 

Director 

4 3 0 

4 Mr. Sitaram Kunte# 14.06.2024 Independent 
Director 

3 3 0 

* Appointed as the Chairperson of the Audit Committee w.e.f. June 14, 2024 
# Appointed as a member of the Audit Committee w.e.f. June 14, 2024 

2.2 Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met twice (2) times during the Financial Year under review on 
April 30, 2024, and January 8, 2025. 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of 
DirectorkMem-ber 

Member of 
Committee 

since 

Capacity 

(i.e., Executive/ 

Non- 
Executive/ 

Chairman/ 

Promoter 

nominee/ 
Independent) 

Number of Meetings of 
Committee 

No. of 
shares held 
in the NBFC Held Attended 

1 Ms. Anuradha 
Rao* 

22.09.2023 Independent 
Director & 
Chairperson of 

Committee 

2 2 0 

2 Mr. Peeyush Misra 23.12.2021 Managing 

Director & CEO 

2 2 0 

3 Mr. Parveen 
Kumar Gupta# 

23.12.2021 Independent 
Director 

1 1 18,564 

4 Ms. Dakshita Das^ 14.06.2024 Independent 

Director 

1 1 0 

5 Mr. Sitaram 

Kunte^ 

14.06.2024 Independent 

Director 

1 1 0 

* Appointed as the Chairperson of the Committee w.e.f. June 14, 2024 

# Resigned as the member of the Committee w.e.f. June 14, 2024 

" Appointed as a member of the Committee w.e.f. June 14, 2024 

2.3 Risk Management Committee 

The Risk Management Committee met four (4) times during the Financial Year under review on June 27, 2024, 

September 24, 2024, October 18, 2024, and January 25, 2025. 

Sr. Name of Member of Capacity Number of Meetings of No. of 
No. Director/Member Committee 

since 

(i.e., Executive/ 

Non- 

Committee shares held 

Held ] Attended 
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Executive/ 

Chairman; 

Promoter 

nominee/ 

Independent) 

in the 

NBFC 

1 Mr. Sitaram 

Kunte* 

14.06.2024 Independent 

Director & 

Chairperson of 

Committee 

4 4 0 

2 Mr. Peeyush Misra 04.10.2021 Managing 

Director & CEO 

4 4 0 

3 Mr. Parveen Kumar 

Gupta 

23.12.202 I Independent 

Director 

4 4 18,564 

4 Ms. Anuradha 

Rao# 

22.09.2023 Independent 

Director 

0 0 0 

* Appointed as a member and Chairperson of the Committee w.e.f. June 14, 2024 

# Resigned as a member of the Committee w.e.f. June 14, 2024 

2.4 IT Strategy Committee 

The IT Strategy Committee met four (4) times during the Financial Year under review on June 28, 2024, 

September 25, 2024, December 17, 2024, and January 17, 2025. 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of 

Director-Member 

Member of 
Committee 

since 

Capacity 

(i.e., 
Executive/ 

Non- 

Executive/ 

Chairman/ 
Promoter 

nominee/ 

Independent) 

Number of Meetings of 
Committee 

No. of 

shares held 
in the 
NBFC 

Held Attended 

1 Ms. Anuradha 
Rao* 

30.04.2024 Independent 

Director & 

Chairperson of 

Committee 

4 3 

2 Mr. Peeyush Misra 23.12.2021 Managing 
Director 

CEO 

4 4 

3 Mr. Parveen Kumar 

Gupta 

22.09.2023 Independent 
Director 

4 4 18,564 

4 

5 

Mr. Padmanabhan 

Balasubraman ian# 

23.12.2021 Employee 0 0 3,66,156 

Mr. Dhruirt i I Shah# 23. 12.2021 Employee 0 0 29,284 
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6 Mr. Vivek 

Chhikara# 

23.12.2021 Employee 0 0 0 

7 Mr. Sitaram Kunte" 14.06.2024 Independent 
Director 

4 4 0 

* Appointed as a member of Committee w.e.f. April 30, 2024, and Chairperson w.e.f. June 14, 2024 

# Resigned as the member of Committee w.e.f. April 30, 2024 

A Appointed as a member of the Committee w.e.f. June 14, 2024 

2.5 Asset Liability Committee 

The Asset Liability Committee met Six (6) times during the Financial Year under review on April 26, 2024, 

May 25, 2024, July 29, 2024, October 16, 2024, January 22, 2025, and February 14, 2025. 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of 
Director/Member 

Member of 

Committee 

since 

Capacity 

(i.e., Executive/ 

Non- 
Executive/ 

Chairman/ 

Promoter 

nominee/ 
Independent) 

Number of Meetings of 

Committee 

No. of 
shares held 
in the 
NBFC 

Held Attended 

1 Mr. Peeyush Misra 23.12.2021 Managing 
Director & 

CEO& 

Chairperson of 

Committee 

6 5 0 

2 Mr. Yatin Paliwal 23.12.2021 Employee 6 6 12,982 

3 Mr. Padmanabhan 

Balasubramanian 

23.12.2021 Employee 6 6 3,66,156 

4 Mr. Amit Garg 23.12.2021 Employee 6 6 3,66,156 

5 Mr. Amit Gupta 20.07.2023 Chief Financial 

Officer 

6 6 52,711 

Asset Liability Management (ALM) Support Group: 

The ALM Support Group comprises of the following 

• Mr. Yatin Paliwal — Deputy CFO 

• Mr. Anand Agarwal — Director Treasury 
• Mr. Jim it Shethwala — Director Treasury 

2.6 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met twice (2) during the Financial Year under review on 

November 20, 2024, and December 19, 2024. 
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Sr. 

No. 

Name of 

Director/Member 

Member of 
Committee 

since 

Capacity 

(i.e., Executive/ 

Non- 

Executive/ 

Chairman/ 

Promoter 

nominee/ 

Independent) 

Number of Meetings of 

Committee 

No. of 
shares held 

in the 
NBFC 

Held Attended 

1 Ms. Anuradha Rao 28.10.2023 Independent 

Director 

2 2 0 

2 Mr. Peeyush Misra 28.10.2023 Managing 

Director & CEO 

2 1 0 

3 Mr. Parveen 

Kumar Gupta* 
28.10.2023 Independent 

Director 
0 0 18_564 

4 Ms. Dakshita Das# 14.06.2024 Independent 

Director & 

Chairperson of 

Committee 

2 2 0 

* Resigned as the member of the Committee w.e.f. June 14, 2024 
# Appointed as a member and Chairperson of the Committee w.e.f. June 14, 2024 

2.7 Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee met once (I) during the Financial Year under review on April 30, 
2024. 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of 
Director/Member 

I Member of 

Committee 
since 

Capacity 

(i.e., Executive/ 

Non- 
Executive/ 

Chairman/ 

Promoter 

nominee/ 
Independent) 

Number of Meetings of 
Committee 

No. of 

shares held 
in the 
NBFC 

Held Attended 

1 Ms. Anuradha Rao 20.01.2024 Independent 

Director 

1 1 

2 Mr. Peeyush Misra 20.01.2024 Managing 

Director & CEO 

3 Mr. Parveen Kumar 
Gupta* 

20,01.2024 Independent 

Director 
18,564 

4 Ms. Dakshita Das# 14.06.2024 Independent 

Director & 

Chairperson of 

Committee 

0 0 0 

* Resigned as the member of the Committee w.e.f. June 14, 2024 
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# Appointed as a member and Chairperson of the Committee w.e.f. June_14, 2024 

2.8 Customer Service Committee 

Mr. S. Kalyanram was appointed as Internal Ombudsman of the Company in terms of Master Direction issued 
by Reserve Bank of India. The Customer Service Committee met thrice (3) during the Financial Year under 

review on June 28, 2024, October 10, 2024, and January 8, 2025. 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of 

Director/Member 

Member of 
Committee 

since 

Capacity 

(i.e., Executive/ 

Non- 

Executive/ 

Chairman/ 
Promoter 

nominee/ 

Independent) 

Number of Meetings of 

Committee 

No. of 
shares held 

in the 
NBFC 

Held Attended 

1 Ms. Dakshita Das* 30.04.2024 Independent 

Director & 

Chairperson of 

Committee 

3 3 0 

2 Mr. Peeyush Misra 30.04.2024 Managing 

Director & CEO 

3 3 0 

3 Mr. Sitaram Kunte 30.04.2024 Independent 

Director 

3 3 0 

4 Mr. Parveen Kumar 

Gupta# 

14.06.2024 Independent 
Director 

3 3 18,564 

* Appointed as Chairperson of the Committee w.e.f. June 14, 2024 

# Appointed as a member of the Committee w.e.f. June 14, 2024 

2.9 Share Allotment Committee 

The Share Allotment Committee met once (1) during the Financial Year under review on December 11, 2024. 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of 

Director/Member 

Member of 

Committee 
since 

Capacity 

(i.e., Executive/ 
Non- 
Executive/ 

Chairman/ 
Promoter 

nominee/ 
Independent) 

Number of Meetings of 

Committee 

No. of 
shares held 
in the 
NBFC 

Held Attended 

1 Mr. Peeyush Misra 18.10.2024 Managing 

Director & CEO 

& Chairperson of 
Committee 

1 1 0 
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i 2 Mr. Parveen Kumar 

Gupta 

18.10.2024 Independent 
Director 

I 1 1 8,564 

r3 i Mr. Sitaram Kunte 18.10.2024 Independent 

Director 

I I 

2.10 Review Committee of Wilful Defaulters 

'The Review Committee of Wilful Defaulters did not meet during the Financial Year under review. 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of 

Director/Member 

Member of 

Committee 

since 

Capacity 

(i.e., Executive/ 

Non- 
Executive/ 

Chairman/ 

Promoter 
nominee/ 

Independent) 

Number of Meetings of 

Committee 

No. of 
shares held 
in the 
NBFC 

Held Attended 

Mr. Peeyush Misra 18.10.2024 Managing 

Director & CEO 

0 0 0 

2 Ms. Dakshita Das 18.10.2024 Independent 

Director 

0 

3 Ms. Anuradha Rao 18.10.2024 Independent 
Director 

0 

2.11 Information Security Committee 

The Information Security Committee met four (4) times during the Financial Year under review on April 16, 

2024, August 30, 2024, November 14, 2024, and January 13, 2025. 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of 
Director/Member 

Member 

Committee 

since 

of Capacity 

(i.e., Executive/ 

Non- 

Executive/ 
Chairman! 

Promoter nominee/ 

Independent) 

Number 
Committee 

of Meetings of 

Held Attended 

I Mr. Padmanabhan 
Balasubramanian 

31.03.2024 Employee 4 4 

2 Mr. Dhrumil Shah 31.03.2024 Employee 4 4 

3 Mr. Pranay Pingle 31.03.2024 Employee 4 2 

4 Mr. Ravi Bharti 31.03.2024 Employee 4 4 

5 Mr. Vivek Chhikara 31.03.2024 Employee 4 4 

35 



2.12 IT Steering Committee 

The IT Steering Committee met four (4) times during the Financial Year under review on April 17, 2024, August 

29, 2024, November 15, 2024, and January 13, 2025. 

Sr. 
No. 

Name 
Director/Member 

of Member 

Committee 

since 

of Capacity 
(i.e., Executive/ 

Non- 

Executive/ 

Chairman/ 

Promoter nominee/ 

Independent) 

Number 

Committee 

of Meetings of 

Held Attended 

1 Mr. Amit Garg 31.03.2024 Employee 4 4 

2 Mr. Yogendra Singh 31.03.2024 Employee 4 4 

3 Mr. Vivek Chhikara 31.03.2024 Employee 4 4 

2.13 Identification Committee for Wilful Defaulter 

The Identification Committee for Wilful Defaulter met twice (2) during the Financial. Year under review on 

January 22, 2025, and February 14, 2025. 

Sr. 
No. 

Name 

Director/Member 

of Member 
Committee 

since 

of Capacity 

(i.e., Executive/ 

Non- 
Executive/ 
Chairman/ 

Promoter nominee/ 

Independent) 

Number 

Committee 

of Meetings of 

Held 

• 

Attended 

1 Mr. Amit Garg 18.10.2024 Employee 2 2 

2 Mr. Yogendra Singh 18.10.2024 Employee 2 2 

3 Mr. Vivek Chhikara 18.10.2024 Employee 2 2 

2.14 Fraud Risk Management Committee 

The Fraud Risk Management Committee met once (1) during the Financial Year under review on January 21, 

2025. 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of 

Director/Member 

Member of 
Committee 

since 

Capacity 
(i.e., Executive/ 
Non- 

Executive/ 
Chairman/ _ 
Promoter nominee/ 

Independent) 

Number of Meetings of 
Committee 

Held Attended 

1 Mr. Peeyush Misra 18.10.2024 Managing Director 

& CEO 

. 
1 

36 



Pir/Ill11,1•1% 

172 18.10.2024 Mi. Yogendra Singh 

Mr. Padmanabhan 

Balasubrainanian 

Employee 1 1 

3 -1 18.10.2024 Employee 

4 Mr. Am it Garg 18.10.2024 Employee 

5 Mr. Am it Gupta 18.10.2024 Chief Financial 

Officer 

3. Details of General Board Meetings 

held 1(one) Annual General Meeting. The details are as 
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During the Financial year under review, the Company 

under: 

Sr. 

no 

Type of Meeting 

(Annual/ Extra 

Ordinary) 

Date and Place Resolutions passed 

1 Annual General Meeting August 31, 2024, 

the Registered Office 

at 7th Floor, Block 
B2, Phase I Nirlon 

Knowledge Park, 

Pahadi Village, 

Western Express 
Highway, Cama 

Industrial Estate, 

Goregaon East, 

Mumbai - 400063 

at 

Off. 

Ordinary resolution was passed for the 

following: 

I. Adoption of Annual Financial Statements 

(Standalone and Consolidated) for the 

Financial Year 2023-24 and the Reports of the 

Board of Directors and Auditors 

2. Appointment of M/s. S.R. Batliboi & 

Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, [FRN 

No.: 101049W/E300004] as . the Statutory 

Auditors of the Company 

3. To Appoint a Director in place of Mr. 

Peeyush Misra (DIN: 08422699), who retires 

by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and beirig eligible, has 

offered himself for re-appointment. 

Special Resolution was passed for the 
following: 

4. Appointment of Ms. Dakshita Das (DIN: 

07662681) as an Independent Director of the 
Company 

5. Appointment of Mr. Sitaram Kunte (DIN: 
02670899) as an Independent Director of the 
Company 



6. To Approve Borrowing under section 
180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2 013 

7. Transfer of Loan exposure and / or Creation 
of charge on the Company's assets, both 
present and future, to / in favour of lenders 

8. To approve limits under Section 180(1 )(a) 

for Direct Assignment and Co-lending 

9. Commission to Non-Executive Independent 
Directors of the Company 

4. Details of Non- compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 

The Company has complied with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013, including with respect to 
compliance with accounting and applicable secretarial standards and there being no default in this connection. 

5. Details of Penalties and Strictures 

There were no penalties or stricture imposed on the Company by the Reserve Bank or any other statutory 

authority or regulator. 

6. Breach of covenant 

The details of breach of covenant during the financial year for the loans are availed or debt securities issued are 
disclosed in Note No 50(g) of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company. 

7. Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning 

The details of divergence in asset classification and provisioning during the financial year are disclosed in Note 

No 50(h) of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company. 

8. Disclosure pursuant to Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company —
Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 

Your Company does not lend against collateral of bullion/primary gold/gold coins or for purchase of gold in 
any form during the financial year 2024-25. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

For Protium Fin e Limited 

Peeyus sra 

Chairperson of Board 

DIN: 08422699 

Date: August 14, 2025 

Place: Lonavala 
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ANNEXURE - IV TO BOARD'S REPORT 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

MAKS Et CO. 
Company Secret,71r,

FRY: P2018UP067700 

0: 516, Wave Silver Tower, Sector is, Noida — 2O15O1 
E: servicesrEe,lorecoreprofessionals.com 
D: ±12O 12O 5178O53 

MR-3 

Secretarial Audit Report 

For the Financial Period Ended March 31, 2025 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members, 

Protium Finance Limited 

Regd. Office: 7th Floor, Block B2, Phase-I Nirlon Knowledge Park, 

Pahadi Village, Off. Western Express Highway, Cama Industrial Estate, 

Goregaon East, Maharashtra — 400 063 
[CIN: U65999MH2019PLC323293] 

We, M/s. MAKS & CO., Company Secretaries [FRN: P2018UP067700] have conducted secretarial 

audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and adherence to corporate governance 

practices by Protium Finance Limited [hereinafter referred as ̀ the Company'] for financial year ended 

March 31, 2025 ("Audit Period"). The secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 

reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our 

opinion thereon. 

Limitation of the Auditors 

(i) Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 

and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, 

its officers and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report 

that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period, complied with the statutory 

provisions listed hereunder; and 

(ii) Based on the confirmation and explanation wherever required by us, the Company has proper 

Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 

the reporting made hereinafter. 
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Auditors Responsibility 

(I) Our responsibility is to express the opinion on the compliance with the applicable laws, as per prescribed 
format, and maintenance of records based on audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Secretarial Audit ("Guidance Note") and Auditing Standards issued -by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India ("ICSI"). The Guidance Note and Auditing Standards require that we 

comply with statutory and regulatory requirements and also that we plan and perform the audit so as to 
obtain reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records. 

(ii) Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls, there is an 

unavoidable risk that some misstatements or material non-compliances may not be detected, even though 

the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the Standards. 

(iii) We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the Company's Board processes and compliance-mechanism. 

The Members are requested to read Secretarial Audit Report ("Report") along with our letter dated 
July 23, 2025 enclosed herewith to this Report as Annexure — A. 

1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company for the financial period ended on March 31, 2025 according to the applicable provisions 

of: 

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the `Act') and the Rules made thereunder read with notification issued 
by Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"); 

ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (`SCRA') and the Rules made thereunder; 

iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and byelaws framed thereunder; 

iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowings, as applicable; 

v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992: 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015; 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 

Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 
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E 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 
Regulations. 2021; 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and share transfer agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with clients (Not applicable since 
the Company is not registered as Registrar to Issue and Share Transfer Agent during the audit 
period); 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 
(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not 
applicable to the Company during the audit period); and 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

vi) Based upon the Management Representation wherever required from the Company, its officers, and 
compliance reports from the management for systems and mechanism framed by the Company and 
on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof on test-check basis, we 
further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the 
size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with the following pertinent 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines as specifically applicable to the Company: - 

a) The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934; and 

b) Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company— Scale Based 
Regulation) Directions, 2023. 

2. We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, with respect to 
Board and General Meetings (hereinafter referred as `Secretarial Standards'); and 

ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Listing Agreements entered by the Company with 
BSE Limited. 

During the period under review, to the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, the Company has been regular in compliance with the 
provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations and Secretarial Standards and other applicable laws 
including labour and environmental laws, as applicable to it. 

4. We further report that compliance of applicable financial laws including direct and indirect tax laws 
and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts by the Company has not been reviewed 
in this audit since the same has been subject to review by the Statutory Auditors and other designated 
professionals. 

41 



5. We further report that: 

i) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with Executive Directors, Non—Executive 

Directors and Independent Directors including Women Directors. Further, - the •changes .in the 
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review was carried out 

in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

ii) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board and Committee Meetings. Notice and 
Agenda with notes to Agenda of Board and Committee Meetings was sent at least seven days in 
advance of the meeting except in certain cases where meeting was held at shorter notice and a system 

exists for directors to seek and obtain further information and clarifications on the agenda items before 
the meetings and for their meaningful participation at the meetings. 

iii) Decisions of Board/Committee were carried through majority. We have been informed that there were 
no dissenting members' views on any of the matters during the year that were required to be captured 

and recorded as part of the minutes. 

iv) There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations 
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines. 

v) We further report that during the period covered under the Audit, the Company has no specific actions 
having bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, 
guidelines etc. 

For M/s. MAKS & CO., 
Company Secretaries 
[FRN P2018UP067700] 
Peer View No.: 2064/2024 

Sd/-

Ankush Agarwal 
Partner 

Membership No.: F9719 

COP No.: 14486 
UDIN: F009719G000844993 

Date: 23-07-2025 

Place: Noida, U.P. 
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Annexure —A to Secretarial Audit Report dated July 23, 2025 

lo, 
The Members, 
Protium Finance Limited 
Regd. Office: Nirlon Knowledge Park (NKP) B6, 
2nd Floor, Pahadi Village, Off. Western Express Highway, 
Goregaon (E), Mumbai, Maharashtra — 400 063 

[CIN: U65999MH2019PLC323293] 

The Secretarial Audit Report dated July 23, 2025 is to be read with this Letter. 

1. The compliance of provisions of all laws, rules, regulations and standards applicable to Protium Finance 
Limited (Erstwhile Growth Source Financial Technologies Limited) [hereinafter referred as `the 
Company'] is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our examination was limited to the 
verification of records and procedures on test check basis for the purpose of issue of the Secretarial Audit 
Report.

2. Maintenance of secretarial and other records of applicable laws is the responsibility of the management of 
the Company. Our responsibility is to issue Secretarial Audit Report, based on the audit of the relevant 
records maintained and furnished to us by the Company, along with explanations where so required. 

3. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to 
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices 
followed provide a reasonable basis for the purpose of issue of the Secretarial Audit Report. 

4. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the 
Company as it is taken care in the statutory audit process. 

5. We have obtained the management's representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 
happening of events, wherever required. 

6. This Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For M/s. MAKS & CO., 
Company Secretaries 
[FRN P2018UP067700] 
Peer View No.: 2064/2024 
Sd/-
Ankush Agarwal 
Partner 
Membership No.: F9719 
COP No.: 14486 
UDIN : F009719O0008 44993 
Date: 23-07-2025 
Place: Noida, U.P. 
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ANNEXURE - V TO BOARD'S REPORT 

FORM- AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub-section (I) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length 
transactions under fourth proviso thereto. 

Name of the Company: Protium Finance Limited 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: NIL 

Number of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: NIL 

Block-1 

Corporate identity number (C1N) or foreign 
company registration number (FCRN) or Limited 
Liability Partnership number (LLPIN) or Foreign 
Limited Liability Partnership number (FLLPIN) 
or Permanent Account Number (PAN)/Passport 
for individuals or any other registration number 

Name(s) of the related party 
Nature of relationship 

Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions 
Duration of the contracts / arrangements/ 
transactions 

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transactions including actual / expected 
contractual amount 

Justification for entering into such contracts or 
arrangements or transactions 
Date of approval by the Board (DD/MM/YYYY) 
Amount paid as advances, if any 

Date on which the resolution was passed in 
general meeting as required under first proviso to 
section 188 (DD/MM/YYYY) 

SRN of MGT-14 

Nil 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis: 

Number of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis: 5 
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— -- ----- 
n iiio—c- k - 1 . 

U72900MH2021PTC356128 Corporate identity number (CIN) or foreign 
company registration number (FCRN) or 
Limited Liability Partnership number 
(LLPIN) or Foreign Limited Liability 
Partnership number (FLLPIN) or Permanent 
Account Number (PAN)/Passport for 
individuals or any other registration number 

U72900MH2021PTC356128 

Name(s) of the related party and nature of 
relationship: 

Protium Business Services 
Private limited — Subsidiary 
Company 

Protium Business Services 
Private limited — Subsidiary 
Company 

Nature of 

contracts/arrangements/transactions: 
Sourcing Service Provider Sharing of cost of all 

operation and maintenance of 
common amenities and 
common services including 
the infrastructure and 
manpower cost 

Duration of the contracts / 

arrangements/transactions: 
Since 2021 and renewed on 
October 18, 2024 

Effective from April 1, 2024 

Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transactions including 
actual / expected contractual amount 

Total value of transactions 
during FY25 is INR 2646.21 
lakhs 

Total value of transactions 
during FY25 is INR 1413.33 
lakhs 

Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: April 28, 2021 July 31, 2024 

Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A. N.A. 

Block — 2 

Corporate identity number (CIN) or foreign 
company registration number (FCRN) or 

Limited Liability Partnership 

U72900MH2021PTC356128 U62099KA2023PTC171573 

Name(s) of the related party and nature of 
relationship: 

Protium Business Services 
Private limited — Subsidiary 
Company 

Shibui Technologies Private 
Limited — Subsidiary 
Company 

Nature of 
contracts/arrangements/transactions: 

Loan cum Facility Agreement Software License 
Distribution Agreement 

Duration of the contracts / 
arrangements/transactions: 

Repayable on demand with 
renewal every year 

Ongoing 

Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transactions including 

actual / expected contractual amount 

Loan of INR 5 crores 

Total Loan outstanding —
INR 351.64 lakhs 

Interest Income on a/c of 

Loan —INR 7.81 lakhs 

As per the agreement 
between the parties 
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Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: December 29, 2024 July 20, 2023 

Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A. N.A. 

Block 3 

Corporate identity number (CIN) or foreign 

company registration number (FCRN) or 

Limited Liability Partnership 

U62099KA2023PTC171573 

Name(s) of the related party and nature of 
relationship: 

Shibui Technologies Private 

Limited — Subsidiary 

Company 

Nature of 

contracts/arrangements/transactions: 

Loan cum Facility Agreement 

Duration of the contracts / 

arrangements/transactions: 

Repayable on demand with 

renewal every year 

Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transactions including 

actual / expected contractual amount 

Loan INR I crore 

Total Loan outstanding —

INR 10.30 lakhs 

Interest Income on a/c of 

Loan — INR 1.10 lakhs 

Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: July 31, 2024 

Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

For Protium Finance Limited 

; 

Peeyu isra 
Chairperson of Board 

DIN: 08422699 

Date: August 14, 2025 

Place: Lonavala 
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ANNEXURE - VI TO BOARD'S REPORT 

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities 

for the financial year 2024-25: 

The amounts in this annexure is in Indian Rupees 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company 

The Company through its corporate social responsibility ("CSR") activities intends to participate in the overall 

development of the society and encourage alignment with Social Development Goals (SDGs) related to gender 

sensitivity, skill enhancement, entrepreneurship development, research in education, Hygiene & Water etc. The 

policy lays down the guidelines and mechanism for undertaking socially useful programs for welfare and 

sustainable development of the community at large. The Company's CSR policy has been framed in accordance 

with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder. This Policy covers all the internal 

dimensions of the CSR structure and further captures and sets out the process of implementation of the CSR 

related activities. 

The Company shall undertake specific CSR projects and programmes, as approved from time to time by the 

Board in its capacity as the CSR Committee of the Company, within the objects set out under Schedule VII of 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

2. Composition of CSR Committee 

Sl. No. Name of the Director Designation / 
Nature of 

Directorship 

Number of 

Meetings of 

CSR 
Committee held 

during the year 

Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee 

attended during 

the year 

1. Ms. Dakshita Das Chairperson 2 2 

2. Ms. Anuradha Rao Member 2 2 

3. Ms. Peeyush Misra Member 2 1 

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the 

Board are disclosed on the website of the Company 

• Composition of CSR committee: https://protium.co.in/regulatory-disclosure/ 

• CSR Policy: https://protium.co.in/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Corporate-Social-Responsibility-

Policy.pdf 

• CSR projects: https://protium.co.in/csr/ 

4. Executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in 

pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable 

Not Applicable 
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5. (a) Average Net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): INR 873,048,772 

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5): INR 17,460,976 

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: 

Nil 

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: INR 8,92,000 

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)l: INR 17,460,976 

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): INR 
183,54,342/-

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil 

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable 

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (a+b+c): [NR 183,54,342/-

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

Total Amount 

Spent for the 

Financial Year 

(in Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred 

to Unspent CSR Account 

as per Section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 

under Schedule VII as per second proviso to 

Section 135(5) 

Amount Date of 

transfer 

Name of the Fund Amount Date of 

transfer 

1NR 

183,54,342/-

Nil Nil Not Applicable 

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any 

SI. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.) 

(1) (2) (3) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as 

per sub-section (5) of section 135 

INR 17,460,976/-

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year INR 183,54,342/-

(iii) Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] INR 8,93,366/-

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 

programmes or activities of the previous Financial 

Years, if any 

Nil 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial 

Years [(iii)-(iv)] 

INR 8,92,000/-

7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable 

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility 
amount spent in the Financial Year: No 
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9..Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per 
section 135(5): Not Applicable 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Protium Finance Limited 

Peeyush Misra 
Chairperson of Board 
Managing Director & CEO 
DIN: 08422699 

Dakshita Das 
Chairperson of the CSR Committee 
DIN: 07662681 

Date: August 14, 2025 
Place: Lonavala 
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ANNEXURE VII - TO BOARD'S REPORT 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Protium Finance Limited (PFL) is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company without accepting or holding 

public deposits, as defined under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as applicable and is 

classified as middle layer NBFC based on scale-based regulation. The Company has a diversified lending 

portfolio across various sectors including MSME Business Loans, Educational Institutional Finance, Machinery 

and Equipment Finance. 

Protium has two wholly owned subsidiaries: 

i. Protium Business Services Private Limited 

ii. Shibui Technologies Private Limited 

1. Economic Overview 

World Economic Overview: 

The International Monetary Fund's January 2025 update paints a picture of a global economy that is steady but 
underwhelming. Global growth is projected to remain at 3.3 percent in both 2025 and 2026—below the 
historical average of 3.7 percent. While the overall forecast is largely unchanged from October 2024, this 

stability masks significant divergence across countries. Inflation is expected to decline to 4.2 percent in 2025 

and 3.5 percent in 2026, with advanced economies returning to target levels faster than emerging and developing 

nations. 

Risks to the global outlook are varied and complex. In the short term. Most of the economies face downside 
risks due to elevated policy uncertainty, trade tensions, and geopolitical instability. Over the medium term, risks 

are tilted to the downside globally. Disruptions in the disinflation process, fiscal imbalances, and financial 
instability could derail progress, especially if policy responses are misaligned or delayed. 

The forces shaping this outlook are multifaceted. The U.S. economy continues to outperform, with growth 

projected at 2.7 percent in 2025, driven by strong consumption and investment. China's growth, revised slightly 

upward to 4.6 percent, remains below expectations due to weak consumer confidence and a sluggish property 

market. India stands out with solid growth of 6.5 percent, consistent with its potential. Meanwhile, the euro area 

and Japan are grappling with weak manufacturing and exports, although consumption is beginning to recover. 

Emerging markets show mixed performance, with some regions improving and others slowing down. 

Looking ahead, the global economy faces a precarious path. Protectionist policies, such as new tariffs, could 
disrupt trade flows and investment, hurting growth across regions. The reciprocal tariff regime announced by 
the US and the levy of retaliatory tariffs announced by China and some other countries is likely to have a 

dampening effect on the volume of global trade and output. Imports into the US may be lower. Any increase in 
US output may take much longer and the volume of exports in the export-dependent countries may go down. 

These changes may lead to a slowdown in global growth. 

The IMF (April 2025) has projected a significant global growth slowdown with the projected growth for 2025 
revised downwards to 2.8% from its January 2025 forecast of 3.3%. This is attributed by the IMF. primarily to 

the direct effects of the new trade measures and their indirect effects through trade linkage spillovers, heightened 

uncertainty, and deteriorating sentiment. 
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India's Economic Performance: 

• India's robust economic growth in the first quarter of FY25 has propelled it to become the fifth-largest economy, 
surpassing the UK. Despite global stagnation, rising geopolitical uncertainties, and the looming threat of a tariff 
war driven by growing protectionism. the Indian economy has successfully maintained its position as the 
world's fastest growing major economy. 

According to the provisional estimates released by the National Statistical Office (NSO), Ministry of Statistics 
& Programme Implementation (MoSPI), India's real Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth for FY25 is 
projected at 6.5%. Real GDP is estimated to attain a level of ₹187.97 lakh crore in FY 2024-25, registering a 
growth rate of 6.5%. Nominal GDP is estimated to attain a level of ₹330.68 lakh crore in the FY 2024-25, 
against ₹301.23 lakh crore in FY 2023-24, showing a growth rate of 9.8%. Private Final Consumption 
Expenditure (PFCE) has reported 7.2% growth rate during FY 2024-25 as compared to 5.6% growth rate in the 
previous financial year, supported by a rebound in rural demand. 

A global economic slowdown may negatively impact India's overall exports of goods and services, which 
account for 22% of its GDP. However, a decrease in goods imports to India may mitigate this impact. The 
effects may be mitigated by improved private investment with lower interest rates and continued prioritization 
of infrastructure investment by the government. During its monetary policy review on April 2025, the RBI 
lowered the repo rate by 25 basis points, to 6%, for the second consecutive time. Further, the RBI lowered the 
repo rate by 50 basis points to 5.5% in June 2025. Additionally, the RBI has shifted from a neutral to an 
accommodating position in April 2025 and again shifted back to neutral in June 2025. CPI inflation is predicted 
to stay at 4% or lower in FY26 after dropping to a 67-month low of 3.3% in March 2025. CPI inflation may be 
kept within the parameters of the monetary policy target thanks to the decline in global crude prices. 

Role of NBFCs in India's Financial Ecosystem: 

NBFCs have emerged as a crucial component of India's financial ecosystem over the past two decades. With 
exposure to both banking and capital markets, they have become an important source of credit for low-income 
households and businesses that lack collateral or sufficient credit profiles for bank credit. Through a vast 
network of branches, digitalization, and innovative solutions, NBFCs have expanded their presence among 
MSMEs and consumers, particularly in financing businesses, vehicles, housing, and gold. The transformative 
shift in India's financial services landscape over recent years, driven by digital innovations such as neo banking, 
digital authentication, the proliferation of the Unified Payments Interface (UPI), and rising mobile intemet 
usage, has redefined the dynamics of financial services, particularly credit. This modularization of financial 
services has empowered NBFCs to design and deliver specialized, accessible financial products to a broader 
customer base, improving both reach and relevance. Overall, NBFC credit stood at about Rs. 52 trillion in 
December 2024 and it is set to exceed Rs. 60 trillion in FY2026. Within this, the retail assets, which accounted 
for 58% of the overall NBFC credit in December 2024, have been the key growth drivers, while other wholesale 
and infrastructure credit expanded at a stable rate of 10-12% during FY2023-FY2025. 

Regulatory evolution has been another defining factor for the NBFC sector. The RBI's introduction of a scale 
based regulatory framework has brought a more nuanced oversight approach, categorizing NBFCs based on 
their size, complexity, and systemic importance. This framework aims to strengthen financial stability by 
ensuring that more prominent and interconnected NBFCs are subject to enhanced regulatory scrutiny. In 
addition, the RBI has sharpened its focus on customer protection, transparency in pricing, and governance 
standards, raising the bar for operational compliance across the sector. 
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According to a CRISIL report, infrastructure financing accounts for the largest share of NBFC cred it at 24%, 

followed by MSME loans, which hold a 21% share of overall NBFC credit. Housing finance represents the third 

largest share of total outstanding NBFC credit, with a 16% share. 

MSME Sector: Backbone of India's Development Story: 

The MSME sector has been a major driver of India's development, contributing significantly to the country's 

rise as the world's fifth-largest economy. These enterprises employ millions of people and export billions of 
Make in India products, elevating their role in the Indian economy over the years. With the current 
transformation in global supply chain networks, MSMEs are set to play a pivotal role in achieving India's goal 

of becoming an economically self-reliant country under the 'Aatmanirbhar Bharat' initiative. M SME are 

contributing —30% to India's GDP, responsible for approximately 50% of countries exports and employing 62% 

employment in India. Hence, it is crucial to improve MSMEs' access to finance and explore innovative solutions 
to unlock sources of capital. 

Formalization of the MSME Sector: 

Regulatory policies and the creation of a public digital infrastructure are pivotal in increasing the formalization 

of the MSME sector in India. Reforms such as UDYAM registration, GST, e-invoicing, and GeM, along with 

schemes like ECLGS, PMMY, and CGTMSE, have been undertaken by the Government of India and the RBI 

to enhance formalization and improve the health of MSMEs. Additionally, the development of a digital stack 
for MSMEs, comprising Udyog Aadhaar Memorandum (UAM), Account Aggregator (AA), and Open Credit 
Enablement Network (OCEN), is expected to reduce sourcing costs and improve loan sanction turnaround time. 
India's Micro, Small, and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector grew significantly in FY 25, with 6.60 crore 
MSMEs registered on the Udyam Registration Portal and Udyam Assist Platform, employing 28.64 crore 
people. The industry contributed 6.11% of India's manufacturing GDP and 24.63% of the GDP from services. 

NBFCs: Driving Credit to Unbanked Pockets: 

NBFCs have been instrumental in channeling credit to the MSME sector, especially in the vast unbanked regions 
of the country. With an extensive distribution network and adoption of digital processes, technology-driven data 
analytics, and unconventional credit underwriting practices, NBFCs have effectively catered to the needs of 
small businesses. They have introduced personalized products based on the risk profiles and demands of 
different MSME segments and have forged partnerships with fintech players, banks, and alternative lenders to 
extend credit and bundled products for businesses. While banks continue to dominate term loan provisions, 
NBFCs have taken the lead in providing unsecured loans to the sector. NBFCs have emerged as key MSME 

lenders, outpacing private banks (20.9%) and public banks (10.4%) in growth, according to CareEdge Ratings. 
MSME AUM for NBFCs is expected to cross 5.3 lakh crore by FY26. 

2. Company Overview 

We have witnessed significant growth in recent years, not only in numbers but also in our product offerings. 
Our tailor-made and flexible financial products cater to the right people at the right time. Protium, born during 

the COVID-19 period, enjoys the advantage of an insignificant pre-COVID portfolio. Demonstrating our 
commitment to operational excellence, engineering principles are ingrained extensively across all facets and 
processes of lending within Protium. Furthermore, our strength is further fortified by a seasoned and 
accomplished leadership team, possessing profound expertise in the specific segthents we serve. 

Currently, the Company's physical presence spans over 104 branches in 82 cities across 19 states and UT. The 

Company focuses broadly on following categories: 
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(i) SMIl'; Lending, 

a. Loan against property 
b. Unsecured business loan 

(ii) Machinery and Equipment Finance, 

(iii) Educational Institutional Finance, 

(iv) Consumer Lending 

The Company has continued to focus on diversifying its products and expanded its distribution while 
augmenting its digital infrastructure and offerings to effectively deliver credit solutions to its market. 

The Company recorded 30.98% of growth in Loans and Advances. Whereas loan disbursement showed 10.44% 
growth during the year. The Company posted total income and net profit of INR 1,075.61 Crores and INR 
171.24 Crores, respectively, for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, as against INR 727.63 Crores and 
INR 116.75 Crores respectively, in the previous financial year. The total income and profit before tax has 
increased by 41.99% and 42.55% respectively for the Financial Year ended as on March 31, 2025, compared to 
previous financials. 

The Company's business model continues to generate healthy pre-impairment operating profits enabling it to 
withstand higher credit costs in times of stress. The capital-to-risk weighted asset ratio (CRAB) is 45.68% as 
on 31 March 2025. 

The Company also undertakes lending under co-lending model with banks. Further, the Company has also 
assigned the pool of certain loans by way of direct assignment transaction during the year. The total principal 
outstanding of the loans transferred through assignment during the year was 866.46 Crores in FY2024-25 
against 389.17 Crores in previous year. During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company transferred loans 
amounting to Rs. 1401.15 Crores through co-lending arrangements to the respective participating banks. 

The performance highlights for FY2025 are given below: 

The Company has maintained a healthy capital adequacy ratio over the years, well above the levels directed by 
the RBI. As of 31st March 2025, the overall capital adequacy ratio of the Company was 45.68%. The Company 
had total borrowings of INR 3,801.88 Crores as on 31 March 2025. All the Company's borrowings are 
collateralized borrowings (secured against a pool of loan assets) except FD/OD facilities. 

Key Parameters: 

Customers base was at 5.36 Lakhs as on 31 March 2025 

• Total income increased by 41.99% 

• Profit before tax increased by 42.55% 

• Profit after tax increased by 46.67% 

• Total Assets increased by 25.64% 

• Gross NPA was at 2.41% as on 31 March 2025 

• Net NPA was at 1.51% as on 31 March 2025 

• Provision coverage ratio on NPA accounts was at 37.99% and the Total provisions as a 
NPA was 91.53% as on 31 March 2025 

• Leverage of the company is at 1.54 as on 3 I March 2025.

• 65.09% of the Company's loan and advances are secured 

of Gross 
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Gross loans and advances 

• 4331 

323 

 .1 

1443 

• 2407 

3281 

Mar-21 Mar-22 Mar-23 Mar-24 Mar-25 

Technology 
Protium's steadfast dedication to technological innovation has enabled improved flexibility and process 
effectiveness. Technological innovation has always been a key part of Protium's journey, consistently leading 
to faster customer growth, enhanced customer satisfaction, and simplified back-office processes. The 
Company's digital capabilities have been crucial in ensuring smooth operations, supporting its people, fulfilling 
customer needs, and providing uninterrupted business continuity. 

Risk Management 

To cope with competitive business scenarios involving assets and liabilities, the Company, Protium, maintains 
a healthy balance between spreads, profitability, and long-term sustainability. Structured actions are taken to 
manage risks related to asset and liabilities maturity, including credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, and 
operational risk. Protium's clear risk governance structure facilitates regular reviews and close supervision, 
ensuring a responsible business approach. Advanced risk management capabilities are strategically developed, 
covering risk management principles, policies, strategies, processes, and controls. The Company remains well-
prepared for continued growth while complying with RBI's scale-based regulation for NBFCs. 

Credit risk: Credit risk is reduced by accurately evaluating borrowers' creditworthiness, using data science and 
technology capabilities to assess repayment ability, credit history, and relevant factors. Collateral is used to 
reduce credit risk for financial assets with longer durations. 

Liquidity risk: Liquidity risk is carefully monitored, ensuring timely payment obligations and cost-effective 
management. Protium's strong liquidity management framework ensures adequate liquidity to meet debt service 
obligations and balance sheet expansion. 

Interest rate risk: Interest rate risk is managed with sensitivity analysis on fixed and floating rate assets and 
liabilities with different maturity profiles. Various factors, such as maturities profile, pricing of borrowings, and 
macro-economic developments, affect changes in interest rates. 

Operational risk: Operational risk, inherent in business activities, is efficiently managed through identification 
and definition of Key Risk Indicators (KRI)/Key Performance Indicators (KPI). Action plans are formulated 
based on observed trends, and root cause analysis guides corrective actions for internal processes, systems, and 
external events. 
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3. Asset Liability Management (ALM) 

The Company employs a highly effective risk management system that comprehensively addresses the issues 
inter-alia, related to interest rate and liquidity risks. Business decisions are governed by a dynamic and 
integrated risk management process aligned with corporate strategy. 

Asset Liability Management (ALM) is seamlessly integrated into the Company's financial management process. 
This strategic balance sheet management encompasses risks stemming from fluctuations in interest rates, 
exchange rates, and liquidity positions. Risks are assessed and the asset-liability portfolio is dynamically 
adjusted to effectively manage potential exposures. 

The scope of ALM function can be described as follows: 

1. Liquidity risk management 

2. Interest Rate risk management 

3. Funding and Capital Planning 

4. Forecasting and analyzing 'What if scenario and preparation of contingency plans 

4. Internal Control System 

Internal financial control over financial reporting refers to the policies and procedures of a company that: 

Ensure that the records are maintained in a reasonable manner, reflecting the transactions and dispositions 
of the company's assets accurately and fairly. 

Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as required to allow preparation of financial 
statement in accordance with accounting principles, and that the company's receipts and expenditures are 
authorized by the management and director of the company. 

Provide reasonable assurance about preventing or detecting unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the 
company's assets that could affect the financial statement significantly. 

The Company has a strong policy framework for enforcing strict control over business processes and protecting 
all assets. The Company enhanced controls, revised policies, and improved technology systems to address 
identified control deficiencies. These actions ensure full compliance with laws and regulations, reliability in 
financial reporting, and effective management information. 

The internal audit function audits key areas based on audit plans, approved by the Audit Committee after risk 
evaluation. Findings are reviewed by the Committee, leading to remedial actions across functional areas to 
improve the internal control framework. Our policies follow industry best practices and are periodically 
reviewed and strengthened to deal with emerging risks. 
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5. Human Resources 

The Company values its people as its greatest assets. With a perfect blend .of youth and. experi ence, the 

organization's success is rooted in the capability, passion, and integrity of its people. As of March 3 1 ,, 2025, the 

company employed 1,189 individuals, a significant increase from 1,774 on March 31, 2024: Notably, 73 female 

employees were onboarded through employee referrals in the past year. Women now constitute I 1 % of the 

people. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

For Protium Finance Limited 

tA> 
Peeyush Misra 

Chairperson of Board 

DIN: 08422699 

Date: August 14, 2025 

Place: Lonavala 
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Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Protium Finance Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

12th II:KA. hr.! Ruby 
29 Serlarxii Biwa; helar;j 
Dadar (Wt
Mt imbai 40007? India 

Tel I 91 72 tblo 80(1O 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Protium Finance Limited (hereinafter referred to as 
-the Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as 
"the Group") comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the 
consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial 
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter 
referred to as "the consolidated financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the 
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025, their 
consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated 
statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements' section of our 
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis For our audit opinion on the 
consolidated finanr.ial statements 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional Judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters For each matter below, our 
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated 
financial statements section of our report, including In relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included 
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the consolidated financial statements. The results of audit procedures performed by us, including those 
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements 

A. Key audit matters of the Holding Company 

Key audit matters  How our audit addressed the key audit matter 
(a) Impairment of loans (expected credit losses) (refer note 7 and note 42 to the consolidated financial 
statements) 
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 109 Financial Our audit procedures included the following-
Instruments requires the Holding Company to 

•  provide for impairment of its loans using the Considered the Holding Company's accounting

expected credit loss (ECL) approach. ECL involves policies for impairment of loans and assessed 

an estimation of probability weighted loss on compliance with Ind AS 109 and the governance
framework approved by the Board of Directors financial assets over their life, considering 

- N Bnlllbll G Assa9ale,lLP. a Umiled L,abiliry Partnership welt ILI' Moles No AAts 4295 
Reyd Office 2' lama,  Street Block B', 'rd Flom KoBela o16 
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Key audit matters 
reasonable and supportable information about past 
events, current conditions, and forecasts of future 
economic conditions and other factors which could 
impact the credit quality of the Holding Company's 
loans. 

In the process, a significant degree of judgement 
and estimates have been applied by the 
management for: 

• Grouping of borrowers (retail loan portfolio) 
based on homogeneity for estimating 
probability of default (PD), loss given default 
(LGD) and exposure at default (EAD); 

• Staging of loans (i.e. classification as 
"significant increase in credit risk" (SICR) or 
"credit impaired" categories) based on overdue 
status and/or qualitative assessment; 

• Application of an appropriate statistical/ 
quantitative model for determining the PD, LGD 
and EAD estimates; 

• Determining relevant macro-economic and 
other factors impacting credit quality of loans. 

The Holding Company has also recorded a 
management overlay as part of its ECL, to reflect 
among other things an increased risk of 
deterioration In relevant macro-economic factors.

In view of the high degree of management's 
judgement involved in estimation of ECL and the 
overall significance of the Impairment loss 
allowance to the consolidated financial statements, 
it is considered as a key audit matter. 

• 

How our audit addressed the key audit matter 
pursuant to applicable Reserve Bank of India 
guidelines ("the RBI Guidelines"). 

• Evaluated the reasonableness of the management 
estimates by understanding the process of ECL 
estimation and related assumptions. Tested the 
internal controls around extraction, validation and 
computation of the input data used in such 
estimation. 

• Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based on 
their overdue status to check compliance with 
requirement of Ind AS 109. Tested a sample of 
performing (stage 1) loans to assess whether any 
SICR or impairment indicators were present 
requiring them to be classified under stage 2 or 
stage 3. 

Involved internal specialist for testing of the ECL 
estimates, including factors that affect the PD, LGD 
and EAD considering various forward looking 
macro-economic and other factors. 

Tested assumptions used by the management in in 
respect of post-model adjustments. 

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of 
ECL provision performed by the Holding Company. 

Assessed adequacy of disclosures included in the 
consolidated financial statements in respect of 
expected credit losses. 

(b) IT systems and controls 
The financial accounting and reporting systems of 
the Holding Company are fundamentally reliant on 
IT systems and IT controls to process significant 
transaction volumes. Automated accounting 
procedures and IT environment controls, which 
include IT governance, general IT controls over 
program development and changes, access to 
programs and data and IT operations, are required 
to be designed and to operate effectively to ensure 
accurate financial reporting. 

Any gaps in the IT control environment could result 
in a material misstatement of the financial 
accounting and reporting records. 

Therefore, In view of the pervasive nature and 
complexity of the IT environment, the assessment 
of the general IT controls and the application 
controls specific to the accounting and preparation 
of the financial information Is considered to be a key 
audit matter 

Our audit procedures, assisted by our internal IT 
experts, on the IT infrastructure and applications 
relevant to financial reporting included the following: 

• The aspects covered in the assessment of IT 
general controls comprised: 0) User Access 
Management; (ii) Program Change Management; 
(iii) Other related ITGCs - to understand the design 
and test the operating effectiveness of such 
controls in respect of information systems that are 
Important to financial reporting ("In-scope 
applications") 

• Tested the changes that were made to the in-scope 
applications during the audit period to assess 
changes that have Impact on financial reporting. 

• Tested the Holding Company's periodic review of 
access rights. We also inspected requests of 
changes to systems for appropriate approval and 
authorization. 

• Tested the configuration of the audit trail feature 
In the accounting software and maintenance of 
back-up as per extant regulatory requirements. 

pie 
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

• 

• 

Performed tests of controls (including other 
compensatory controls, wherever applicable) on 
the IT application controls and IT dependent 
manual controls in the system. 

Tested the design and operating effectiveness of 
compensating controls in case deficiencies were 
Identified and, where necessary, extended the 
scope of our substantive audit procedures. 

Other Information 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial 
statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. When we read the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are 
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these 
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the 
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, 
consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes In equity of the Group In accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified 
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of their 
respective company(ies) and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and the design, Implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included 
in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of their respective company(ies) to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies Included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing 
the financial reporting process of their respective company(ies) 

A4 
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Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the 
audit of the financial statements of such entitles included in the consolidated financial statements of which 
we are the independent auditors. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities Included 
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the Independent auditors regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 
2025 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, In extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
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Other Matters 

The consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company for the year ended March 31, 2024, included in 
these consolidated financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an 
unmodified opinion on those statements on April 30, 2024. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure 1" a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books except that, for the accounting software used by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries for 
payroll and vendor record maintenance and processing (operated by third-party software service 
providers), we have not been able to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence that the backup 
of books maintained in electronic mode was maintained on servers physically located in India on a daily 
basis, as explained in note 57 to the consolidated financial statements, and the matters stated in the 
paragraph 2(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, as amended; 

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the 
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated 
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account 
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 
March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of 
the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary companies, 
none of the directors of the Group's companies, incorporated in India, is disqualified as on 
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director In terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

(f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are 
as stated In paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 2 (i)(vi) 
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended; 

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the Internal financial controls, with reference to the consolidated 
financial statements, to the extent applicable to the Holding Company and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure 2" to this report. In our opinion and 
according to the information and explanation given to us, the said report on internal financial controls 
is not applicable to the subsidiary companies, which are incorporated in India, basis the exemption 
available to the subsidiaries under MCA notification no. G.S.R. 583(E) dated June 13, 2017, read with 
corrigendum dated July 13, 2017 on reporting on internal financial controls with reference to the 
financial statements; 

(h) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been paid / 
provided by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India to their directors in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act; 
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(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us, as noted in the 'Other matter' paragraph: 

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its 
consolidated financial position of the Group, in its consolidated financial statements - Refer Note 
36 to the consolidated financial statements; 

H. Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the 
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, If any, on long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts Refer Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements 

Hi. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, incorporated in India, during the 
year ended March 31, 2025. 

iv a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are companies 
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have 
represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 50 to the 
consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding 
Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), Including foreign 
entities ('Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Holding Company 
or any of such subsidiaries ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are 
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act 
have represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 50 
to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the respective Holding 
Company or any of such from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (•Funding 
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding 
Company or any of such subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures/ joint operations shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or Invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances performed by us, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe 
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement. 

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company and its 
subsidiaries, incorporated in India. 

vi. Based on our examination which Included test checks, the Holding Company and its subsidiaries 
have used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility, and the same has operated throughout the year for all 
relevant transactions recorded In the software except that, in respect of a software used for loan 
origination, the audit trail was not enabled, and for other software used for general ledger and 
loan management, the audit trail feature was not enabled for direct changes to database when 
using certain access rights, and in respect of certain software for payroll and vendor record 
maintenance and processing (operated by third-party software service providers), In the absence 
of an appropriate Service Organization Controls report, we are unable to comment on whether 
the audit trail feature was enabled and operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded in such software or whether there were any instances of the audit trail feature being 
tampered with, as described in note 57 to the consolidated financial statements. Further, during 
the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered 
with, where the audit trail was enabled. Additionally, the audit trail of relevant prior years has 
been preserved by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries as per the statutory requirements 
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for record retention, to the extent it was enabled and recorded in those respective years, as 
stated in note 57 to the consolidated financial statements 

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004 

per Amit Lahoti 
Partner 
Membership Number: 132990 

UDIN: 25132990BMORTN9374 

Mumbai 
May 12, 2025 
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements" of our Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements 
of Protium Finance Limited 

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Holding Company and the books of 
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, 
we state that the qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in their reports on Companies 
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 of the companies included in the Consolidated Financial Statements are: 

Sr. 
No. 

Name CIN Holding 
company/ 

Subsidiary/ 
associate 

Clause number of 
the CARO report 

which is unfavorable 
or adverse 

1 Protium Finance Limited U65999MH2019PLC323293 Holding 
Company 

3(III)(c) 
3(vii)(a) 

2 Protium Business Services 
Private Limited 

U72900MH2021PTC356128 Subsidiary 
Company 

3(vil)(a) 

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004 

, 4 c 

per Amit Lahoti 
Partner 
Membership Number: 132990 

UDIN: 25132990BMORTN9374 

Mumbai 
May 12. 2025 
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2(g) under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements" of our Independent Auditors' Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements 
of Protium Finance Limited 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Protium Finance Limited (hereinafter 
referred to as the 'Holding Company) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to the extent applicable to the Holding 
Company. Pursuant to Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notification no. G.S.R. 583(E) dated June 13, 2017, 
read with corrigendum dated July 13, 2017 on reporting on internal financial controls, clause (i) of section 
143(3) of the Act Is not applicable to the subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in India. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Holding Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Holding 
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention arid detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards 
on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both, issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the 
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 
assessment of the.risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 
Internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, In reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements In accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, arid that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to 
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Holding Company has maintained in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31,2025, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL 

For S. R Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number• 101049W/E300004 

per Amit Lahoti 
Partner 
Membership Number: 132990 

UDIN: 25132990BMORTN9374 

Mumbal 
May 12,2025 
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Censolkiated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 

Particulars Note No. As at 

March 31, 2025 

As at 

March 31,2024 
Assets 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 4 84,630_62 90,01110 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 5 41,955 82 42,454 10 
Derivative financial instrument 13 41.52 
Trade receivables 6 1,026.95 992.23 
Loans 7 4,13,566.81 3,23,371.37 
Investments 8 51,666 76 26,149.98 
Other financial assets 9 35,857 12 23,898.32 

6,38,795.61 5,06,889.19 

Non-financial assets 
Current tax assets (netl 65867 1,418.58 
Property plant and equipment 10 2,307.82 3,14159 
Intangible assets under development IL 87.55 111.06 

Intangible assets 11 3,207.53 3,271.26 
Other nen.fina nom! assets 12 4,311.54 2,009.91 

10.573.11. 9,946.96 

Total assets 6,49,368 72 5,16.83600 

Liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

Derivative financial instrument 13 35 04 
Trade payables 14 
ti) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and Mao enterprises 347 32 916.66 
(ill total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 479.96 1,481A9 
Debt Securities 15 2,517.94 10,592.30 
Borrowings tether than debt securities) 16 3,77,669.69 2,53,717.86 
Other financial liabilities 17 10,929.81 19,209.93 
Total financial liabilities 3,91,839.72 2.80,952.78 

Non-financial liabilities 

Provisions 18 547.99 333 59 
Deferred ha liabilities [net) 19 6,609.68 3,912.41 
Other non-financial liabilities 20 4,034.14 3,231.21 

11,191.81 7,477.20 

Equity 
Equity share capital 21 14,569.21 14,514.23 
Other equity 22 2,31,767.98 2,13,89138 

2.46,337.19 2,28,406.01 

Total liabilities and equity 6,49,368.72 5,16,836.00 

Material accounting policies 1.1 
See accompanying notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statement 4.•.: 

As per our report of even date attached 

For 5.R. Batlibol & Associates UP 

Chattered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number 101049W/E300004 

er Amlt [AOC 
Partner 

Membership NO 132990 

For and on behalf of the Board of tkeclorl 
Protium Finance Limited 

aeefush Misra Pardee I Gupta 
Managing Director & CEO I. . pendent Director 
DIN: 06421699 i  DIN: 02895343 

0; 

cr' 
r},-is k.A.), 

MI.PwsAi 
Omit up 
Chief Ana Gal ONner 

Anshu MAU 
Company Secretary 

at Membership No: A18297 

Place Mumbal ss:f...71ACCOL110 place: Mumbal Place: Mumbai 
Dale 12 May 2025 Date' .L2 May 2015 Date' 12 May 2025. 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Lou for the year ended March 31. 2025 
t in lakhsl 

Particulars Nate No. For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended March 
31, 2024 

Revenue from operations 
Interest income 23 69,346.55 51,012.54 
Fees and commission income 24 9,430.15 5,150.48 
Net gain/floss) on fair value changes 25 32385.75 64.14 
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category 26 22,038.68 16,535.41 
Total revenue from operations 1,04.701.13 72.762-57 

Other Income 27 2,85979 2,988.97 

Total income 1,07,560.92 75,751.54 

Expenses 
Finance cost 28 30,444.24 18,997.70 
Impairment on financial instruments 29 15,100.23 6,791 42 
Employee bandits expenses 30 24.891.88 21.41434 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 31 3,176.78 2,392.83 
Other expenses 32 11,253 17 10,304.24 
Total expenses 84.966 30 59,900.93 

Profit before tax 22,594.62 15,850.61 

Tax expenses: 
Prior period tax (329.78) • 
Current tax 2.790.15 1.493 64 

Deferred tax 3,010.37 2681.89 
Profit for the year 17,123.88 12675.13 

Other Comprehensive Income (00) 
hi Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

- Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans (52.10) (36.181 
Oil Income Tax impact thereon 13.11 9.11 
Subtotal (a) 
(ii Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 

- The effective portion of gain / (loss) on hedging Instruments 

(38.99) 

068.761 

(27.07) 

(35 04) 
- The effective portion of gain / (loss) on loans- DCI (223.151 

(Ii) Income Tax Impact thereon 300.00 8.82 
Subtotal (b) (89101) (26.22) 
Other comprehenshre income (a a b) (93089) (aM 
Total comprehensive income for the year 16,192.99 11,621.84 
Prolk for the period/year attributable to 
Owner of the company 17,123.88 11,675 13 
Non.controlling Interest 
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) attributable to: 
Owner of the company (930.89) (53 29) 
Non-controlling interest 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to; 
Owner of the company 16,192.99 11,621.84 
Non-controlling Interest 
Earnings per equity share [nominal value of share: R30 (Previous year: R10) 
Basic (R) 34 11 78 10.66 
Diluted (4) 34 11.74 10.66 

Material accounting policies 1.3 
See accompanying notes forming pan of the Consolidated financial statement 4-61 

As per our report of even date attached 
For S.R. Batilbel 8, Associates LIP 
Chartered Accountants 
IOU Firm Registration Number 101049W/6300004 

er Arnit Laholl 
Partner 
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Company Secretary 
Membership No :A18287 

Place Mumbai 
Date 12 May 2025 



Protium Finance Limited 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025 
e in lakhs 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Profit before tax 22,594.62 15,850.61 
Adjustments: 
Depreciation and amortization 3,176.78 2,392.83 
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 17.11 46.50 
Impairment on financial instrument 15,200 23 6,791.42 
Net gain on fair value changes (3,551.34) (156.74) 
Share based payment expense 825.46 439.66 
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 38,262.86 25,364.27 
Changes In working capital 
(Increase)/Decrease in loans (1,15,399.54) (93,174.52) 
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (57.84) (688.75) 
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets (12,146.91) (14,531.35) 
(Increase)/Decrease In other non-financial assets (2,306.18) (669.63) 
(Decrease)/Increase In provision 6.22 110.23 
(Decrease)/Increase in lease liability (1,387.49) (812.44) 
(Decrease)/Increase in Trade payables (1,570.87) 2,005.78 
(Decrease)/Increase in Other financial liabilities (2,952.23) (17,699.53) 
(Decrease)/Increase in Other non-f Manual liabilities 959.01 (5,531.08) 
Cash generated from operations (96,592.97) (1,05,627.02) 
Income taxes paid (Net of Refund) (1,700.46) (1,569.15) 
Net cash flow (used in) /generated from operating activities (A) (98,293.43) (1,07,196.17) 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (340.69) (1,024.08) 
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 134.27 78.56 
Addition of intangible assets including intangible under development (1,122.21) (756.94) 
Purchase of investments' (21,978.58) (22,439.61) 
Proceeds from redemption of fixed deposits with banks 97,348 62 59,871.67 
Placement of fixed deposits with banks (96,835.31) (1,00,560.99) 
Net cash (used In) / generated from investing activities (8) (22,793.91) (64,831.39) 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from debt securities - 69,585.29 
Repayment of debt securities (7,475.00) (33,382.57) 
Proceeds from borrowings (other than debt securities) 2,61,542.09 1,73,226.26 
Repayment of borrowings (other than debt securities) (1,39,234.93) 163,045.161 
Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital 912.70 83,771.12 
Share issuance expenses (4.85) 
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (C) 1,15,744.86 2,30,150.09 

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + Ft + C) (5,342.48) 58,122.53 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 90,023.10 31,900.57 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 84,680.62 90,023.10 

Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the balance sheet 
Cash on hand -
Balances with banks 
- in current accounts 28,897 67 31,316.85 
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 55,782.95 58,706.25 
Cash and cash equivalents in cash flow statement 84,680.62 90,023.10 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025 

1) Net cash generated from operating activity is determined after adjusting the following 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Interest received 
Interest paid 

57,456.31 
28,893 45 

43,483.60 
18,536 66 

(3 in lakhs) 

2) Purchase of investment is after adjustment of proceeds from sale/redemption of investment 

3) Changes in liability arising from financing activities .-

(A) Changes in capital and asset structure arising from financing activities and investing activities 

The Company does not have any financing activities and investing activities which affect the capital and asset structure of the Company without the use of cash and cash 
equivalents. 
(B) Changes in liability arising from financing activities (tin lakhs) 
Particulars As at 01-04-2024 Cash flows Change in fair value Other As at 31-03-2025 
Debt securities 10,592 30 (8,074.36) 2,517 94 
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 2,53,717.86 1,22.906.46 1,045.31. 3,77,669.63 
Total 2,64,310.16 1,14,832.10 1,095 31 3,80,187 57 

(tin laths) 
Particulars As at 01-04-2023 Cash flows Change in fair value Other As at 31-03-2024 
Debt securities 5,024 26 5,568.04 10,592 30 
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 1,12,901.76 1,40,816.10 2,53,717.86 
Total 1,17,926 02 1,46,384 14 2,69,310.16 

As per our report of even date attached 

For S.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 101049W/E300004 

h 
/per Amit Lahoti 

Partner 
Membership No 132990 \ 1 ASsoN 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Dire 
Protium Finance Limited 

P8eyush Misra 
Managing Director & CEO 
DIN. 08422699 

AmirCiupta 
Chief Financial Officer 

of 

arveen Kumar a 
Independ.. rector 
DI 895343 

r /ti u. kto 
Anthu Mphta 
Company Secretary 
Membership No: A18287 

Place' Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai 
Date 12 May 2025 Date: 12 May 2025 Date: 12 May 2025 



Protium Finance Limited 

Statement of changes In equ ily for the year ended March 31, 2025 

A. Equity share capital 

in akhs 
Particulars AS at 

March 31,2026 
ASO! 

Mardi 31,2024 
Balance as at the beginning of the year 14,514 23 9,467 78 
Changes in Equity Share Capita due to pr or period oilers 

Restated balance at the begrnn ng of the current report rig 
per od 

14,514 23 9 467 78 

Changes In equity Share Capita dui ng the year 54.92 5,04643 

Balance as at the end of the year 1456921 14,514.23 

It Other equity 

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Income 
. .. ._......, 

Securities 
Premium 

Statutory 
Reserve 

Share based 
payment 

Retained 
earnings 

General 
Reserve 

Fair value af 
loans carded at 

FVTOCI 

Cash flow 
hedge reserve 

Total 

Balance as at April 1, 2024 1,97,780.10 3,65549 439.66 11,843.75 126 22) 2,13,291 78 
Profit for the year 17,123.33 17,123.88 
Other comprehensive incornelper of taxi • )38.99) (f66.98) i724.92) (930.89) 
Total Comprehensive Income • - 17,024.69 (166.98) )724,92) 16,192.99 
Issue of equity nstrurnents 1.14901 - 1,149.01 
Share issue expenses - - 
Transfer to statutory reserve 3.420 13 (3,42013) - 
Transfer on account of vested options lapsed (38.17) 31.17 • 
Transfer on account of stock options exercised 0.42 (0.42) - 
Share based payment during the year 534.19 • 534.13 
Balance as at March 31, 2025 1,98,929 53 7,275 62 935.22 25,507.571 38.17 (166.58) (751 14) 2,31,767.98 

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Income 
Securities 
Premium 

Statutory 
Reserve 

Share based 
payment 

Retained 
earnings 

General 
Reserve 

Fair Value of 
roans carried at 

FVTOCI 

Cash flaw 
hedge reserve 

Total 

Balance anal April 1, 2023 1,19,060 29 1,550.06 2,500 04 - 1,23,110.40 
Profit for the year - • 11,675.13 - - 11,675 13 
Other comprehensive Income(net of tax) • • - - (27.07) - (26.22) (33.29) 
Total Comprehensive Income - - - 11,648.33 - (25-22) 11,621.84 
Mg of equity instruments 76,724.55 - . 78,724.66 

Share issue expenses 
Transfer to statutory reserve 

(4.55) - 
2,30543 - 

• 
(2,305.43) 

- 
• - 

(4.35) 

Share based payment dur ng the year - 439.66 - 439.66 
Balance as at March 33 2024 1,97,730 10 3,855 49 439.66 11,242 75 (16.22) 2.23,892.78 

For S.R Batlibol & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Reg strafes Number 101049W/L300004 

per MIN Lahoti 
Partner 
Membership No 132990 

Place: Mumbal 
Date 12 May 2025 
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Chief F sane al Offcer 

Place: Mumbal 
Date: 12 May 2025 
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Company Secretary 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated financial Statements 

1 Corporate information' 

Protium Finance Limited (the "Company") was incorporated on March 29, 2019 vide ON no U65999MH2019PLC323293 as Growth Source Financial Technologies Private Limited . 
The Company was registered as Non- Banking Financial Company without accepting or holding public deposits, as defined under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934. The Company together with its subsidiary - Protium Business Services Private Limited and Shibui Technologies Private Limited (collectively, the Group) is primarily engaged in 
lending activities. The Group is primarily engaged in the business of lending secured and unsecured loans in SME, MSME and Consumer Finance Segments. The registered office of 
the parent Company is located at Nirlon Knowledge Park (NKP) B2, 7th Floor, Pahadi, Village, Off. Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai, Mumbai City, Maharashtra, 
India, 400063. Under the scale based regulation the company is categorized as middle layer (NBFC-ML). 

The audited Consolidated financial statements were approved by Board of Directors on May12, 2025 The Group has its debt listed on BSE Limited 

2. Material accounting policy information 

2.1 Basis of preparation : 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as 
amended from time to time and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) along with other relevant provisions of the Act, the updated Master Direction —
Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company —Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 as amended from time to time and other applicable RBI circulars/notifications 
The Group uses accrual basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements (other than Statement of Cash Flows) except in case of significant uncertainties. Accounting 
policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated. 

The financial statement have been prepared on a going concern basis, as the Management Is satisfied that group shall be able to continue its business for future and no material 
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the going concern going concern assumption In making this assessment, the management has considered a wide range of 
information relating to present and future conditions, induding the future projections, cash flows, and capital resources 

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (MR), which Is also the functional currency of the Group, in denomination of lakhs with rounding off to two 
decimals as permitted by Schedule 111 to the Act except where otherwise indicated. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for 
certain financial Instruments that are measured at fair value 

2.2. Presentation of financial statements 

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Division III to Schedule Ill to the Act applicable for Non Banking 
Finance Companies ('NBFC'). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows". The disclosure 
requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Division Ill to Schedule III to the Act, are presented by way of notes 
forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified accounting Standards Any guidance / clarifications / notifications 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) are implemented as and when issued / made applicable 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances 

• the normal course of business 
• the event of default 
• the event of insolvency of bankruptcy of the group/ or its counterpanes 

2.3. Basis of consolidation 
The Group consolidates an entity when it controls it. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its Involvement with the investee and 
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the Meese°. Consolidation of the entity begins when the Group obtains control over the entity and ceases when the 
Group loses control of the entity. 

Generally, there Is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control To support this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or 
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an Investet including 
• The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee 
- Rights arising from other contractual arrangements 
• The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights 
-The site of the Group's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders 

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses 
accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made 
to that Group member's financial statements in prepanng the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group's accounting policies 

Profit or loss and each component of OCI are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance 

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiary to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's accounting policies All antra-group 
assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. 

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees MR' or I') which is also the Group's functional currency 

(This space has been left blank intentionally) 
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Prod um Finance limited 

Notes to the [Consolidated Financial Statements 

2.4 Interest Income: 

The group calculates interest income by applying the ER to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets. When a financial asset becomes credit-
impaired and is, therefore, regarded as 'Stage 3', the Group calculates Interest income by applying the FIR to the amortised cost (net of expected credit loss) of the fina ncial asset If 
the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-Impaired, the Group reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis 

The OR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial instrument through the expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a 
shorter period, to the net carrying amount. The future cash flows are estimated taking into account all the contractual terms of the instrument 

The calculation of the OR Includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending arrangement, 
transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. For financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss rFVTPL"), transaction costs are recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss at initial recognition 

Interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired financial assets/liabilities e. at the amortised cost of the financial asset 
before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the amortised cost of the credit-
impaired financial assets e the gross carrying amount less the allowance for expected credit losses) 

Overdue interest and other ancillary charges in respect of loans are recognized upon realisation, 

2.5 Recognition of other Income: 
Revenue generated from the business transactions (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial instruments are applicable) is measured at fair value of the 
consideration to be received or receivable by the Group Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue 
arising from contracts with customers. 

The Group recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind 115. 
Step 1: Identify contracts) with a customer; 
Step 2: IdentiRo performance obligations in the contract(s). 
Step 3: Determine the transaction price, 

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract(s); 
Step 5- Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation 

2.5 Fees and commission income : 
Fees and commission income includes Fees and commission charges other than those that are an Integral part of EIR The group recognises the other fee and commission income 

under the terms and conditions of the relevant contract/agreement 

2.7 Income on derecognrsed (assigned) loans:

Gains arising out of direct assignment transactions comprises of the difference between interest on the loan portfolio and the applicable rate at which the direct assignment is 
entered into with the assignee, also known as the right of excess Interest spread (EIS). The future EIS basis the scheduled cash flow on execution of the transaction, discounted at 
the applicable rate entered into with the assignee is recorded upfront in the statement of profit and loss 

2.8 Net gain on fair value changes : 
The Group designates certain financial assets for subsequent measurement at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). 
The Group recognises gains/loss on fair value change of financial assets measured at FVTPL and realised gains on dereeognflion of financial asset measured at FVTPL and FVOCI on 
net basis 

2.9 Expenditures . 
(i) Finance costs 
Borrowing costs on financial liabilities are recognized using the EIR (refer note no 2,4). 
(ii) Fees and commission expense 
Fees and commission expenses which arc not directly linked to the sourcing of financial assets, such as commission/incentive incurred on value added services and products 
distribution, recovery charges, fees paid under guarantee scheme and lees payable for management of portfolio etc, are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on an 
accrual basis. 
(iii) Other expenses 
Expenses are recognized on accrual basis net of the goods and services tax, except where credit for the input tax is not statutorily permitted 

2.10 financial instruments: 

2.10.1 oate of recognition 
A financial instrument is defined as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments 
are measured at amortised cost, unless otherwise specified All financial instruments are recognized on the date when the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the 
financial instruments along with the certainty of ultimate collection in case of financial assets. For tradable securities, the Group recognises the financial instruments on settlement 
date 

2 10 2 Initial measurement of finandal Instrume nts-

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial 
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the lair value of the financial assets or financial 
liabilities, as appropriate, on Initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
are recognized immediately in profit or loss. 

2.10.3 Day 1 profit and loss 

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in 
market transactions, the Group recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain / loss on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value is 
based on models for which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognized in profit or loss 
when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognized. 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated F m a ritual Statements 

210 4 Classification & measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities 

The Group determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective. The Groups business model 
determines whether the cash flows will be generated by collecting contractual cash flows, selling financial assets or by both 

The Group's business model is assessed at portfolio level and not at instrument level, and is based on observable factors such as' 

(i) How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel, 

lie The risks that affect the performance of the business model and, in particular, the way those risks are managed: 
(iii) The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Group's assessment The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected 
sceneries without taking 'twill Case' Or 'StreSs case' scenarios into aCc0unt, 

Solely payment of principal and interest (SPPI) test Subsequent to the assessment to the relevant business model of the financial assets, the Group assesses the contractual terms 
of financial assets to ideetify whether the cash flow realised are towards solely payment of principal and Interest, 

Principal for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset The most significant 
elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value of money and credit risk 

initial measurement of financial instruments The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business model for 
managing the instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value 

The Group classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the asset's contractual terms, measured at either.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC) 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual 
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI on the principal amount outstanding The changes in 
carrying value of financial assets is recognized In profit and loss account 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income IFVTOCI) 
A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if rt is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding The 
changes in fair value of financial assets is recognized in Other Comprehensive Income 

Financial assets at fair value through profit Or loss (FVTPL) 
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL The Group measures all financial assets classified as FVTPL at fair value at each 
reporting date The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognized in Profit and loss account. 

2.11 Financial assets and liabilities : 

2.11.1 Amortized cost and affective Interest method 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period 

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-Impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding 
expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt Instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to die gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on Initial 
recognition. 

The amortised cost of a financial asset Is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation 
using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying 
amount of a financial asset is the 'morticed cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance. 

2.11.2 Financial liabilities 
All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial guarantees, and derivative financial liabilities 

Z 11.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading and have been either designated by management upon initial recognition or are 
mendatonly required to be measured at fair value under Ind AS 109. Management only designates an instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition whin one of the following 
criteria are met Such designation is determined on an Instrument-byinstrernent WIC 

• The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on 
them on a different basis; or 

The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk 
management or investment strategy; or 

The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or it is dear 
with little or no analysts when a similar Instrument Is first considered that separation of the embedded deri mthre(s1 Is prohibited 

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVfPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss with the exception of 
movements In fair value of liabilities designated at FVTPL due to changes in the Group's own credit risk Such changes In fair value are recorded In the credit reserve through 00 
and do net get recycled to the profit or loss. IntereSt earned or interred On instruments designated at FM!. is accrued in interest Income or finance cost, respectively, using the 
EIA, taking into account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs being an integral part of instrument Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be 
measured at FVTPL is recorded using contractual interest rate 

2.11.4 Loan commitment 
Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which over the duration of the commitment, the Group is required to provide a loan with pre specified terms to the 
customer. Undrawn loan commitments are in the scope of the ECL requirements 

2.11,5 Financial liabilities and equity instruments 
Financial instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the 
definitions of a financial liability and an equity Instrument 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest m the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities Equity instruments issued by the Group are 
recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 
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2.12 Reclassification of financial assets 

The Group changes classification of its financial assets only on account of changes in its business model for managing those financial assets Such reclassifications are given 
prospective impact as per the prinoples laid down in Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments'. 

2.13 DerivatIve financial instruments: 
The Group enters into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate risk and foreign exchange rate risk. Derivatives held by the Group are Crass Currency 
Interest Rate Swaps (CCIRS). Derivative contracts are initially recognized at fair value on the date of entering into contract and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at 

each reporting date. The resulting gains/losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and is effective as a hedging 
Instrument For hedging instrument, the timing of the recognition In the Statement of Profit and Loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship. The Group designates its 
CCIRS derivatives as cash flow hedges of a recognized liability. The Group recognises derivatives with a positive fair value as a financial asset and derivatives with a negative fair 
value as a financial liability. 

Hedge accounting 

The Group makes use of derivative instruments to manage exposures to interest rate risk and foreign currency risk In order to manage particular risks, the Group applies hedge 
accounting for transactions that meet specified criteria 
At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk 

management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge The documentation Includes the Group's risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the 
hedging/economic relationship, the hedged Item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the Group would assess the effectiveness of changes In 
the hedging Instrument's fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes In the hedged item's cash flows attributable to the hedged risk Such hedges are expected to be highly 
effective in achieving offsetting changes in cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial 
reporting periods for which they were designated 

Cash flow hedge 
Hedges that meet the criteria for hedge accounting and qualify as cash flow hedges are accounted as follows' 

A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability and could affect profit 
or loss. 
For designated and qualifying cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument Is Initially recognized directly in OCI within equity 
(cash flow hedge reserve). The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognized Immediately as finance cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
When the hedged cash flow affects the Statement of Profit and Loss, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recorded in the corresponding income or 
expense line of the Statement of Profit and Loss 

When a hedging instrument expires, is sold, terminated, exercised, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss recognised in 
OCI is subsequently transferred to the Statement of Profit and Lass on ultimate recognition of the underlying hedged forecast transaction. When a forecast transaction is no longer 

expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in OCI is immediately transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss 

2 14 Derecogmbon of financial Instruments : 

2.14 1 Derecognitlon °limeade' asset 

A financial asset (or. where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognIzed when the rights to receive cash flows from the 
financial asset have expired. The Group also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition 

The Group has transferred the financial asset if, and only If, either 
The Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or 
It retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumed a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows In full without material delay to third 

party under pass through arrangement 

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either. 
The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or 
The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset. 

The Group considers control to be transferred if and only If, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset In its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise 
that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer 

2.14.2 Derecognitlon of financial liabilities 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability Is replaced by another from the 
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the 
original liability and the recognition of a new liability The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid, Including modified 
contractual cash flow recognized as new financial liability, is recognized in statement of profit and loss 
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2.15 Impairment of financial assets: 
The Group records allowance for expected credit losses for all financial assets, other than financial assets held at WM, together with loan commitment and financial guarantee 
contracts. Equity instrument are not subject to impairment 

General approach 

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit risk (51CR) since initial recognition If, on the other hand, 
the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since Initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial Instrument at an amount 

equal to 12-month expeded credit losses (12m ECLI. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognized is bated en significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a 
default occurring since initial recognition Instead of an evidence of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring 

Lifetime ECI. represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECt represents 
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial Instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date 

The measurement of EU Is a function of the probability of default (PD), loss given default (LGD) (I e the magnitude of the loss If there Is a default) and the exposure at default 
(EAD). The assessment of the PD and LGD is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking Information As for the EAD, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets' 

gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for l0an commitments and financial guarantee Contract, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date, 
together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date determined based on historical trend, the Group's understanding of the specific 
future financing needs of the customer, and other relevant forward-looking information 

Group categories Its financial assets as follows 
Stage 1 assets 
Stage 1 assets includes financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these 

assets, 12-month ECL (resulting from default events possible within 12 months from reporting date) are recognized. 

Stage 2 assets 
Stage 2 Assets Includes financial instruments that have had a significant Increase in credit risk since initial recognition For these assets lifetime ECL (resulting from default events 
possible within 12 months from reporting date) are recognized 

Stage 3 assets 

Stage 3 Assets are considered credit-impaired and the Group recognises the lifetime ECL for these loans. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%. 

Purchased or Originated Credit impaired (POCI) assets 

Assets are considered credit-impaired and the Group recognises the lifetime ECL for these loans The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%. 

For financial assets, ECL is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the 
Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate, The Group recognises an Impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss in the profit and loss statement 
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account 

The Group does not limit its exposure to credit losses to the contractual notice period, but, instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects the Group's expectations of the 
customer behavior, its likelihood of default and the Group's future Hsi m uga ton procedures, which could include redudng or cancelling the facilities. 

2.16 Collateral valuation: 
To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Group seeks to use collateral, where possible. The collateral comes in venous forms, such as cash, secunties, power of attorney, 
credit enhancements such as netting agreements, Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the Group's balance sheet. However, the fair value of collateral affects the 
calculation of ECU. it is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a quarterly basis/annual basis 

To the extent possible, the group uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as collateral 

2.17 Write-offs: 
Loans and debt securities are written off when the Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering tile financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). In such cases, the 
Group determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of Income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off 
constitutes a derecognition event. The Group may apply enforcement activities to financial assets written off Recoveries resulting from the Group's enforcement activities result in 
impairment gains and are credited to statement of profit and loss 

2 18 Forborne and modified loan. 

The Group sometimes makes concessions or modifications to the original terms of loans as a response to the borrower's financial difficulties, rather than taking possession or to 
otherwise enforce collection of collateral. The Group considers a loan forborne when such concessions or modifications are provided as a result of the borrower's present or 
expected financial difficulties and the Group would not have agreed to them if the borrower had been financially healthy. Indicators of financial difficulties include defaults on 
covenants, or significant concerns raised by the Credit Risk Department. Forbearance may involve extending the payment arrangement and the agreement of new loan conditions. 

Once the terms have been renegotiated, any Impairment is measured using the original EIR as calculated before the modification of terms, it is the Group's policy to monitor 
forborne loans to help ensure that future payments continue to be likely to occur. Derecognidon decisions and classification between Stage 2 and Stage 3 are determined on a case 
by-case basis. If these procedures identify a loss in relation to a loan, it is disclosed and managed as an Impaired Stage 3 forborne asset, until it is collected or written off. 
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2.19 Determination of fair value: 
The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the 
asset or transfer the liability takes place either; 
• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

in the absence of a principal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants 
act in their economic best interest A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the 
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Group uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below: 

Fair value measurement under Ind AS 113 are categorised into level 1 , 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the 
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety ,which are as follows 

Level 1 Inputs 
Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for Identical assets or liabilities that the Group has access to at the measurement 
date. The Group considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there 
are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date 

Level 2 Inputs 
Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data for substantially the full term of the asset or 
liability 

Level 3 Inputs 
Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the meas urement as whole 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels In the hierarchy 
by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that Is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. The Group 
periodically reviews Its valuation techniques including the adopted methodologies and model calibrations 

Therefore, the Group applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based 
approach that estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in order to reflect the credit risk of the Individual counterparties 
for non-collate ralised financial instruments. 

The Group evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the 
reporting period 

2.20 Retirement and other employee benefits • 

2.20.1 Short term employee benefit 
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include short term compensated 
absences such as paid annual leave. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid In exchange for the services rendered by employees is 
recognized as an expense during the period. Benefits such as salanes and wages, etc and the expected cost of the bonus/ ex-gratia are recognized in the period in which the 
employee renders the related service 

2.20.2 Post-employment employee benefits: 

(I) Defined benefit plans 
The Group provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees The plan provides for lump sum payments to employees upon death while in 
employment or on separation from employment after serving for the stipulated years mentioned under The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972' The present value of the obligation 
under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation, carried out by an Independent actuary at each Balance Sheet date, using the Projected Unit Credit 
Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final 
obligation 

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows The discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined 
benefit plan are based on the market yields on Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date 

Net interest recognized in profit or loss is ca culated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The 
actual return on the plan assets above or below the discount rate is recognized as part of re-measurement of net defined liability or asset through other comprehensive income. An 
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments In the future These include the determination of the discount rate, attrition 
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these 
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date 

Defined benefit plans may be unfunded, or they may be wholly or partly funded by contributions by the Group, Into an entity, or fund from which the employee benefits are paid 
The Group is liable to make differential payment for any shortfall between defined benefit payments and the contribution made by the Group 

(ii) Defined contnbution plans : 
Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation 
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The Group 
contnbutes into following schemes under defined contribution plans 
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Superannuation 
Defined contribution to superannuation fund is made as per the scheme of the Group 
Provident fund 
Each eligible employee and the Group make contribution at a percentage of the basic salary specified under the Employee Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 
The Group recognises contributions payable to the Provident fund scheme as an expenditure when the 

employees render the related service The Group has no further obligates under the plan beyond its periodic contributions 
Employees state Insurance 
'he Group contributes to Employees State Insurance Scheme and recognises such contribution as an expense m the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period when services are 
rendered by the employees 

)Ill) Compensated absences 
Privilege leave entitlements are recognized as a liability as per the rules of the Group. The liability for accumulated leaves which can be availed and/Or encashed at any time during 
the tenure of employment is recognized using the projected unit credit method at the actuarially determined value by an appointed actuary. The liability for accumulated leaves 
which is eligible for encashment within the same calendar year Is provided for at prevailing salary rate for the entire un averred leave balance as at the Balance Sheet date. 

Rerneasurements on defined benefit plans, comprising of actuarial gains and lasses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net Interest on the net defined 
benefit liability and the return on plan assets, are recognized immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCt in the period 
in which they occur Rerneasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 

221 Share based payments 
The Group carries out fair value cost assessment of employee stock options on the grant date using Black Scholes model The cost towards employees of the Group is recognized as 
employee benefits expenses and that pertaining to employees of subsidiaries are recovered from subsidiaries, over the period in which the service conditions are fulfilled. The 
cumulative expense/recharge recognized for equity settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has not expired 
and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest No expense is recognized for grants that do not ultimately vest because of non 
fulfillment of service conditions Service conditions are not taken into account while determining the grant date fair value of options, but the likelihood of the conditions being met 
is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest 

2.22 teases: 

The Group's leases primarily consists of leases for Building and office premises .The group assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at the inception of a contract. A contrast 
contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for a consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys 
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the group assesses whether (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset fill the group has substantially all of the 
economic benefits from the use of the asset through out the period of lease and (iii) the group has the right to direct the use of asset. 

Measurement and recognition 
At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset Is measured at cost, which is made up of 
the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and 
any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any Incentives received) 
The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straighbline basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the 
end of the lease term. The Group also assesses the right-o/-use asset for Impairment when such indicators exist At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability 
at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate Is readily available or at the incremental borrowing 
rate. 
Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if 
there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is rerneasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right.of.use asset, or profit and loss if 
the right-of-use asset Is already reduced to zero 

Short teem lease 
The Group ha elected not to recognise right of use asset and tease ',Ada es for short term leases of property that has lease term of 12 months or less The Group eceognues lease 
payment associated with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over lease term. 

Group as a lessee' 
For any new contracts entered into on or after April 1. 2019, the Group considers whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as 'a contract, or part of a contract, 
that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration' To apply this definition the Group assesses whether the contract is 
or contains lease 

2.23 Earnings per share : 
Basic earnings per share Is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding for the year 

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted 
earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit alter tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by weighted average number of equity shares considered for 
deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares. 

2 24 Impairment of nondinanrial assets: 
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the 
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less 
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and 15 recognized in the statement of profit and 
loss If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the impairment is 
reversed subject to a maximum carrying value of the asset before impairment 

2,25 Provisions and other contingent liabilities: 
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the 
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of Money and, where 
appropriate, the risks speofic to the liability 

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot 
be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group Claims against the Group, where the 
possibility of any outflow of resources In settlement Is remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities. 

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements since the may result in the recognition of ince never be realised However, when the reeleation of 
ally certain, then the related asset 15 not a contingent asset and is recognized 
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2.26 Income tax expenses . 
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax 

2.26.1 Current tax 
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of 
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and Items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The group has opted for lower rate of tax under section 115BAA Biz 22% plus surcharge of 10% and cess of 4% 
. Effective tax rate being 25.17% 

2.26.2 Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will 
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and 
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting 
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities 

2.26.3 Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized In other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, 
the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively 

2.27 Goods and Service tax input credit 
Goods and Services tax input credit is accounted for in the books for the period in which the supply of goods or service received is accounted and when there is no uncertainty in 
availing/utilising the credits. 

2 26 Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less 

2 23 Property, plant and Equipment: 

Recognition and measurement 
Property, plant and equipment (PPE) is recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with it will flow to the group and the cost can be measured 
reliably 

PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to Its working 
condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of assets which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the 
extent they relate to the year till such assets are ready to be put to use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted In arriving at the purchase price. Gains or losses arising from 
derecognition of such assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of profit 
and Loss when the asset is derecognized. 

Subsequent expenditure 
Subsequent costs are Included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate only If It Is probable that the future economic benefits associated 
with the item will flow to the Group and that the cost of the item can be reliably measured. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is 
derecognized when replaced. All other repair and maintenance expenses are charged to the Statement of PlOfil and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred 

Depreciation 

DepreciaCon is provided on Straight Line Method ('SLM'I• which reflects the management's estimate of the useful life of the respective assets The estimated useful life used to 
provide depreciation are as follows: 

Particulars Estimated useful life by the Company Useful life as per schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 

Computers 3 years 3 years 

Office Equipment 5 years 5 years 

Furniture and fixtures 5 years 10 years 
Servers and networks 5 years 6 years 

The useful lives and the method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. Changes In the 
expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. 

2.3D Intangible assets : 
Recognition and measurement 
An intangible asset is recognized only when its cost can be measured reliably and it IS probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the 
Group. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition 
Amortisation 
Intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method over a period of 5 years, which is the management's estimate of its useful life The amortisation period and the 
amortisation method are reviewed at least as at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation 
period is changed accordingly. Gains or losses ansmg from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds 

rig amount of the asset and recognized as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
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2.31 Foreign currency translation : 

Initial recognition 
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the 
foreign currency at the date of the transaction 
Conversion 
Foreign currency monetary items are re-translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost 
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction 
Exchange differences 

All exchange differences are accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss or Other Comprehensive Income as permitted under the relevant Ind AS 

3. Critical accounting judgement and key source of estimate uncertainties 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS. requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disdosu re and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the repotting year. Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised. Although these estimates are based 
on the management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future years. 

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognized In the financial statements is included In the following notes 

3.1 Business model assessment :-

The Group determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective The Group determines its 
business model at a level that reflects how financial assets as a whole and not an individual instrument performs; therefore the business model is developed basis a higher level of 
assessment at portfolio level rather than on granular instrument.level information and is based on observable factors such as 
0 How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel 
hit The risks that affect the performance of the business model and, in particular, the way those risks are managed. 

iii) The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also essential aspects of the Group's assessment 

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Group determines whether newly recognized finandal assets are part of an existing business model or whether they reflect a new 
business model. The Group reassesses It's business model at each reporting period to determine whether the business model has changed since the previous period. 
Based on this assessment and future business plans of the Group, the management has measured its financial assets at amortised cost as the asset is held within a business model 
whose oblective is to collect contractual cash flows, and the contractua I terms of the financial asset Rive rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 

3.2 Effective Interest rate (EIR) method: 
The Group's EIR methodology recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected 
behavioral life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle including 
prepayments and penalty interest and charges 

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement r ding the expected behavior and life cycle of the Instrument, as well expected changes India's base rate and other 
fee income, expenses that are integral part of the instrument 

3 3 Impairment of financial assets 

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, In particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and 
collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes In 

which can result in different levels of allowances. 

The Group's ECL calculations are outputs of models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their Interdependencies Elements of the 
Kt models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include: 
• PD calculation Includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions 
• The Group's cr teria for assessing if there has been a s gnifi cant increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit loss 
and the qualitative assessment 
• The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL Is assessed on a collective basis 
• Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs 
• Determination of correlation between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as GDP levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs. EAD and LGD 
• Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the economic inputs into the ECL models 

It is Group's polcy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary 

3.4 Impairment of nonfinancial assets: 
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an Indication that an asset may be impaired If any indication exist, the group estimates the asset's recoverable amount 
An asset's recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use Where the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is 
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount 

3.5 Fair value of financial instruments: 
The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most 
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using 
another valuation technique When the fair values of finandal assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are 
determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but 
where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values judgements and estimates include considerations of liquidity and model inputs related to Items such as 
credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility. 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

3.6 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
Provisions are recognized when 
1. Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; and 
11 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic beneris will be required to settle the obligation. and 
Iii. a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates 
Long term provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows specific to the liability The unwinding of the discount is recognized as a finance cost. A 

provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the 
contract. Before a provision is established, the Group recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract 

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of 
i a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and 
ii. a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible 
Contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date. 

Contingent assets: 
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements Contingent asset are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable 

3 7 Provisions for income taxes : 
Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes Including judgment on whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments A 
tax assessment can involve complex Issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods. 

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectation of future events that may have a financial 
Impact on the group and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
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Ptotium Finerree United 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note "e" 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2025 

Alm 

March 31,2024 

Cash on hand • 

Balance with hanky 

Current ateternIS 29,597 67 32,316,55 
Bank deposits with original matunty of less than or equal to three 

months 

55,791 95 56,70615 

Total 64,630.62 90,023 10 

le in lakhs) 

Nate "V 

lank balances other Than cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars 

(Sin lakhs I 

As at 
March 31,2025 

Bank deposes with original maturity ol more than three months 41.355 By 
10151 

As at 
March 31,202a 

42,454.10 
41,655.92 41,454 10 

Note: Bank deposits includes deposits under lien aggregating to Rs. 4,091. 0 lakhs (as at March 31, 2024 Rs 4,492 98 lakhs) for liabilities amine out at socurinsairon transactions and amount includes Rs 2,001 13 lakhs (as 
at Minh 31, 2024 its 10,306.06 lakhs) for liabilities arrsing out of overdrah facilty 

Note "V 

Trade receivables 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025 

As et 
March 3l, 2024 

Eleceiva We S Cool ide re ri good -secured • 

deeeku Wes considered good -Unsecured 1.022.34 1.007.60 

Reeeivalites which have significant increase in credit ink 

iteceivables — credit impaired 

43.30 

Total L065.84 1007.2 

Less. Impairment Loss Allowance (38.49) 115,571 

Total 1,026.95 992,23 

(Sin lakhs) 

Trade receivables Ageing 

Peal March 31 2025 

Pink-Oars Current but nal 
due 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
Less than 6 

months 

6 months - g year 1-2 team 24 YON Mere than 3 years Total 

Receivables considered good - Secured 

Receivables which have significant Increase In credit nsk 

573.02 409 63 

30 62 

967 - 

43.30 
991 52 

74 L2 
Total 573.02 439 65 967 41 30 2,065.64 
Less • Impairment Loss Allowance 

TotaS 
(38.69) 

._ 1 026.95 

tin laths 

As at March 11, 2024 

Particulars Current but not 
due 

Outstanding for Following periods from due date a payment 

Less than 6 
months 

6 months - 1 year 1.2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years coral 

Receivables considered good • Secured 

Receivables whet, have SignIfilant InCreaSe In credit risk 

999 62 

• 

7.07 2L11 1,007.90 

Total 999.62 7,07 11.11 1,00720 
Lem i rn pa Invent Loss Allowance 

Total 
(15.57i 

992.23 

In laths 

6 I III Na trade receivables err due from Directors or mildr officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other porton or debts due by Firms in cludinz limnod liability partnershms (UN, private cornpanres 
respectively In which any director is a paneer or a director or a member 

6 I lie No trade receivables are due From related partres 

oef ASs
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Pr(Worn Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note '7' 

Loans 

Particulars Asa! 

Mardi 31,2025 

As at 

Mardi 31,2024 
(Althea portfolio 

at anion ised cost 

(I)Term loans 

at fair value through OCI 

(')Term oans 

3,43,493.22 

89,628 OS 

3,28,638 03 

Total gross loans 4,33,126.27 3,28,538 03 

Less: Impairment loss allowance 

al arnonised cost 

al fair value through OCI 

(9,058.98) 

(500.47) 

(5,266 66) 

Total Impairment loss allowance (9,559.45) (5,26666) 

Totd Net Inane 4,23.566.82 3,23,371.37 

(B) Of the above 

(I) Secured against land, budding & machinery 

(i0 Unsecured 

2,81,943.36 

1,51.182.91 

2,12238.91 

1.16399.12 
Total gross loans 4,33,126.27 3,28,638.03 

Lest ; Impairnient less allowance 

II) Secured against land, building & machinery 
lit) Unsecured 

(3,537 86) 

(6,021 59) 

(1,671.72) 

(3.594.94) 

Total Impairment loss allowance (9,559.45) (5,266.66) 

Total Net Loans 4 23 566.82 3,23,371.37 

Loan portfolio 

IC)) Of the above 

loam In India 

(il Public Sector 

Oil Others 

- 

4,33,126 27 

• 

3,26,638.03 

Total gross loans 4,33,126 27 3,28,638.03 

Less ;Impairment loss allowance 

(I) Pubic Sector 

(PIOthers 

- 

19559 451 

- 

(5,266.66) 

Total Impairment loss a lowance (9,559.45) 15.256.66) 

Total Net Loant 4,23,566.82 3.23,371 37 

Total net loans (a) 

Loans outside India (b) 

4,23,566.12 3,23,371 37 

Total net loans (al 4 Ibl 4,23,566 112 3,23,371 37 

71 Collateral 

Loans granted by the Group are sea ed by any or all of the following as a plicable based an the w categorisation 
a) Equ e /registered mortgage of property 
b) undertaking to create a security. 

It In 'AM) 

7 2 The Group has provided no leans In current year to promoters, directors. KMPs and the related parties other than as mentioned In MT (refer Note no 45 I 

7.3 Unsecured Loam Includes unsecured business loam which is guaranteed by Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Micro and Small Enterprises (CGTN1SE) and Cred t Guarantee Fund for Micro Un Is (CGFMUI amounting to 
Rs. 59,790.64 Ukhs (March 31, 2024 Rs. 34,512 38 Lahti 

7 4 There were no loans given against the collateral of goldJewellery & hence the percentage of such loans to the total outstanding assets (as at March 31, 2024 Is N I) 

7.5 In accordance with its accounting policy for business model assessment, the Group has designated certain loans originated from October 1, 2024 at fa r va ue through other comprehensive income ("Fv0C ), wh ch 
will be held within a business model whose objective will be achieved by both holding these loans to collect contractual cashflows and to sell. 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note '6' 

Investments 

P.m !MID) 
Particulars AS at Mirth 31, 2025 

Amortised Cost At Fairvalue Total 
Through Other 

Comprehensive 
Income 

Through Profit or 
Loss 

Designated through 
Profit or Loss 

Subtotal 

Investment in Debentures 

Investment in Commercial Papers 

investmert in Pass Through Cenificates 

investmert in Government Securities 

invest melt in Mutual Funds 

Investment in ULIP 

11.537 39 

10,3.87.62 

8,132.03 
12,920 22 

- 

- 
- - 

8,64091 

99 24 
894391 

99.50 

15 557 11 

IfS 347 62 

a 132 09 

2 920.22 

8 643.91 
99.26 

=1 LF12 42,937 31 8,743 17 8,743.17 51,680 40 
Invettment ouThde India 

inveStMent in India 

- 

42,937.31 
- 

8,743 17 8,743.17 51,610.40 
Total le) 42,937.31 6,74317 8,74317 51,680.48 
Less: Impairment lost Allowance (CI 113.73) '13.73) 
Total Ma A-C) 42,923.56 8,74317 3243.17.  51,656.76 

lakhi 
Particulars As al March 31,2024 

Amortised Cost At Fair Value Total 

Through Other 
Comprehenshre 

Income 

Through Profit or 
Lots 

Designated through 
Profit or Less 

Subtotal 

Investment in Government Securities 
Investment in Mutual Funds 
Investment in ULIP 

25,899 76 - - 

203.19 
47.62 

• 
203.19 
47.62 

25.899.78 
203.19 

47:62 
Total (Al 25,899.76 - 250.81 250.81 26,150.57 
investment outside India 

Investment in India 25,099.76 - 

- 

250.81 

• 

250.81 26.150.57 
Tale (ED 25,599.76 • 250.81 260.81 26,150.57 
Less:impairment loss allowance ICI (0.591 (0.59) 
Total (D. A-C) 20.099.17 . 25061 250.61 26,149.98 

Investments measured et amortised 6331 

Particulars As at Much 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024 
Stage 1 Stage • 2 Stage - 3 Total Stage • 1 Stage - 2 Stage - 3 total 

Investment in Osbenturgs. 11,595.39 • • I1,137.38 - 
Investment in Commerdal Papers 10,347.02 - 50,007.62 
Investment in Pass Through Certrliceles 6,132.09 - 8,131.09 - • 

Investment in Government Securities 12.92022 12,920.22 25,069 76 23,699.76 
tote 42,937 31 _ 42.937 31 25,899.76 - 25,199.76 

ASSoci. 

CC tA Is,' 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Nowa to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

2 An analysis of changes m the gross carrying amount and the corresponding Efts Is, as fellows 

g in latch 
Particulars As at March 31,2025 AS at March 31, 2024 

stage - t Stage - 2 Stage - 3 Total Stage-1 Stage• 2 Stage-3 Total 
Gross carrying amount - opening balance 25,899.76 35,690.74 3,55199 3,553.99 
New assets originated or purchased 42,937 31 • 41,937.31 21,899 76 25,699.70 
Assets derecognised or matured (excluding write (25.899.761 '25,899.76), (3,553 991 (3,553.99) 
Total 42,937 31 • 42.937 31 29 MI 75 25 599.76 

9 in lakhs 
Particulars As at March 31,1025 As at March 31,2024 

Stage -1 Stage - 2 Stage-3 Total Stage - 1 Stage - 2 Stage-3 Total 
Opening balance In ECL 059 059 (0.36i (3 36) 
New assets originated or purchased 13.73 53.73 0.59 0.59 

Pecoverles 10 591 (0.59) 0.36 0.36 
Total 13 73 13.73 0.59 039 

Note - 9' 

Other financial assets 

g n lakhs 
Partkolars As at 

March 31, 2025 
As at 

March 31, 2014 

Staidly deposes 732,14 673 33 

Receivable from assigned and colent portfolio' 33927.46 15,30431 

Other Receivable 1.52496 5,050.07 
Total 34184.56 24,027.71 

Less- Impairment Loss Allowance (327.44) (129.39) 

Total Financial Assets 36467 12 23,899.32 

'Willi respect to assignment and co-lending deal the Group has created an Excess Interest Spread (EIS) receivable with corresponding credit se profit and loss for the year, which has been computed by discounting Excess Interest 
Spread (EIS) to present value whh necessary estimate and assumptions 

s). & 484
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note "10" 
Property, plant and equipment 

As at March 31, 2025 

Description Gross Block Depreciation Net biodt 
As at 

April 01, 2024 
Additions Disposal/ 

Adjustments 
As at 

March 31,2025 
As at 

April 01, 2024 
Depreciation dudng 

the year 
Disposal/ 

Adjustments 
As at 

March 31, 2025 
As at 

April 01, 2024 
As at 

March 31, 2025 
Right of Use Assets 2,930.41 945.52 (10.57) 3,865.36 1,015.16 1,438.94 110.21) 2,443.89 1,915.26 1,421.47 
Leaseho d Improvements 5132.95 41.50 (1.00) 62345 148.33 186.30 (0.50) 334.13 434.62 289.32 
Furniture and f xtures 247,05 40.77 (0.68) 286.94 36.36 31.51 (0.47) 67.40 210.69 219.54 
Office equipment 241.63 69.56 (10.60) 300.59 119.44 38.97 (9.53) 148.88 122.19 151.71 
Computers 1,146.48 188.86 (339.75) 995.59 687.65 272.51 (190.35) 769.81 458.83 225.78 
Total 5,148.51 1,286.21 1362.801 6,071.93 2,006.94 1,968.25 (211.06) 3,764.11 3,141.59 2,307.82 

As at March 31, 2024 

Description Gross Block Depreciation Net block 
As at 

April01, 2023 

Additions Disposal/ 

Adjustments 
Mat 

March 31,2024 
As at 

April al., 2023 
Depreciation during 

the year 
Disposal/ 

Adjustments 
As at 

March 31, 2024 
As at 

April 01, 2023 

As at 

March 31, 2024 
Right of use Assets 1,221.82 2,322.77 (614.18) 2,930.41 509.15 831.80 (325.79) 1,015.16 712.67 1,915.26 
Leasehold improvements 129.56 553.79 (100.40) 582.95 48.70 164.22 (64.59) 148.33 8066 434.62 
Furniture and fixtures 103.03 235.35 (91.33) 247.05 14.79 29.51 (7.88) 36.36 88.30 210.69 
Office equipment 176.60 66.98 11.95) 241.63 63.97 56.61 11.14) 119.44 112.63 122.19 
Computers 972.55 192.87 (18.94) 1,146.48 906.36 295.25 113.96) 687.65 566.19 458.83 
Total 2,603.55 3,371.76 (826.80) 5,148.52 1,042.91 1,377.38 (413.35) 2,006.94 1,560.65 3,141 59 

Note: None of the above assets have been pledged. 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note "11" 
Intangible assets and intangible assets under development 
A) Other Intangible assets 

As at March 31, 2025 
Description Gross Block Amortization Net block 

As at 
April 01, 2024 

Additions Disposal/ 

Adjustments 

As at 
March 31, 2025 

As at 
April 01, 2024 

Amortization during 
the year 

Disposal/ 
Adjustments 

As at 
March 31, 2025 

As at 
April 01, 2024 

As at 
March 31, 2025 

Softwares 
Intangible Others 

5,61547 
- 

1,145.72 
- 

(7.551 6,753,64 
- 

2,344.21 
- 

1.208.54 
-

(6.64) 3,546.11 

• 

3,271.26 3,207.53 

Total 5,615.48 1,145.72 (7.55) 6,753.64 2,344.21 1,20855 (6.641 3,546.11 3,271.26 3,207.53 

AS at marCh 31,2024 
Description Gross Block Amortization Net block 

As at 
April 01, 2023 

Additions Disposal,/ 

Adjustments 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

As at 
April 01, 2023 

Amortization during 

the year 
Disposal/ 

Adjustments 

Mat 

March 31, 2024 
M at 

April 01, 2023 
AS at 

March 31, 2024 
SoftwareS 
Intangible Others ' 

9,300 30 
504 

1,315.17 • 
(5.04) 

5,615.47 
- 

1,529.72 
2,31 

1,014.49 
0.96 

- 
(3.27) 

2,344.21 
- 

2,970.58 
2.73 

3,271.26 

Total 4,305.35 1,315.17 (5.04) 5,615.47 1,332.03 1,015.46 (3.27) 2,344.21 2,973.31 3,271.26 

e in lakhs 

8) Intangible under develop men 
Description AS at 

March 31, 2025 
As at 

April 01, 2024 
Intangible under deve eopment 87.55 111.06 

Total 87.55 111.06 

(t in lakhs) 

Schedule of ageing of completion of intangible assets under deve opment : 
As at March 31, 2025 
(i) Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 

Projects in progress 87.55 - 87.55 

it n lakhs) 

As at March 31, 2024 
Description Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 

Projects in progress 111.06 111.06 

(it in lakhs) 

Note; There are no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cosi compared to its original plan. 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Mande 'Statements 

Note "12" 
Other non-financial assets 
Particulars As at 

March 31, 1025 
As at 

March 31,2024 

GST input credit 2,597.14 684.17 
Prepaid expenses 905.71 768.17 
Salary Advance 18.56 9.15 
Advances with others 374.70 228.60 
Others 965.93 314.32 
Total 4,311.54 2,004.41 

T in lakhsi 

Note "13' 
Derivative financial instruments 

As at March 31, 2025 

Pankulars Notional amounts Fair value assets Fair value liabilities 

Cask flow hedge 
-Cross currency and Interest rate swap' 77.091 90 41 52 

(tin lakhsl 

As at March 31, 2024 
Particulars 
Calla flow hedge 

-Cross currency and Interest rate swap' 

(i in faiths) 
Notional amounts 

27,464 40 

Fair value assets Fair value liabilities 

35 04 

Note :The Group has board approved policy for entering into derivative transactions 
`Derivatives comprises of cross currency interest rate swap entered by the Company to hedge foreign currency borrowings. Refer mate. oat accounting policy for derivative financial instruments 

Note '14" 
Trade payables 
Particulars mat 

March 31,2025 
As at 

March 31, 2024 
Trade payables 
Due to micro and small enterprises 34732 916.66 

To ethers 479% 1,481.49 

Total 827.28 2,398.18 

Ism laidni 

Details of dues to micro, medium and small enterprises 
The amounts due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, has been determined to the extent of Information available and compiled by the 
Group. This has been relied upon by the auditors 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Disclosure pertaining to Mare and Small Enterprises are as under 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

(i)The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid many supplier at the end of each atirOvnting year, 

(ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2065, along with the amount of the 

payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year 

(ill) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 

adding the interest s pacified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

(lv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year, and 

4,4 The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small 

enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

347.32 91666 

Total 347.32 916 66 

(it In WON) 

Trade payables ageing schedule 

As at March 31, 2025 

Particulars Outstanding for following peried a from due date of payment 

Current but net due Lets than 1year 1-2 yearS 2-3 years more than 3 years Total 

(I) MSME 
(ii) Others 

(iii) Disputed dues — MSME 

(iv) Disputed dues • Others 

4035 

4754 

• 

306 97 

129 01 2 62 

347 32 

419 96 

Total 57 89 736.77 2 62 327 211 

(Iinlakhs) 

As at March IL 2024 

ParticularS Outstanding for tolknelni periods from due date of payment 

Current but not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yenta More than 3 years Total 

(I) MSME 

(RI Others 

(Ill) Disputed dues— M5ME 

(IA Disputed dues - Others 

916.66 

1,476.89 20 

• 

052 

916 66 

1,491 4e 

• 

Total 2,395 55 2 07 0.52 2390_14 

(I in laths) 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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Note "15" 

Debt securities 

Particulars Mat 
March 31, 2025 

M at 
March 31,2024 

At amortised cost 

Secured 

(I) Secured 

Listed redeemable non convertible debentures 
(II) Unsecured 

2,517 94 10,592 30 
-

Total 2,517.94 10,592.30 
B) Out of above 
Debt securities in India 

Debt securities outside India 
2,517.94 10,592 30 

Total 2,517.94 10,592.30 

(kin lakhs) 

Terms of repayment of Non Convertible Debentures (Nals) 

M at March 31 2025 

Styles details Face value per 
debenture 
(in IAN 

Date of allotment •Balance as at 
March 31,2025 

(Rs in Lakhs) 

Interest rate % per 
annum 

Date of redemption Redeemable terms 

979%p a p m Protium Finance Limited 130 17-04-2023 151734 9.79% 25-04.2025 Annual 

As at March 31, 2024 

Series details Face value per 
debenture 
(In laths) 

Date of allotment •Balance as at 
Mardi 31, 2024 

Ms In Laths) 

Interest rate % per 
annum 

Date of redemption Redeemable terms 

ProtIum22-234YPPMLD-Sep2024 10.00 22-12-2022 5,564 41 8.93% 22-09-2024 Bullet 
9 79%p.a.p.m.Protium Finance Limited 1.00 17-04-2023 5,02789 979% 25-04-2025 _ Annual 

•Ba lances as at March 31, 2025 is after considering the Impact of unamortised process ng fees Rs. 0.65 Lakhs (March 31, 2024 Rs. 46 18 Lakhs) 
Nature of security:. Debentures are secured by hypothecation of specified term ban receivables 

Note "16" 

Borrowings (other than debt securities) 
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2025 
As at 

March 31,2024 
At amortised cost 

(a) Term loans 
II) From banks 2,43,384 03 1,51376 55 
fti) From other parties 82,409.06 59,525 32 
(b) External commercial borrowings 
(c) Loans repayable on demand 

49,976 57 27,665 66 

Bank overdraft 1,900.03 11,150.33 
Total (a +bac) 3,77.669.69 2.53317.86 
Borrowings in India 3,27,69112 2,26,052 20 
Borrowings outside India 49,976.57 27,665 66 
Total 3,77,669.69 2,53,717.86 
Secured borrowings 3,77,669.69 153,71726 
Unsecured borrowings - -
Total 3,77,669.69 2,53,717.86 

(it in laths) 

Disclosure pertaining to stock statement filed with banks or 
a. The group has availed of the facilities (secured borrowings) from the lenders and these loans are secured by an exclusive first charge by way of hypothecation of identified books debts and receivables 
b. Quarterly returns or statements of book debts and receivables filed by the group with banks, financial Institutions and trustee are In agreement with the book of accounts. 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 16(a)(i) Secured term loan from bank. 

As at March 31, 2025 S in laths 
Repayment Term Interest range Residual tenure on balance sheet date As at 

March 31,2025 
Month y 914% 11% Upto 1 Year 5,373.48 

1 to I Years 34,081.95 
3 to 5 Years 21,904,99 
5 to 7 Years 23,511.93 
Upto I Year 5,080.16 
1 to 3 Years 55,745.57 

Quarterly 8 09% 11% 3 to 5 Years 79,728.87 
5 to 7 Years 19,584 00 

Add: Interest accrued 332.75 
Less: EIR impact (1,959.67) 
Total 2,43.384,03 

As at March 31 2024 in laths 
Repayment Term Interest range Residual tenure on balance sheet date As at 

March 31, 2024 
Monthly 8 34%-11% Upto 1 Year 7,555.44 

1 to 3 Years 48,653.23 
3 to 5 Years 35,585.22 
S to 7 Years 12,389.50 

Quarterly 8.58%- 10 75% 1 to 3 Years 30,645.05 
3 to 5 Years 21,761.58 

Add: Interest accrued 202 31 
Less: EIR impact (1,445.78) 
Total 1,55,376,55 

Nature of security 
Term loan from bank is secured by hypothecation of specified term loan receivables 

Note 16(a)(I) Secured term loan from other parties 

As at March 31, 2025 (t in lakhs) 
Repayment Term Interest range Residual tenure on balance sheet date As at 

March 31, 2025 
Monthly 9.50% - 10 40% Upto I Year 2,720.91 

1 to 3 Years 54,375.00 
Quarter y 9 60% - 9 90% I to 3 Years 14,249.64 

3 to 5 Years 33,498.78 
Monthly 8 SO% - 915%. Upto 1 Year 237,87 

I to 3 Years 4,676.60 
3 to 5 Years 1,063.10 
5 to 7 Years 
7 to 10 Years 7,422.16 
10 to 12 Years 4,143.47 

Add: Interest accrued 179.25 
Less: EIR impact (157.74) 
Total 82,409.06 

As at March 31, 2024 
Repayment Term Interest range Residual tenure on balance sheet date As at 

March 31, 2024 
Monthly 9 50%-10 40% Upto 1 Year 503.26 

1 to 3 Years 23,012.87 
Monthly 8 50% 9.40%* 1 to 3 Years 13,751138 

5 to 7 Years 3,245.59 
7 to 10 Years 3,455,26 

10 to 12 Years 15,600.88 
Add interest accrued 190.01 
Less: LIR impact (240.92) 
Total 59,525.32 

in laths) 

cn 

* Pertains to kabi ties arising out of Securitizations 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Rnancial Statements 

Note 16(b) Secured external commercial borrowings 

As at March 31, 2025 
Repayment Term Interest range Residual tenure on balance sheet date M at 

Mardi 31,2025 
Bullet Annually 952% 1014% 1 to 3 Years 28,241.86 

3 to 5 Years 21,39535 
Add: Interest accrued 733.80 
Less: EIR impact (394.44) 
Total 49,976.57 

e in lakhs 

As at March 31., 2024 
Repayment Term Interest range Residual tenure on balance sheet date As at 

Mardi 31,2024 
Bullet 9 62% - 10.14% 1 to 3 Years 27,464.40 
Interest accrued 531.98 
EIR impact (330.72) 
Total 27,665.66 

lakhs 

Note 16(c) Secured bank overdraft . 

As at March 31, 2025 
Repayment Term Interest range Residual tenure on balance sheet date As at 

March 31.2025 
Bu let 6 25% Upto 1 Year 1,900.03 
Add: Interest accrued 
Less: EIR impact • 
Total 1,900.03 

e in lakhs 

As at March 31, 2024 
Repayment Term Interest range Residual tenure on balance sheet date As at 

March 31, 2024 
Bullet 8.05% - 8.31% Upto 1 Year 11,150.33 
Interest accrued 
Ent impact 

Total 11,150.33 

re in lakhs 

Nature of security 
Term loan from bank is secured by specified bank FD 
Note : Average cost of all above borrowing Is at March 31, 2025, 9.36% p.a. (March 31, 2024, 9.56% p.a.) 

t1/4 fa SS0 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note "17" 
Other financial liabilities 
Particulars Ant 

March 31, 2025 
As at 

March 31, 2024 
Lease liab lilies (refer note no 49) 1,514 41 1,946,80 

Accrued expenses 4,153.58 1,488 49 
Payable towards assigned and colent portfolio 4,840.28 2,511.00 
Other payables 316.54 8,263.14 
Total 10,824.81 14,209.43 

(e in la khs) 

Note "18' 
Provisions 
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2025 
As at 

March 31, 2024 
Gratuity 490.56 282.39 
Compensated absences 57.43 51.20 
Total 547.99 333.59 

el in lakhs) 

Note "19" 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2025 
As at 

March 31, 2024 
Deferred tax liabilities (refer note no 33) 6,609.68 3,912.41 

(I in [akin) 

Note "20" 
Other non-financial liabilities 
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2025 
As at 

March 31,2024 
Statutory iabilites 1,271.93 527.47 
Advance from customers 2,762.21 2,703 74 
Total 4,034.14 3,231 21 

R lakhs 

Sc, 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Nate "21" 

Equity share capital 

(a) Details of authorised, issued and subscribed share capital 

Particulars As at Mar 1131,202S As at March 31,2024 
No.o1Shares I in laths No, of Shares tin tattles 

Authorized share capital 
Equity snares of I 10 each 

Issued, subscribed and hilly paid-up 
Equity shares of; 10 each 

15,60,09,300 

14,56,92,141 

15,600.93 

14,569.21 

15,60,09,300 

14,51,42,330 

15,60053 

14.514.23 
Total 1.4,56.02,141 14,569.21 14,51,42,330 14,514.23 

MHO Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting Year 

Particulars As at Mar 1131,2025 As at Marcia 3/, 1014 
No. of Shares I in lakhs No. of Shares I In Mills 

Equity shares 
Mille commencement of the year 
Issued during the year 

1431.42.330 
5,49,811 

14.51423 
54.98 

9,46,77,800 
5,0464530 

9,467.78 
5,046.45 

At lye gait vs the vpm 145652.141_ 21 14.51?2.330 14.51423

(hl Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares 

The Holding Company has single class equity shares having a par value of i ID per equity share. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and Holding Company share In the Group's residual 
assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from tines to time subject to payment of iihrldend to preference shareholders.ln the event of liquidation of the Holding Company, the holders of equity 
shares will be entitled to rece lye the residual assets of the Holding Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the flute her of equity shares held. Upon show of hands, every member 
present In person and holding any equity share capital therein, shall have one vote, In respect of such capital, on every resolution placed before the Holding Company 

(Cl Equity shares held by holding Company 

Particulars As at March 31,2025 As at March 31,2024 
No. of Shares I in laths No. of Shares tin laths 

Consinence Capital Management and it's nominee 14.41,44,759 14,414 48 14,41,44,759 14,414 48 

(dl Details of shareholdedslholdine more than 5% of equity shares in the erouri 

PadiCularS AS at March 31 2025 As at March 31.2024 
No. of Shares %Holding No. of Shares % H ol din g 

Consillence Capital Management and it's nominee 14,41.44.759 91354% 
I 

14,41,44,759 99.31% 

(el There are no bonus shares issued or shares Issued for consideration other than cash or shares bought back during the year eeeee d March 31, 2025 and march 31,2024 

10 There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts or commitments for the sale of shares or disinvestment during the year ended march 31,2025 and March 31, 2024. 

(g) Equity shares held by Promoters 

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 
5. No. Promoter Name 

Consilience Ca vital Ma nommen, and It's nominee 

(hi For Group's oblectives, policies and processes for managing capital, refer note -41 

it Shares reserved for issue under employee stock potion San 

AS at march 31, 2025 
No. of Shares 

14 41 44 759 
%of total shares 

90.94% 

As at Mardi 31., 2024 
No. of ShareS 

1.4,4144 759 
16 Of total shares 

14 Change during 
the year 

99 31% 

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 Asa March 31,2024 

No. of Shares No. of Shares 

Leon y s ha re s of Rs 10 cad, 50,93278 29,40,313 

 Sz, 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note '22" 

Other e nil 
Particulars Nat March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2020 

Securities premium account' 1,98.929.53 1.97.780 10 

Share based payment reserve' 935 22 439 66 

Statutory reserve (created under Section 45-IC of the Mk Act, 1934)' 711562 3 855 49 

Retained earnings" 25,507.56 11,842 75 

General reserve' 38.17 

Cash Row hedge reserve' (918.13) (26 22) 

Total 2.31,767 98 2,13 891 78 

it in lekhs 

*Securities premium: 
Share premium is credited when shares are issued al premium and with ffie fair value of the stock options which are treated as expense. if any, in respect of shares allotted pursuant to Employee Stock Options Scheme 

Share premium can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares or adjustment of share issue expenses, net of tax, as permissible under theCorepanies Act. 2013, 

2)Share based payment reserve 

Share options outstanding account rs created as required by 114045 102 'Share Based Payments on the Employee Sled Option Scheme operated by the Company for employees of the Group 

3) Statutory reserve (created under Section 45.1C of the RBI Act, 1934) 
Statutory reserve is created as per the terms of section 451C(1 of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 by the Holding Company 

4) Retained earnings 
Retained earnings represents the surplus In profit and loss account and net amount of appropriations made to/from retained earnings. The Group recogn ises change on account of re measurement of the net defined 
benefit liability (asset) as part of retained earnings with separate disclosure, which comprises of (a)actuarial gains and losses: lb) return on plan assets, excluding amounts included In net interest on the net defined 
benefit liability (asset), (c) any change in the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts induded In net Interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) 

5) General reserve 

The reserve can be distributed/ utilized by the Company, in accordance with The Companies Act, 2015 

6) Cash flow hedge reserve 
It represents the cumulative gaInsillosses)arising on !evaluation of the derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges through OCI and underlying hedged ohms 

of 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note "23" 

Revenue from operations 

Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

For the year ended 

March 31,2024 
On financial assets measured at amortized cost 
Interest Income on Loans 55.890 30 46.680.29 
Interest Income from Investments 2,367 05 1,114 60 

Interest an fixed deposits with banks 7,18467 3,217.65 

On financial assets measured at fair value through OCI 

Interest income on loans 3,904 52 • 

Total 69,146 55 51,012.54 

(I in laths) 

Note "24" 

Fees and commission Income 

Particulars For the year ended 
Mardi 31,2025 

For the year ended 
March 31,2024 

Fees and Comm soon Income 7,020.56 3,07914 
Facilitat'on Fees 2,409_59 2,071.34 

Total 9,430.15 5,150.48 

(tin laths) 

24 1 Geographical markets 

Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

For the year ended 

March 31.2024 
Within India 

Outside India 
9,430.15 5,150,46 

Total 9,430.15 5,150.48 

(tin laths) 

24.2 Timing of revenue recognition 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
Services transferred at a point In time 9,274 21 5,116,78 

Services transferred over time 155 94 33.70 

Total 9,430.15 5,150.48 

(tin lakhs) 

Note "25" 

Net gain/floss) on fair value changes 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Net galn/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 

-Investments 533.11 64 14 
-Loans 3,352.64 
Total 3,885 75 64 14 
Fair value changes: 

• Rea sed 386 OS 58.77 

- nreaiised 3,49967 5.37 
Total 3,885.75 64.14 

in akhs) 

Note "26" 

Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost rate go 
Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 
For the year ended 

March 31,2024 
Gain on derecognitlon of financial instruments under amort sed cost category 22,036.68 16,535.41 
Total 22,038.68 16,535.41 

in lakhs 

Note "27" 

Other income 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31,2025 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Recovery against written-off financial assets 2,198.01 567.92 
Others• 661 78 2,42105 
Total 2,859.79 2,988.97 
Includes interest on income tax refund, marketing income etc 

(4 in lakhs) 

Note "28" 

Finance Cost 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended 
March 31,2024 

Measured at amortized cost on financial liabilities 

Interest on borrowings other than debt securn es 29,602 79 17,714.98 
Interest on debt securities 550.14 1,024.25 

Interest on lease liabilities 203 48 181.25 
Other finance cost 87213 77.22 
Total 30,444.24 18,997.70 

(tin lakhs) 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note "29" 

Impairment on financial instruments n lakhs 
Particulars For the year ended 

March 31,2025 

For the year ended 

March 31.2024 
On financial Instruments measured at amortized cost 

Imps rment on financial instruments 4,49655 2,006.53 
Loans wr tten off 9,192 83 4,566 22 

Loss on Foreclosure of Loans 1,510.85 218.67 
Total 15.200.23 6,791 42 

Note "30" 

Employee benefits expense n lakhs 
Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Employee benefits expense 

Salaries and wages 

Contribution to and prows on for 

Provident and other funds 

Gratuity fund (refer nate no 37) 

Share based payment 'refer nate no 38) 
Staff welfare expenses 

22,363 75 

81099 

143.23 

625A6 

743 45 

19,593 15 

701.69 

110 09 

439.66 

57015 
Total 24,891.88 21,414.74 

Note "31" 

Depreciation and amortisation 

Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

For the year ended 
March 32, 2024 

Depreciation on property, plant and equpment 

Amortisation on intangible assets 

1,968.24 

1,206 54 

1,377 36 

1,015 45 

Total 3,I76 78 2,392.83 

n lakhs 

Note "32" 

Other expenses xm akhs 
Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 

. . 
For the year ended 

March 31.2024 
Loan Origination and Sera ring Costs 3,33209 4,000.69 
IT expenses 1,674 44 L342.73 
Insurance 1,33208 87.81 
Travel ing and conveyance 1,19071 851.90 
Legal and professional cha vs 875.64 1,132.52 
Co ection Charges 743 04 644.25 
Office Expenses 501 53 522 11 
Business promotion expenses 227 43 108.83 

Rent rates and taxes 207.13 600.05 
Director's lees, allow nets, and expenses 186 57 118 94 

Electricity charges 185.13 157.46 

Corp0rate So-tie Responsib Ay 183 54 57,60 

Auditor fees and expenses 152 14 91 55 

Printing and stationery 127.01 151 88 
Postage and courier 77.44 96.83 

Bank Charges 63 24 57 99 
Communication Costs 59.70 23.37 
Repairs and maintenance 47 88 47.01 

Membersh p & Subscrption 42 73 102 57 

Lass on Sale ir Scrap of Fixed Assets 17.11 46.50 

Other expenses S 17 35,27 
Brokerage & Commission 242 6.18 
Total 11,253.17 10,304.24 

Payment to auditors includes, lt in lakhs 
Particulars For the year ended 

March 31,2025 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 
a) F,r Statutory audit 96.25 48.08 

4) For limited review 32.70 16 35 
ci Fsr taxation matters 6.54 714 
d) F:1' other serv-ces (cenif cites) 21 80 19 93 
e) For reimbursement of expenses 4.25 -

Total 162.14 9I 55 
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Protium finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

33 Deferred tax liabilities (net) 

331 Reconciliation of total tax charge 
tin laths 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Current tax 2,790.15 1,493.64 
Adjustment to tax relating to earlier periods (329.78) - 
Deferred tax 3,010.37 2,681 84 
Total Income tax expenses recognised in the current year 5,470.74 4,175.48 

Income tax expense recognised in other comprehensive 
income 

313 12 17 92 

Income tax expense for the year reconciled to the 
accounting profit. 
Profit before tax 22,594.62 15,850.61 
Income tax rate 25.17% 25.17% 
Income tax expense 5,683.07 3.98960 
Tax effect of.
Effect of Ind AS adjustments (net) (4,231.45) (3,264 53) 
impairmentof Loans 1,131.64 505.04 
Expenses allowed under Income Tax Act, 1961 (1,509.51) (3139.74) 
Disallowances under Income 7ax Act, 1961 4,392.99 3,135.11 
Income tax expense recognised In profit and loss 5,470.74 4,175.48 

33.2 The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded In the Income tax expense: 

As at March 31, 2025 (i in lakhs) 
Particulars Opening balances as 

on April 01, 2024 
Recognised in profit 
or loss (Expense)/ 

Income 

Recognised in other 
comprehensive 

Income 

Closing balances as 
on March 31, 2025 

Deferred tax asset 
Impairment of financial instruments 1,369.95 1,131 74 2,501.68 
Disallowances under section 438 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 7110 162 66) 13.11 21.55 

Fair valuation of derivative financials instrument 8 82 (8.82) 300.00 300.00 
Total Deferred tax asset 1,449 86 1,060 26 313.12 2,823.24 
Deferred tax liabilities 
Ind AS adjustment (effective interest rate on fee income and 
expenses, EIS on assignment) 

Difference between books and tax written down value of 
fired assets 

(5,113 911 

(248.36) 

(4,318.95) 

248 31 

(9,432 87) 

(005) 

Total deferred tax liabilities (5,362.271 (4,070.65) (9,432.91) 
Total (3,912.41) (3,010 39) 313 12 16,609.68) 

As at March 31, 2024 iS in laths) 
Particulars Opening balances as 

on April 01,2023 
Recognised in profit 
or loss (Expense)/ 

Income 

Recognised in other 
comprehensive 

Income 

Closing balances as 
on March 31, 2024 

Deferred tax asset 
impairment of financial Instruments 864,90 905 04 . 1,369.95 
Disallowances under section 436 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 4438 17 21 9 10 71 10 

Fair valuation of derivative financials instrument . 8.82 8.82 
Total Deferred tax asset 909.69 52225 17.92 1,449.86 
Deferred tax liabilities 
Ind AS adjustment (effective interest rate 011 Fee income and 
expenses, E15 on assignment) 

(1,76134) (3,352 58) • (5,113.91) 

Difference between books and tax written down value of 
fixed assets 

(396 85) 148 50 (248 36) 

Total deferred tax liabilities (2,158.19) (3,204.08) (5,362.27) 
Total (1,248.50) 12,681.82j_ 17.92 (3,912 41) 

ti
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note "34" 
Earnings per share ('EPS') 
Basic earnings per share is calculates by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Group by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Group with the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year adjusted for assumed conversion of all dilutive 
potential equity shares. 

i. Profit attributable to equity shareholders: 
(3 in lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Profit/ (loss) after tat as per Statement of Profit and Loss 17,123.88 11,675.13 
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders for calculation of Basic EPS 17,123.88 11,675.13 

Net profit adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares for 
calculation of Diluted EPS 

17,123 88 11,675 13 

iL Weighted average number of Shares and earnings per share (EPS) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in 
calculating basic earnings per share 

14,53,08,026 10,95,68,973 

Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share. 
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares 
used as the denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share 

14,57,63,753 10,95,68,973 

Effect of dilution: 
Employee stock options 4,55,727 
Bask earnings per share (X) 11.78 10.66 
Diluted earnings per share (e) 11.74 10.66 

ss 

(This space has been left blank intentionally) 

O FIN 



ProOwn Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

35 Segment reporting 
The Group operates in a single reportable operating segment of providing loans. All other activities revolve around the main business further, all activities are carried our within indd As 
such, there are no se reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 on 'Segment Reporting'. 

36 Contingent liability & commitment, 

(5 in laths) 
Particulars As at 

Math 31.2025 
As at 

March31,2024 
Contingent liablety • 

Commitments 
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 
capital account 

- 47 45 

Undisbursed Loan commitments 19,321 13 03,496 21 

Note: 
1 There are no pending litigations against the Group 

2. The Group has a process whereby periodically all long-term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses, At the year end, the Group has reviewed and ensured that adequate 
provisions (if any) required under any law / accounting standard / RBI regulation for material foreseeable losses on such long-term contracts has been made in the books of account_ 

37. Employee benefit 
In accordance terms of the Indian Accounting Standard 19 'Employee Benefits', the requisite disclosures are as follows 

0 Defined contribution plans: 

The Company recognized charges of INR 781 85 la khs (March 31, 2024. INR 67102 lath) for Provident fund contributions 

it) Compensated absences 
The actuarially determined liability for compensated absences of accumulated leaves of the employees of the Group a given below 

Particulars As at March 31,2025 As at March 31,2024 
Assumptions: 
Discount rate 
Salary escalation rate 
Rateof employee turnover 

6 54% -6.59% 

500% 
Forservice 4 year, and 

below 25.00% (6100% for 
subsidiary) p.a. & For 

se ndoe 5 years and above 
8.00% pa 

7 17% 

5.00% 
For service 4 years and 

below 25.00% p.a. & For 
service 5 years and 

above 8.00% pa 

Actual : 
Present value of anfunded obagatIons (Rs in laths) 
Expenses recognised In P&L (RS In akin) 

57.43 
10.40 

51.20 
17.07 

Discount tate' The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government Securities as at the balance sheet date for the stimated term of the obligations 

III) Defined benefit gratuity plans: 
Every employee who veil complete live years or more of seryioe gets a gratuity on departure at 15days salary last dr-miter each completed year of septic?. The Group recognized charges of 
INR 162 46 lakhs (March 31. 2024' INR 110.09 lads) for Gratuity Fund. The same is payable at the time of se pa ration from the Company or retirement, whichever is earlier 

Assumptions As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31. 2024 
Discount rate 6 54%. 6 59% 7 17% 

Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00% 
Rate of return on plan assets NA NA 
Rate of Employee Turnover For serif co 4 years and For mitre 4 years and 

below 25.00% (61.00% for below 25 00% p.a. & Fo 
SU bald ary)p.a. & For service 5 years and 

service $ years and above above 9 00%p a 
8.00% p a 

Mortality Rate During Employment Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality mortality 

2012.14 (Urban) 2012-14 (Urban) 
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Protium 'mance united 

Hetes to the googol:dated Financial Statements 

5/ Coto zee benefit (continued] 

Table showing change in the present value of projected herefit obligation 
in laths 

Particulars Asat Mardi 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Present value of Benefit obligation at the beginning of the year (Unfunded) 2132.10 13613 
Interest cost 20.25 9.94 
Current service cost 142 21 100 15 
Liability transferred out/ Divestment 
Actuarial (Gains) on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions (14.28) - 
Actuarial (Gains) on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial Assumptions 23.42 3.19 
Actuarial Losses on Obligations • Due to Experience 42.95 32.99 
Benefits paid (6.39) 

Present valve of obligation as at the end of the year (unfunded) 49656 282.40 

Amount recognised In the Balance Sheet 

in lakhs 
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 Mat March 31,2024 

Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the year (590 57) (282.40) 
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 
Funded Status ]Deficit) 0190.57) (282.40 
Net IliahllItyWasset recognized in the Balance Sheet (490.57) (282.40: 

Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
et in lakhs) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Current service cost 142.21 100.15 
Net Interest cost 20.25 9.94 
Amount included in employee benefit expenses 162.96 110.09 

Expenses recognized in the Other comprehensive income (00) 

in lakhs 
Particulars Cat March 31,2025 As at March 31,2024 

Actuarial Losses on obligation for the vear 52.10 36.18 
Net Expense for the year recognized In OCI 52.10 36.18 

The estimates of future slimy increases, considered in actuanal valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant f ctors 

Balance sheet recondllatIon 

(tin laths) 
Particulars As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Opening net I lability 282.40 136.13 
Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 162.46 110.09 
Expenses recognized In OCI 52.10 36.18 
Net (Liability) Transfer Out (6.39) 
Net liability recognized in the Balance Sheet 490 56 282.40 

Cash flow projection 

Maturity analysis of the benefit payments: from the employer 
(tin laths) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at Mardi 31,2024 

Projected beneltts payable In future years from the date of reporting 
1st Following Year 17.64 3.07 
2nd Following Year 28.91 11.42 
3rd Following Year 39.01 19.42 
4th Following Year 44.51 26.03 
5th Following Year 46.18 30.11 
Sum of Years 6 to 10 219.83 138.35 
Sum of Years t l  and above SEP 90 401.45 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Nate. to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

3l. Employee benefit (continued) 

Sensitivity analysis 

Particulars 

Projected benefit obligation on current assumptionS 
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of discounting 
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of discounting 
Delta affect of sl% change re rate of salary increase 
Delta effect of 1% change in rate of salary increase 
Delta effect 01+1% change In rate of employee turnover 
Delta effect of -1% :hangs in rate of employee turnover 

ft in lakhs) 
Asat Mardi 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024 

490.56 
139.20) 
45 29 
39 80 

{36 2S) 
(2.65) 
1.87 

282.40 
12/ 82) 
27.53 
24 99 

(22.67) 

(359) 
301 

Qualitative disclosures 

Gratuity is a der ned benefit plan and group Is exposed to the following risks 

Interest rate risk A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G Sec Rate will Increase the present value of the he belay restoring higher provision 

Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is Lakulated by reference to the future salaries of members As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than 
assumed level will increase the plan's liability 

Asset Liability Matching Risk:The plan faces the AIM risk as to the matching cash flow Group has to manage pay out based on pay as you go basis from own funds 

Mortality risk: 51 ce the bereflts under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk. 
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Protium Finance limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

38. Employee stack option plan 
in accordance with the resolution approved by the Shareholders on January 24, 2023, the Group has reserved share, for issue to employees through Protium Finance Employee Stock Option Plan I( 
ESOP Plan 0. Under the terms of ESOP Plan I Company may issue stock option to the employees of the Company each of which Is convertible into one equity share 

As on March 31 2025 
Grant date Exercise price 

(Rs) 
Opening ESOP Options granted 

during the year 
Options expired 
during the year 

Options 
exercised during 

the year 

Options forfeited 
during the year 

Options 
outstanding at the 

end of the year 

Exercisable at 
the end of the 

year 

15-Apr-23 166 20,18,072 1,20,482 5,00,255 13,97,335 3,08,816 
15-May-23 166 9,27,274 1,72,398 49,556 7,00,320 1,49,955 
1-Jan-25 166 81,324 81,324 -

1-Jan-25 480 8,74,632 8,74,632 
31-Mar-25 480 41,667 41,667 

Total 29.40,346 9,97,623 2,929380 5,49,811 30,95,278 4,58,771 

M on March 31.2024 
Grant date Exercise price 

(Rs) 
Opening ESOP Options granted 

during the year 
Options expired 
during the year 

Options 
exercised during 

the year 

Options forfeited 
during the year 

Options 
outstanding at the 

end of the year 

Exercisable at 
the end of the 

year 

15-Apr-23 
15-May-23 

166 
166 

20,18,072 
10,15,646 93,372 

20,18,072 
9,22,274 

Total 30,33,718 93,372 29,40,346 

Method used for accounting for share based payment plan 
The Group has used the fair value method to account for the compensation cost of stock options to employees. The fair value of options used dre estimated on the date of grant using the Black — 
Scholes Model. The key assumptions used In Black —Scholes Model for calculating fair value as on the date of respective grants are: 

Grant date Employee Type Risk free 
Interest rate 

Expected life (In 
years) 

Expected 
volatility 

Dividend yield Price of the 
underlying share 
in the market at 
the time of the 

option grant (Rs.)* 

Optionsgranted I Fair value of 
options (Rs.) 

Weighted 
average residual 

life in years 

Vesting 
period (In 

years) 

15-Apr-23 Al 7.05% 3.75 25.00% 0% 166 12,04,820 5135 1.79 3.00 
15-Apr-23 A2 7.05% 4.25 25.00% 0% 166 4,81,927 55.58 2.29 3.00 
15-Apr-23 A3 7.07% 5.00 24.00% 0% 166 3,31,325 60.64 3.04 4.00 
15-Ma, -23 51 speciised 

employee 
6.96% 4.10 25.00% 0% 166 66,264 54.04 2.22 3.00 

15-May-23 52 specified 
employee 

6.96% 4.70 25.00% 0% 166 1,50,600 58 91 2 82 4.00 

15-May-23 53 specified 

employee 
696% 5.50 2400% 0% 166 1,29,516 63 95 3.62 5.00 

15-May-23 S1 Others 6.96% 4.50 25.00% 0% 166 3,08,429 56.33 2.62 4.00 
15-May-23 52 Others 6.96% 5.00 24.00% 0% 166 2,57,225 6022 3.12 4.00 
15-May-23 53 Others 6.96% 5.50 24.00% 0% 166 1,03,612 63.95 3.62 5.00 
01-Jan-25 2025151/166 6.63% 4.33 42.83% 0% 166 81,324 101A9 9.09 2.75 
01-Jan-25 2025152/480 6.65% 4.81 44.85% 0% 480 2,45,466 29.51 4.57 3.75 
01-Jan-25 2023/41/480 6.65% 4.81 44.85% 0% 480 6,29,166 29.51 4.57 3.75 
31-Mar-25 2025/42/480 6.37% 4 63 43.83% 0% 980 41,667 25.90 4.62 3.50 

1.The weighted avera e fair value of op ions granted during the year was Rs 35 13 (31 March 024:Rs 55.70). 
2. For the year ended March 31, 2025, the Group has accounted expense of Rs 825.46 La khs as employee beneh expenses on the aforesaid employee stock option plan (Previous year Rs 439 66 
lakhs). 
• Method of settlement - Equity settled ESOPs 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

39. Expenditure towards corporate social responsibility as per section 135 of the companies Act, 2013 (read with schedule vii 'hereof) 

a Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year- Rs 174 61 laths (Previous Year Rs 67 98 laths) 

b The details of amount s eMm resc.t.l.nre 'ear bwaed. CSR as {1,4 "WY, k in laths) 

laden FOr the Year ended 
Mardi 31, 2025 

For the year ended 
March 31,2024 

Construction/ acquisition of asset: 
Amount required to be spent by the Group during the year 
Shortfall of earlier year brought forward 
Amount spent 

Amount unpaid I provision/ shortfall ' carried forward 

On purpose other than above: 
Amount required to be spent by the Group during the year 174 61 67.48 
Shortfall of ea t ter year brought forward - - 
Amount paid 183 54 6280 
Amount lo nexedskm. Shortfa Laces ranted forward (8 92) 

Notes' 
1.The Group has contributed to various CSR initiatives in accordance with the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. Contributions were made to C5R partners such as Cuddles 
Foundation, Akshara Foundation, Suryoday Foundation. Swadlia Foundation, Indian Dream Foundation, and Youth for Seva These panne rships focus on key areas such as healthcare, education, 
skull development and financial literary. the Group has fully utilized the allocated CM funds for the year There is eaten amount of its 892 Laths to be carried forward to succeeding years 

2.in respect of other than ongoing projects, there are so unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with 
second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act 
3. There are no uns pent amounts In respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of Section 135 of Comps n es 
Act 

90 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 107 "Financial instruments: Disclosures" 

la) Currant and non-current maturity: Cc in laths) 

Particulars As at Mardi 31,71325 As at Mardi 31, 2024 

930dn 12 months After 12 months Total Within 12 months After 12 months Total 
ASSETS 
Financial assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 84,610.62 84,680.62 90.011.10 - 90,023.10 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 41,955.82 41,955.82 42.185 73 268 37 42,454.10 
Derivative financial instrument 
Trade Receivables 854.99 

4152 

171 96 
41.52 

1,026.95 992 23 
- 
- 992.23 

loans 1.09,020.20 3,14,546.62 4,23,56652 97,380.21 2,25,991.16 3,23,371.37 
Investments 49,677.% 2,988.80 51.666.76 26,10245 47 52 26,149.98 
Other Financial assets 12,921.76 22,925.36 15.857.12 12.756.01 11.392.31 13,898.32 

Sub total 2,95.111 34 3,40,589 25 6,33.79561 2,69.439.73 2,17,999.36 5,06,889.09 

Non-financial assets 
Current tee easels (Net) 65817 655 67 1,418.58 1,41858 
Property Plant and Equipment 2,307.82 2,30782 45 93 3,093.11 3,141.59 
Intangible Assets under development 87.55 87 55 111 05 11106 
Intangible Assets 320753 3,207.53 3,271 26 3,271.26 
Other Non Financial assets 3,40555 905.69 4,31114 2,004.41 2,004.41 
Sub total 3.405.85 7,167.26 10,573.12 2163.90 7,783.00 9,946.90 
Total assets 3,01,517.20 3,47,851.51 6.49,368.72 2,71,603.63 2,45,232.36 5,16,835.99 

LIABIUTIES 
Financial liabilities 
Derivative financial instrument • - 35 04 35 04 
Trade Payables 027 20 827 28 2,39815 - 2396.1.5 
Debt Securities 2,517.94 2.517,99 7.03183 3,569.47 10,592.30 
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 1,20,828.15 2.56,540112 3,77,669.69 84,283.10 1,69.939.76 2,53,71756 

10,12431 Other financial liabtlittes 10295.40 526.41 13,071.60 1,137.83 14,209.93 
Sub total 1,34A7249 2,57,367.23 3,91,839.72 1,06 78569 2,74232.05 2139917.74 

Non-financial liabilities 
Provisions 31 93 516.06 547.99 54 97 278.62 333.59 
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 6.609.65 6,609.68 - 3,912.41 3,91241 
Other non-financial Ira billies 3,543.12 191.02 4,034,14 1,256.95 1,974.23 3,231.21 

Sub total 3,87505 7,316.76 11,191.81 1,311.95 6,165.26 7,477.21 
Total liabilities i re 447,..44 ! , 654.00  : 403,03153 1114097.64 120.191.31 Ana 
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Notes to the Consolidated 'manual Statements 
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(b) Finandng arrangement 
The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of reporting period 

'Particulars For the Year ended 
March 31, 2025 

  39,300 00 Undrawn backup lines 

(C) Carrying amount of collateral given 

(T in laths( 
For the Year ended 

March 31,2024 
11,000.00

It in lakhs) 
Particulars For the Year ended 

March 31, 2025 
For the Year ended 

March 31.2,324 
Sank balances other than cash equivalent 
Loan and advances 

6,092.23 
4,1.8,245.96 2,51,729.07 

• Including interest accrued and reinvested accrued interest of Rs 451.97 lakhs. Further, out of Rs 452.97 laths, Rs 191 97 laths erten.a to the lien marked filled deposits, 
liabilities against which was paid in the month of March' 2025 whet lien was discharged in the month of Apr' 2025 

Id) Financial assets are transferred but not derecognised in their entirety • 
(II Securitisation 

in laths 
Particulars For the Year ended 

March 31, 2025 
For the Year ended 

March 31,2024 

Carrying amount of assets 
Carrying amount of associated Liabilities 

23,745.64 

17,512.50 

38,74302 

36.021.17 

lig Assignment and Colending 
The Group has sold loans (measured at amortised cost and Ft/00) byway of direct bgateral assignment and colending, as a source of finance. 

M per the terms of these deals, since substantial risk and rewards related to these assets were transferred to the buyer, the assets have been de recognised from the 
Group's balance sheet. 
The table below summarises the carrying amount of the derecognised financial assets measured at amortised cost and the gain/(loss) on derecognition, per type of asset 

(8 in laths) 

Particulars For the Year ended 
Mardi 31, 2025 

For the Year ended 
March 31,2024 

Carrying amount of de.recognised financial asset 239,17201 1.71,104.44 
Carrying amount of retained asset at amortised cost 52.41166 96,835.99 
Net gain en sale of the de-recognised financial asset at amortised cost' 22,038,68 16,535.41 
Net gain on sale of the de-recognised financial asset at F1f0Cl• 3352.64 - 
'Amount represents net gain on derecognition of financial asset for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 

lel During the year, the Group has aceulred loan portfolio from another MFG, for a consideration of As 35,101 40 lakhs, recognised in the following stages / asset classilinhon 
as per Ind AS 109: 

la in laths) 
Stage Amount 
Stage 1 34 909 78 
Stage 2 149.19 
Stage 3 (Pea) • 4243 
Total 35,101,40 

' Purchased or originated Credit IMPaired Loans 

Me'ABAI 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

41. Capital 

The Group actively manages its capital base to cover risks inherent to its business and meets the capital adequacy requirements of the regulator -
Reserve Bank of India The adequacy of the Group's capital is monitored using, among other measures, the regulations issued by RBI. 

(i) Capital management 

Objective 

The Group's objective is to maintain appropriate levels of capital to support its business strategy taking into account the regulatory, economic and 
commercial environment. The Group aims to maintain a strong capital base to support the risks inherent to its business and its growth strategy The 
Group endeavors to maintain a higher capital base than the mandated regulatory capital at all times. 

Planning 

The Group's assessment of capital requirement is aligned to its planned growth which forms part of an annual operating plan which is approved by the 
Board and also a long range strategy. These growth plans are aligned to assessment of risks- which include credit, liquidity and interest rate. 

The Group monitors its capital adequacy ratio (CRAB) on a monthly basis through its assets liability management committee (ALM) 

The Group maintains its capital structure in line with the economic conditions and the nsk characteristics of its activities and the board reviews the 
capital position on a regular basis 

Gearing ratio: 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Debt 3,80,187.63 2,64,310 16 
Total Equity 2,46,337.19 2,28,406.01 
Debt to Equity Ratio (in times) 1.54 1.16 

(it in lakhs) 

BB Regulatory Capital (N m lakhs) 
Particulars M at 

March 31, 2025 
As at 

March 31, 2024 
Tier I Capital 2,07,495.37 2,03,899.44 
Tier II Capital 1,261.10 
Total Capital 2,08,756.47 2,03,899.44 

Total Risk weighted assets 4,56,981.07 3,52,404.18 
Tier I CRAB 45.41% 57.86% 
Tier II CRAR 0.28% 0.00% 
Total capital 45.68% 57.86% 
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Notes to the CansoEdited Nmmul Statements 

42. Risk managemem framework 

While risk Is inherent in the Group's activities, it is managed through an integrated risk management framework, including ongoing identification measurement and monitoring, wiriest to 
risk Pings and other controls 

The Board of Directors are responsible for the moult rosk management approach and nor approving the risk management straws., and mukluks 

The risk committee has the overall responsibility km the development of the risk strategy and implementing principles frameworks, potions and limits The ink committee is responsible for 
managing risk decisions and mgitoiing risk Noels and reports to the Board 

The Group's risks are generally categosited in the following risk types 
a) Credit risk 
hiLiquidity risk 
C) Market risk 
d) Operational risk 
e) Foreign currency rink 

a) Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails m meet its contactual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's trade 
eeceivables and Wens. The Group has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral, whose appropriate, as a mean, cif mitigating the risk of 
financial loss from delaults In case the loans are to be restructured, similar credit assessment process is followed by the Stoup 

The Stoup's cringe to credit rig is influenced mainly by go Individual characteristics of each customer However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of 
its custom, base including the default nsk of The industry end country in which customers operate 

The Group manages and controls coedit rids by tatting limits on the amount of rig it is willing to accept for individual counterparties/Groups (Single Borrowing LimittGroup Borrowing Omit) and 
for industry concenttatIons, and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits. 

Credit quality of a customer is assessed bawd on its credit worthiness and historical dealing, wills the Group and market intelligence. Outstanding customer receivables nee regularly monitored 
The credit quality review protest aims to allow the group to assess the potential loss ass result of the !IASI!) WhICII It iseaposed and take corrective actions 

Fonanclal goats measured on a collective basis 

The group splits its exposure into smaller homogeneous portfolios, based on shared credit Ink charxterrst. as described below in the following order 
- Secured/unsecured i.e. bagel on whether the roans are secured 
• Nature of security le the nature of the security if the loans are determined to be secured 
- Nature of loan I e based on the nature of loan 

significant inergre in credit risk 
The group considers an exposure to have significantly increased in credit rok when the borrower crosses 30 OLD but is within 90 OPP. 
Impairment sssss sment 
The gtoup considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 lucdibimpaked) for Ea. calculations m all cases when the borrower crosses 90 days past due on its contractual 
payments. Further, the borrower is retained in Stage 3 icrediTimpaired) till all the overdue amounts are repaid i e borrower becomes 0 days past due an its contractual payments 

Exposure at default 
The exposure at default (TAD) represents the gross ca writ amount of the financial instruments subject to the impairment calculation 

Loss given default 
The credit ink assessment is based on a Standairdig d LGO assessment framework that incorporates the rebaL2lIty of default and subsequent recoveries, discounted. 

Current economic data and forward-looking economic forecasts and 'canaries are used in order to determine the Ind AS 109 100 rate.The Group uses own historical data and combines such data 
with Inputs to the Group s fcl model' including determining the weights attributable to themultiple scenarios 

Credit [Nagy a assess 

I) The tab e below shows credit quality and maximum exposure to credit risk based on year end stage classification, The amounts presented are gross of Impairment loss allowance 

Sr No Particulars toss Allowance 
measured It 12 

month ECL 
(Stage 1) 

Lott Allowance measured an life time 
ECL 

Mandel Assets 
for whkh credit 

risk has Increased 
sIgnilicantN and 

credit not Impaired 
(Stage2) 

Financial Assets 
for which credit 

risking Increased 
significantly and 
credit impaired 

(Stage 3) 

• As on March 31,238 
Estimated gross carrying amount al default 4.14565.80 8,62545 10,135.03 
(nettled credit ton (3349 26) (2,243.64) 11,966.83) 
Carrying amount net of Impairment Provision 4,10,116 53 6,311.81 6,466.411 

II As on March 31, 2024 
Estimated gross cement amount at default 3,15,124.13 3,51819 5,40221 
Expected credit toss (1,901.42) (892.10) (3A73.03) 
Carrying amount net of impalement Provision 3.11,122.71 2,623.99 2,914.48 

II As on March 31,2015 
Estimated gross carrying amount at default 4,11,065 so 14625.45 50.43503 
Expected credit Loss (3,349.26) (2,243.64) (3.955.551 
Carrying amount net of Impairment Provision 4,10,71653 6.391 Bs 0,49414$ 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Note, to the Consolidated Financier treMeirt, 

42 Risk management !removed; (continued) 
1An analysis of changeson the grow carrying amount and col responding ECL allowastes in (Nahum to loans n as under 

(I in laths) 
SrNo Particulars Stisea__ .. Stage 2 Stage 3 Pap' Total 

Gross CathAng amount balance as at March 31. 2023 2,36,787.23 1,198.04 1.57670 2.40261.97 
New Loans originated during the year 1.72.950.48 2,136.61 2,518.10 3,77,605.16 
-Transfers to Stage 1 274.54 (205.49) 169.05) 
-Transfers to Stage 2 12.915.261 2,915.29 (0.03) • • 
-Transfers to Stage 3 0,367.301 (1,043.661 1,410.96 
.tham that have been de recognised during the period (1.60,042 011 • (1,60442.612 
Wrmen oils • (4,566.22) 14,566.12) 
Matured or repaid during theyear (1,19.962.941 (2.189.671 (2467.75) • a 
Gross CATior amount balance as at March 31 2024 319724.13 3.51119 5,402.71 3,2%631.03 
New loans originated during the year 5,07,178 42 149.46 42 43 5,07,370 31 
dilanSIOIS collage 1 635.37 (96.68) (531.701 • (0.00) 
•Trainkrs to Stage 2 0,387.971 7,409.96 0199) 0.00 
•Translers (*Stage 3 (12,003.071 (2,489.18) 14,492.25 -
-Mans that have been de recognised during the period (2,26160.351 - (2,16,760.35) 
Written offs (10,703.69) 142.43) (10,744.11) 
Matured or repaid during the year (147,320321 140.69 1404.44 (1,6%375 59) 

I Gross Carrying aincont balance as at March 31, 2025 4,14,06540 8,625.46 20415 01 . 4,33,126 27 

Mn of loan account, with principal and /or interest overdue (Including :cram classified as Slit Mont Intresse in Ctedd Pack (NCR) and credit impairer% as at March 31, 2025 is 1,811 
(Stage 11/120 (Stage 21 and 3.387 'Stage 3) 

4 in laths 
Sr No Partkuhrs Stage 1 SNP 2 Stage 3 PoCI• total 

r E4 allowance amount %Nonce ars at March 34 2029 7,115.74 43595 80036 343455 
New Leans Originated during the year 3,912.22 • • 3,91222 
'Transfers to Stage 1 43.33 (32.261 (31 071 
•Transfers to Stage / (5113.311 583.04 
'Transfers to Stage! (1.326.58) (299.071 L62565 - 
•Loans that have been de recognised during the period (944 25) 1944.25) 
Written eats • 12.968.041 11961.04) 
Impact on war end Kt of exposures transferred between 
stages during the year 

(105 37) 296 40 3.493.38 3.684.41 

Matured or repaid during the year (1,329.81) (97.581 1447 251 ILTE4.631 
II Ea allowance amount balanceas at Ninth 31, 2024 1,901.41 4117.20 2.478.03 5,16119 

New Loans originated during the year 6,511.25 30.19 42.43 6,58317 
Transfers to Stage 1 144.36 16.401 1137.961 . 

Transfers to Stage 2 0235461 1.141.35 (5.501 • 
Transfers to Stage 3 (1,1138.921 (710981 2.549.59 • 
Loans that have been de recognised during the year r1,111.48) - 11,811.18) 
Written offs - 19,003.46) {42.431 19,045.90) 
Impact on year end ECt of exposures transferred between 
stages during the year 

886 93 1,65417 11,506.53 14,047.73 

Matured or :timid during the year (1.308 041 052.30) 0.420.691 - 15481.051 
ICI ECL allowance amount balance as al March 31.2025 3.34926 2.243.64 3,966.55 9,559.44 

• Purchased or originated Credit Impaired Loans 

Analysis Wrist concentration 

Tine Icllew ng table shows risk concentration of the 610.111.1 bans bath I rketholme nth sma Mn homogeneous po Noimk li ned an shared crethl risk characteristics as under. 

tin lakhs 
Particulars As at 

Marth 31, 2015 
As at 

March 31, 2024 
Carrying value of Loans 
than against property (LAP( 2,40,359.01 1,83111.68 
Business Loan 1,47,710.61 91,132.61 
Ina• against machinery 27,9/2.92 17140.72 
Corporate lending 13,605.15 11,285.29 
Conrumer loan 3,476.91 25,266.53 
Total 4,31,126 27 3,34,441.03 

p 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

42 Risk management framework (continued) 

bi liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Group might be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash f ows under both norma 
and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, management has arranged for diversified funding sources, and adopted a policy of managing assets with liquidity in mind and monitoring future cash flows and 
liquidity on a daily basis 

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities 

As at March 31, 2025 

Particulars Carrying Amount Not later than one 
month 

Later than one month 
and not later than 

three months 

Later than three 
months and not later 

than one year 

Later than one year and 
not later than five years 

Later than five years 

ASSETS 

financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 84,680.62 67213 03 17,067.59 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 41,95522 31.34 22,770 53 19,15395 
Derivative financial instrument 41.52 - - 41 52 • 
Trade receivables 1,026.95 833.34 21.65 17196 -
Loans 4.23.566.82 15.12832 19.48357 74402.31 1.98.808 78 115.737.84 
Investments 51.666.76 8.159.59 19.424.31 21.094.05 2.88954 99.26 
Other financial assets 35,857.12 732.51 2,674.45 9,514.79 19,703 34 3,232.02 

Sub total 6,38,795.61 92,498.14 81,426.45 1,24,186.76 2,21,615.14 2,19,069.12 

Non-financial assets 

Current tax assets (net) 658.67 658 65 0.02 
Property plant and equipment 2,307.82 - 2,307.82 
intangible assets under development 87.55 - 87.55 
Intangible assets 3,207.53 - 3,207.53 
Other non-financial assets 4.311.54 1,227.61 763AS 1,414.80 905.69 
Sub total 10,573.12 1,227.61 763.45 1,414.80 658.65 6208.61 

Total assets 6,49,368 72 93,725 75 62,169.90 1,25,601 56 2,22,273 79 1,25.577.73 

LIABILITIES 

Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 827.28 827.28 - 
Debt securities 2,517.94 2,517.94 - - - - 
Borrowings (other than debt securities' 3,77,669.69 10,593.04 22,475.78 87,760.05 2,48,15368 8,685.14 
Other financial liabilities 10,824.81 5.828.98 1,514.57 1,954.85 526.41 
Sub total 3,91.839.72 20.767,24 23,990.35 89,714.90 2,48,682.09 8,685.14 

Non-financial liabilities 
Provisions 547.99 31 93 124.00 392.06 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 6,609.68 - 6,609.68 
Other non-financial liabilities 4,034.14 3,84312 - • 191.02 
Sub total 11,191.81 3,843.12 31.93 124.00 7,192,75 
Total liabilities 4,03,031 53 24,610.36 23,990.36 89,746.83 2,48,806.09 15,877.89 

(R in iakhs) 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

As at March 31, 2024 

Particulars Carrying Amount Not later than one 

month 

Later than one month 

and not later than 
three months 

later than three 

months and not later 
than one year 

Later than one year and 

not later than five years 

later than five years 

ASSETS 

Financial assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 90.023.10 77.290.36 12.732.74 -
Bank balances other than cash and cash eoui va lents 42.45440 405.27 22 375.48 19.404 98 268 37 -
Trade Receivables 99423 992.23 -
Loans 3.23.371.37 14,060.39 18.38910 64,929.92 1 33230 97 87.760.19 
Investments 26149.98 17,95335 7.945.91 203 19 47.52 
Other Financial assets 23.898.32 1 364 52 3.939.62 7251.87 10 014 86 1 127.45 
Sub total 5,06 889 10 1,12,266.12 65 383 65 91 789.96 1,48,514.19 88,935.17 

Non-financial assets 
Current tan assets (Net) 1,418.58 1 416 58 - 
Property P.8nt and EauioMent 3.141.59 4843 - • 3.09316 
ntangible Assets under development 111.06 - 111 til 
ntangibie Assets 3,271.26 • - - 3.271,26 
Other Non Financial assets 2,004.41 895.01 340.67 763.71 . -
Subtotal 9.946.90 943.46 340.67 879.77 1 0 18.58 6,364.42 
Total assets 5 16 831 01 1 13 209 58 65 774 3) 92 669 73.. 440 052 77 95299 59 

LIABILITIES 

Financed liabilities 

Derivative financial instrument 35.04 • . - 35.04 
Trade Payables 2,398.15 2,398.15 . - • 
Debt Securities 10,592.30 3,98BAD 2,905.51 138.92 1,535.54 2,023.93 
Borrowings (Other than Debt Secant esl 2.53,717.86 15,274.42 14.212.37 54.79631 1.66.378.82 3,055.94 
Other financial liabilities 14.209.45 3752.21 6 027.30 1292.10 1.137.83 -
Subtotal 2,80,952.78 24413.18 23,145.17 16.227.33 1.69.087.23 5,079.87 

Non-financial liabilities 

Provisions 333.59 - 54.97 224 98 53.64 
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 3,912.41 - - 3,912.41 
Other non-financia' lebilk:es 3,231.21 56088 15368 542.46 1.154.87 819.36 

Sub total 7.477.20 560.88 ISI BR 597.43 1379.85 :.7++
Total liabilities 2,88,429.98 27,974.06 23,298 82 56,824 77 1.70367.07 9.865 28 

fit in laths) 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted contractual cashflow of the Group's financial liabilities 

le in laths) 

Particulars As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Within 12 months After 12 months Total Within 12 months After 12 months Total 

Debt securities 2,535.36 • 2,535.36 8,624 50 2,535.36 11,159.86 
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 1,50,197.99 2,99,584 14 9,99,731.63 1,21,326.76 1,78684.32 3,00,011.09 
Trade payable 827.28 - 827.28 2,398.15 - 2,398.15 
Other financial liabilities 10,298.40 526.41 10,824,81 13.071.60 4137.83 14,209.43 
Total 1,63,808.53 3,00410.55 4.63.919.08 1,45,421.02 1,82,357.51 3,27,778.53 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

42 Risk management framework (continued) 

c) Market risk 

Market Risk is the possibility of loss arising from changes in the value of a financial nstrumeid as a result of changes in market variables such as interest rates, exchange rates and other asset prices 1 he 

Group's exposure to market nsk is a function of asset liability management and Interest rate sensitivity assessment. The Group is exposed to interest rate risk and liquidity ask, if the same is not managed 
properly The Group continuously monitors these risks and manages them through ape; opnate risk limits. The Asset Liability Management Committee ('ALCO') reviews market related hands and risks and 

adapt various strategies related to assets and liabilities, in line with the Group's risk management framework 

Exposure to interest rate risk 
The group's exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note 

(k in lakhs) 

Particulars As at 
March 31,2025 

M at 
Mardi 31,2024 

Financial assets 
Fixed-rate instruments 

Floating-rate instruments 

1,90,126.54 
2,35,475.30 

1,32,246.91 
1,91.020 68 

Sub-Total 4,25,601.84 3,23,267 59 

Add:Accrued / Overdue interest 7,524A/ 5,370.44 

Less: Unamortized cost/ impairmb.c 10:. allowance (9.559.45) (5.266.66) 

Total 4 23 566 82 3 3 371.37 

Financial Liabilities 

Fixed-rate instruments 
Floating-rate instruments 

97,494 41 
2,83,916 27 

78,399.78 
1,86 361.20 

tab-Total 3,82,410.643 2.64,760.98 

Add: Accrued Interest 1.289.40 1,612.78 

Less; Unamortized co 12,512.511 (2,063.60) 

Total 3,80,187.57 2,64,310.16 

Fair value sensitivity analysis for Floating-rate Instruments 

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on exposure to the interest rates for financial instruments a. the end of the reporting period and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning 

of the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting period in cased instruments that have floating rates. 

If interest rates had been I OD basis points higher or lower and all other vanables were constant, the Green's profit before tax would have changed by the following 

Particulars For the year ended March 31,2025 For the year ended Mardi 31, 2024 
100 bps higher 100 bps lower 100 bps higher 100 bps lower 

Floating rate loans 2,365.04 (2,366.04) 2,481.72 (2,481.72) 

Flaw  rate borrowings (2,839 16) 2,839.16 (1,361.38) 1,361.38 
Total (473 12) 473.12 1,120.34 (1,120.34) 

di Operational risk 

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people or systems, or from external events. The operational risks of the Group are managed through comprehensive 

internal control systems ano procedures Failure of managing operational risk might lead to legal / regulatory implications due to non-compliance and lead to financial loss due to control failures While it is not 
practical to eliminate all the operational risk, the Group has put in place adequate control framework by way of segregation of duties, well defined process, staff training, maker and checker process, 
authonsation and clear reporting structure The effectiveness of control framework Is assessed by internal by Risk Management committee on a periodic basis. 

e) Foreign currency risk 

In the normal course of business, the Group does not deal In foreign exchange in the significant way Any signif cant foreign exchange borrowings is fully hedged to safeguard against exchange rate risk. 

The Group's exposure of foreign currency nsk at the end of the eportmg period as follow 

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Hedged 

Foreign currency borrowings USD 916.72 Laths USD 330.00 Lakhs 

Derivative financial instrument Rs-77,091.90 Lakhs Rs 27,454A0 Lakhs 

OM A 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

43 Farr value measurement 

43.1 Valuation principles 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal )or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under 
current market conditions e , an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique In order to show how fair values have been derived, 
financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques: 
level 1— valuation technique using quoted market price. financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets that group can access at the measurement dale 
Level 2 — valuation technique using observable inputs: Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available 
over the entire period of the instrument's life 
Level 3— valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole 

43 2 Valuation governance framework 

The Group's fair sabre methodology and the governance over its models includes a number of controls and other procedures to ensure appropriate safeguards are in place to ensure its quality and 
adequacy. All new product initiatives !including their valuation methodologies) are subject to approvals by various functions of the Group including the risk and finance functions. 
Where fair values are determined by reference to externally quoted prices or observable pricing inputs to models, independent price determination or validation is used. For inactive markets, Group 
sources alternative market information, with greater weight given to information that is considered to be more relevant and reliable 
The responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with the business and product line divisions However finance department is also responsible for establishing procedures governing valuation and 
ensuring fair values are in compliance with accounting standards 

43.3 There have been no transfers between levels during the period ended March 31, 2025 and year ended March 31, 2024 

43.4 Valuation methodologies adopted Fair values of financial assets, other than those which are subsequently measured at amortised cost, have been arrived at as under 
• Fair values of investments held under FVtP1 have been determined under level 1 using quoted market prices of the underlying instruments; 
• Fair values of financial instruments designated under amortised cost/FVOCI have been measured under level 3 at fair value based on a discounted cash flow model. 

435 Fair value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost: 

The table below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments that are not carried at fair value in the financial statements This table does not 
include the fair values of non—financial assets arid non—financial liabilities 

As at March 31,2025 ₹ in lakhs 
Particulars Carrying Value 

(Amortised Cost) 
Fair value measurement using Total 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3* 

Financial Assets 
Trade receivables 1.026.95 1,026.95 1.026.95 
Loans 3,34,439.24 3,37,288.82 3.37.288.82 
Other financial assets 35,124.98 35,124.98 35.124.98 
Investment and financial receivables 
Investment 42,937.31 34,805.22 8,132.09 42,937.31 
Total financial assets 4,13,520.48 24,605.22 3,81,572..84 4,16,378.06 

Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 827.28 827.28 827.28 
Debt securities 2,517.94 2.517.94 2,517.94 
Borrowings 3,77,669.69 3.77.669.69 3,77,669.69 
Other financial liabilities 10,824,81 10.824.81 10,824.81 
Total financial liabilities 3,91,839.72 3 91 839.72 3,91,839.72 

As at *larch 31, 2024 
Particulars Carrying Value 

(Amortised Cost) 
Fair value measurement using Total 

Level 1 level 2 Level 3' 

Financial Assets 
Trade receivables 992.23 992.23 992.23 
Loans 3,23,371 37 3,23,371.37 3,23,371.37 
Other financial assets 23,224,99 23,224.99 23,224.99 
Investment and financial receivables -

investment 25,899 76 25,899.76 25,899 76 
Total financial assets 3,73,488 35 25,899.76 3,47,588 59 3,73,488 35 

Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 2,398.15 2,398.15 2,398.15 
Debt securities 10,592.30 10,592.30 10,592.30 
Borrowings 2,53,717.86 2,53,717.86 2,53,717.86 
Other financial liabilities 14 209.43 14,209.43 14,209.43 
Total financial liabilities 2,80,917.74 2,80,917.74 2,80,917.74 

₹ in lakhs 

' The ca °tassels and liabilities at amortised cost represents a reasonable approximation of fair value 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

44. Lease accounting 

The Group has entered into leasing arrangements for premises Right of Use Assets ("ROU") has been included under 'Property, 
Plant and Equipment' and Lease Liability has been included under 'Other financial liabilities' in the Balance Sheet. 

44.1 Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets (ROU): 

3 in lakhs 
Particulars As at 

March 31,2025 
As at 

March 31, 2024 
Balance at the beginning of the period 1,91526 639.32 
Addition during the period 945.52 2,396.13 
Disposals during the period (0.36) (288 39) 
Depreciation for the period (1,438.94) (831.80) 
Balance as at the end of the period 1,421.47 1,915.26 

44.2 The following is the movement in lease liabilities. 

₹ in lakhs 
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2025 
As at 

March 31, 2024 
Balance at the beginning of the period 1,946.80 673.19 
Addition during the period 922.35 2,347.68 
Finance cost accrued during the period 203 48 181 25 
Payment of Lease liabilities made during the period (1,557.98) (952.28) 
Disposal during the period (0.23) (303.04) 
Balance as at the end of the period 1,514.41 1,946.80 

44.3 The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as of march, 2025 on an undiscounted 
basis-

₹ in lakhs 
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2025 
As at 

March 31, 2024 
Less than one year 
Between one and five years 
More than five years 

1,075 51 
539.63 

1,036 94 
1,214 06 

-
Total 1,615.13 2,251.00 

44.4 Expenses recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss-
3 in lakhs 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets (Refer Note 10) 1,438.94 831.80 
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Refer Note 25) 203.48 181.25 
Expense relating to short-term leases 270.50 388.03 
Expense relating to leases of low value assets - - 

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the 
obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due. 

44.5 Amount recognised in the statement of Cash flow: 
₹ in lakhs 

Particulars As at 
Mardi 31, 2025 

As at 
March 31, 2024 

Total cash outflow for leases 1,557.98 952.28 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

45 DIIIICISLIFt of transactions with related parties as required by Ind AS 24 

a list nit related parties and relationship 

panic of rsiak1 Parties by whom avid ti rarriesen 

[Plumate Holding Company 

Key Management Personnel (KMP) 

Key Management Personnel (KMP) in 
Subildiary Companies 

Corolience Capital Management 

Mr. Peeyush Mina • (Managing Director I CE01 
Mr. Perurembe Ramachandran Seshadri - Independen. Director Resigned w e I 13 09 2023) 
Mr. Penmen Kumar Copts • Independent Director 

Ms nomad. Pao • Independent Director (appointed wet 29484025) 
Ms. Dakshita Das • Independent Director (appointed wee 16.0219241 
M. Phnom genie • Independent Director [appointed wef 16.02 20241 

Protium Business Services Private limited 
Mr. Mat Gunta (appointed wecl 29.02 2024) - Nominee Director 
Mr. Yogendra Singh -Director 

Mr. Ant Gary - Director 
SlabuiTechnologim Private timiteg 
Mr Aron Gupta (appointed w e (29 02.2024) - Nominee Director 
Mr Amit Gary (appointed w.e.f 27.06.20241 • Nominee Director 
Mr Yogendra Singh lappointed w.e f 27.06.2020 -Nominee Director 

Ms Dluutill Shah (appointed we( 05.09.2024). Additional Director 
Mr Monist Arvind Debit (ceased w.e I 29.06.20245 -Director 

b Transact ions with Related Parties 
(9 In laths) 

Nature of transactions For the year ender! 
March 31,2015 

For the year ended 

March 31,2024 
Investment from ultimate Holding Company 

CensIlience Capital Managemee' 83,224.97 

Director's lea, allowances, and 
Mr Parveen Kumar Gupta 4200 65.40 
Me. Anutadha Rao 34.0) 11 99 
Ms Dekshita Dm 34.00 • 
Mr Sitaram (unto 39.00 - 
Mr Peruvemba Rarnachandran Sell:add 26 16 

c. Relater, parties Oriente owtstondlim 
As at March 21, 1025 in lakhs 
Particulars Holding Company Subsidiary 

Companies 
KMP oldie Group Endaes control kd by 

KMP of the Group 
Investment merle by ultimate holding Company In equity 
shares of the Company 
Consilsence Capital Management 2.08.163 00 • 

As at March 31. 2024 
Particulars Holding Company Subsidiary KMP of the Group 

Commie. 

Entities controlled by 
KMP of theGROOP 

Investment made by ultimate fielding Company in equity 
shares of the Company 

ConsdrenceCapdal Management 2 05 753 oa - 

Note: 
1. Manna of the reNted parties and nature of their relationships where control exists have been disclosed irrespective el whether or not there have been transactions yeah the Group in other cases. disclosure has been 
made only when there have been transactions with those parties. 

2 Related parties as defied under paragraph 9 el Om Won Accounting Standard 29 'Related Party Disclosures have been identified band on representations made by key managerial personnel and information available 
with the Company. All above transactions are in the ordinary course of business and On arms length basis 

3. The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the linanclei year related to KMP. lha amounts do not Include expense. II any, recognised towerd post-employment benefits and 
other longterm benefits of key managerial personnel Such expenses we measwed baled on an acitterlet vawa if on done ler each Company in the Group as a whole Hence, amounts attributable to KMPs are not separately 
determinable. Director sitting end commission Including ineligible GST input 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

46. Additional Information as required by Paragraph 2 of the general Instruction of preparation of Consolidated financial statement to Schedule III to the companies Act 2013 

For the period ended March 31,2025 
Name of the entity In the group Net Assets (Total assets - Total 

Ilabil ties) 
Share In profit or loss Share in other comp ehensive Income Share In Total comp ehensive Income 

As % of 
Consolidated net 

assets 

Amount As % of 
Consolidated 
profit or loss 

Amount As % of Consolidated 
other comprehensive 

Income 

Amount As % of Consolidated 
Total comprehensive 

Income 

Amount 

Parent 

Protium Finance Limited 100.07% 2,46,507.95 99,86% 17,100.66 102.39% (953.09) 99.72% 16,147.57 

Subsidiaries 
Protium Business Services Private Limited 0.34% 844.81 0.18% 31.54 -2.39% 22.20 0.33% 53.75 
Shibui technologies Private Limited 0.02% 40.95 0.21% 35.89 0,22% 35.89 

a) Adjustments arising out of intercompany 
elimination 

hi Non-controlling interests 

.0.43% (1,056.53) 

- 

-0.25% (44.21) 

- 

-0.27% (44.21) 

Total 100.00% 2,46,337.19 100.00% 17,123.88 100.00% (930.89) 100.00% 16,192.99 

For the period ended March 31 2024 
Name of the entity in the group Net Assets (Tot I assets -Total 

Habil ties) 

Share In profit or loss Share in other comp ehensive Income Share in Total comprehensive Income 

As% of 

Consolidated net 
assets 

Amount As % of 

Consolidated 
profit or loss 

Amount As % of Consolidated 
other comprehensive 

Income 

Amount As% of Consolidated 
Total comprehensive 

Income 

Amount 

Parent 
Protium Finance Limited 100.09% 2,28,622.23 98.73% 11,527.13 117.27% (62.50) 98.65% 11,464.63 

Subsidiaries 
Protium Business Services Private Limited 0.35% 791.07 0.06% 6.86 .17.27% 9.20 0.14% 16.06 
Shibui technologies Private Limited 0.01% 5.07 0.03% 4.37 0.03% 4.37 

a) Adjustments arising out of intercompany 
elimination 

b) Non-controlling interests 

-0.45% (1,012.35) 1.18% 136.78 - - 1.18% 136.78 

Total 100.00% 2,28,406.01 100.00% 11,675,13 100.00% (53.29) 100,00% 11,621.89 

! in lakhs 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

47. There are no prior period items which are impacting Group's current year Profit and Loss 

98. Expenditure in foreign curren ₹ In lakhs 
Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2025 
For the year ended March 

31, 2024 
Processing fees on borrowings 

r 

184,21 
Membership & subscription charges 10.94 16.53 
Total 195.15 16.53 

49. There is no amount due and payable to micro and small suppliers registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Ente prises Development Act, 2006 at the end of the 
year other than as disclosed. No interest has been paid/ is payable by the Group during/for the period to these 'Supplier ' other than as disclosed. The above information 
takes into account only those suppliers who have submitted their registration details or has responded to the inquiries made by the Group for this purpose 

50. Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium 

As a part of normal lending business, the Group grants loans and advances on the basis of security/ guarantee provided by the Borrower/ co-borrower and makes 
investments. These transactions are part of Group's normal non-banking finance business, which is conducted ensuring adherence to all regulatory requirements. 

The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other persons or entities (Intermediaries) 
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall-
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
The Group has not received any fund from any persons or entities (Funding Party) with the understanding that the group shall 
(i) directly or indirectly lend or Invest In other persons or entities identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

51. The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 

52. Compliance with number of layers of companies! 
The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restnction on number of Layers) Rules, 
2017. 

53. Events occurring after balance sheet date - There have been no events after the reporting date that require adjustment in these financial statements_ 

54. Willful Defaulter: 
The Group is not a declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender, in accordance with the guidelines on willful defaulters issued by the 
Reserve Bank of India, during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024. 

55. Title Deeds of Immovable Properties not held In the name of the Group 
The Group does not hold any immovable property as on March 33, 2025 and March 31, 2024 All the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the Group for 
properties where the Group is the lessee 

56. The Group has no pending charges or satisfaction of charges, which are required to be registered with Registrar of Companies (ROC) 

57. Daily back up; Proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group. Back-up of the books of account and papers maintained in electronic mode is 
maintained on servers physically located in India on a daily basis, except in case of two applications fused for vendor and payroll record maintenance and processing) 
which are operated by third party service providers, the management is not in possession of an appropriate Service Organization Controls report to determine whether 
the back-up of books was maintained on servers physically located in India on a daily basis 

Audit trail: The Group uses accounting software which are the General ledger system, Loan origination system, Loan management system, Human resource management 
system, Payroll processing system, Vendor management and Expense processing system For maintaining its books of account which have a feature of recording audit trail 
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that for 

a. Loan origination system — audit trail feature has not been enabled. 
b. General ledger system arid Loan management system — audit trail has not been enabled at database level; 
c Human resource management system, Payroll processing system (operated by third party service providers) — appropriate Service Organization Controls report not 

available to determine whether audit trail feature has been enabled and has operated throughout the year, and 

d Vendor management and Expense processing system (operated by third party service provider) — audit trail has not been enabled at database level and relevant 
evidence not available in the Service Organization Controls report to determine whether the audit trail feature enabled at the application (front-end) layer was 
tampered with. 

Further, there has been no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with wherever it has been enabled. Additionally, the Group has preserved audit trail in respect 
of the financial years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025 to the extent it was enabled and recorded in respect of those years 

58. No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Group for holding any benami property under the Ben ami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) 
and rules made thereunder 
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Protium Finance Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

59. The Group has nut entered into any scheme of arrangement 
60. There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments 

under the Income Tax Act, 1961 

61. Previous year figures have been ragrouped/re-classified wherevei necessary to confirm to current year's classification The impact of such regrouping/ re-dassification are 
not material to the financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Protium Finance Limited 
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'per Amit lahoti - ' h Mlsra Pa Kumar 6 
Partner Managing Director & CEO bide de erector 
Membership No 132990 DIN: 08422699 DIN: 343 
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Place: Mumbai 
Date; 12 May 2025 
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AmIt Gupld 
Chief Financial 

Fi-nS 14-01A_fris• 
Anshu Mohta 
Company Secretary 
Membership No : A18287 

Place: Mumbai Place Mumbai 
Date: 12 May 2025 Date 12 May 2025 
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